City of Pensacola

Agenda Conference

Agenda

Monday, February 24, 2020, 3:30 PM Hagler-Mason Conference Room,
2nd Floor

ROLL CALL

PRESENTATION ITEMS

1. 20-00103 PRESENTATION FROM THE DIRECTOR OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY AREA
TRANSIT (ECAT)

Recommendation: That City Council receive a presentation from the Director of Escambia
County Area Transit (ECAT), giving an update and status of ECAT.

Sponsors: Jewel Cannada-Wynn

2. 20-00104 PRESENTATION FROM THE DIRECTOR OF REBUILD NORTHWEST
FLORIDA

Recommendation: That City Council receive a presentation from the Director of Rebuild
Northwest Florida.

Sponsors: Jewel Cannada-Wynn

REVIEW OF CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

3. 20-00030 AWARD OF BID #20-008 DAVIS HIGHWAY AT CARPENTER’S CREEK
(NORTHSIDE) STORMWATER TREATMENT ENHANCEMENT PROJECT

Recommendation: That City Council award Bid #20-008 Davis Highway at Carpenter’s
Creek (Northside) Stormwater Treatment Enhancement Project to Site
and Utility, LLC of Pensacola Florida, the lowest and most responsible
bidder with a base bid of $445,111.00 plus a 10% contingency in the
amount of $44,511.10 for a total amount of $489,622.10. Further, that
City Council authorize the Mayor to execute the contract and take all
actions necessary to complete the project.

Sponsors: Grover C. Robinson, IV

Attachments: Bid Tabulation, Bid No. 20-008
Final Vendor Reference List, Bid No. 20-008

Map-Davis Highway at Carpenter's Creek (Northside) Stormwater Treatmer
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4, 20-00070 AWARD OF RFP NO. 19-033, PENSACOLA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
PERIMETER INTRUSION DETECTION SYSTEM
Recommendation: That City Council award RFP No. 19-033, Perimeter Intrusion Detection

System, to Security Engineering of Pensacola, Inc., the only responsible
proponent, with a base proposal of $242,181.67, plus a 10% contingency
in the amount of $24,218 for a total amount of $266,399.67. Further, that
City Council authorize the Mayor to execute the contract and take all
actions necessary to complete the project.

Sponsors: Grover C. Robinson, IV
Attachments: RFP No. 19-033 Proposal Tabulation
RFP No. 19-033 Final Vendor Reference List

5. 20-00079 AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ITB 20-024 - STREET LIGHT
FOUNDATION AND CONDUIT REPLACEMENT
Recommendation: That City Council award a contract for ITB 20-024 Street Light
Foundations and Conduit Replacement to Ingram Signalization Inc., the
lowest and most responsible bidder with a base bid amount of $448,560,
plus a 5% contingency of $22,428, plus $24,700 for miscellaneous
construction items for a total amount of $495,688.

Sponsors: Grover C. Robinson, [V

Attachments: Tabulation of Bids Bid No 20-024 Street Light Foundation and Conduit Rep.

Final Vendor Reference List Street Light Foundation and Conduit Replacem

Street Light Foundation and Conduit Replacement layout

6. 20-00080 AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ITB 20-021- FY 2020 STREET
REHABILITATION

Recommendation: That City Council award a contract for ITB 20-021 Fiscal Year 2020 Street
Rehabilitation Bid. 20-021 Project to Midsouth Paving Inc. the lowest and
most responsible bidder with a base bid amount of $1,071,649.00 and
Alternate 1 bid amount of $133,814.50 for a total bid amount of
$1,205,463.50 plus a 5% contingency of $60,273.18 plus $6,000.00 for
miscellaneous construction items for a total amount of $1,271,736.68.

Sponsors: Grover C. Robinson, [V

Attachments: Tabulation of Bids FY 2020 Street Rehabilitation Project
FY 2020 Street Rehabilitation Project - Vendor List
FY 2020 Street Rehabilitation Map
FY 2020 Street Rehabilitation List

City of Pensacola Page 2
222 West Main Street
Pensacola, FL 32502


http://pensacola.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3239
http://pensacola.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=580de6e4-a94f-43ed-b58c-204d1597c608.pdf
http://pensacola.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=ac59cefd-16e6-4d38-865a-2db03e501524.pdf
http://pensacola.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3248
http://pensacola.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=abe15855-c188-4da7-993d-af7fc214ccf2.pdf
http://pensacola.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e0c3ac81-8322-49da-91d1-9139755dea35.pdf
http://pensacola.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=eb2fe27f-2cd3-4cef-86a7-75e2fd63a99b.pdf
http://pensacola.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=3249
http://pensacola.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=763c0d03-daf3-44f3-9f29-88504db38c46.pdf
http://pensacola.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=558eb86f-d430-4c32-a2f6-d8f522d6b3ad.pdf
http://pensacola.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=358df71f-65ca-4e5d-a964-54565a262122.pdf
http://pensacola.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4e20d32d-9ad2-4f8a-a27f-49883c165ec5.pdf

Agenda Conference Agenda February 24, 2020

7. 20-00094 FEDERAL COURTHOUSE PARKING LEASE - NORTH PALAFOX LOT

Recommendation: That the City Council approve a lease with the United States Government
for Federal Courthouse parking at the North Palafox Parking Lot. Further
that City Council authorize the Mayor, if necessary, to execute all
necessary documents.

Sponsors: Jared Moore

Attachments: Lease of Real Property - GSA Form 3626
Lease Amendment No. 1
Section 889 Addendum
Parking Plan Map

Supplemental Lease Requirements

Facility Security Level I
General Clauses - GSA Form 35174

8. 20-00095 APPOINTMENTS - ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY BOARD

Recommendation: That City Council appoint five (5) individuals who are employed or retired
environmental professionals, or members of local environmental
organizations, or a business with an interest in City environmental issues;
and appoint two (2) members who are residents or property owners of the
City as at large members for a term of two (2) years, expiring March 1,

2022.
Sponsors: Jewel Cannada-Wynn
Attachments: Member List

Application of Interest - Calvin Avant

Application of Interest - William Blase Butts

Application of Interest - Katie Fox

Application of Interest - Kyle Kopytchak

Nomination Form - Alexander Kozmon

Application of Interest - Alexander Kozmon

Resume - Alexander Kozmon

Application of Interest - Michael Lynch

Application of Interest - Neil Richards
Ballot

REVIEW OF REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS (Sponsor)
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9. 20-00046 FY 2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR)

Recommendation: That City Council accept the City of Pensacola Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for the year ended September 30, 2019 as prepared by
the Financial Services Department and the Independent Auditors Report
issued thereupon.

Sponsors: Grover C. Robinson, [V
Attachments: FY19 CAFR
SAS 114 Auditor Letter

Financial Condition Assessment

10. 20-00099 WORKSHOP FOR CITY COUNCIL TO DISCUSS THEIR PRIORITIES
WITHIN THE STRATEGIC PLAN,THE COUNCIL’S BUDGET AND
COUNCIL’S PRIORITIES FOR THE FY21 BUDGET

Recommendation: That City Council conduct a workshop to discuss their priorities within the
City’s Strategic Plan, discuss the City Council’s Budget and Priorities for
the FY21 Budget. Further, that Council authorize the Council President to
schedule the workshop to be held within the month of March.

Sponsors: Sherri Myers
Attachments: Strategic Plan 7-18-19
11. 12-20 PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 12-20 - PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO

THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN - FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT

Recommendation: That City Council adopt Proposed Ordinance No. 12-20on second
reading.

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING FOR ADOPTION, FOLLOWING THE
REQUIRED STATUTORY REVIEW PROCESS BY THE STATE OF
FLORIDA, AMENDMENTS TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE
CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA, FUTURE LAND USE ELEMENT;
REPEALING CLAUSE; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Sponsors: Grover C. Robinson, [V

Attachments: Proposed Ordinance No. 12-20

Planning Board Minutes January 14, 2020
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12. 02-20

PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 02-20 - REQUEST FOR ZONING MAP
AMENDMENT - COMMUNITY MARTITIME PARK PARCELS

Recommendation: That City Council adopt Proposed Ordinance No. 02-20 on second

Sponsors:

Attachments:

13. 05-20

reading:

AN  ORDINANCE AMENDING THE  ZONING
CLASSIFICATION OF CERTAIN PROPERTY
PURSUANT TO AND CONSISTENT WITH THE
COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF
PENSACOLA; AMENDING THE ZONING MAP OF
THE CITY OF PENSACOLA; REPEALING CLAUSE
AND EFFECTIVE DATE.

Grover C. Robinson, IV

Proposed Ordinance No. 02-20
Proposed WRD-1 Rezoning Map

WRD-1 Rezoning Application
Planning Board Minutes December 10, 2019
Planning Board Memo December 3, 2019

REVISED: PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 05-20 - VACATION OF RIGHT
OF WAY - BAPTIST ANNEXATION AREA

Recommendation: That City Council adopt Proposed Ordinance No. 05-20on second

Sponsors:

Attachments:

reading.

AN ORDINANCE CLOSING, ABANDONING AND VACATING RAWSON
LANE FROM BRENT LANE TO CORDAY STREET, CORDAY STREET
FROM DIXIE DRIVE TO 1-110, AND JOE ELLIOTT WAY IN ITS
ENTIRETY; IN PENSACOLA, ESCAMBIA COUNTY, STATE OF
FLORIDA; REPEALING CLAUSE, AND PROVIDNG AN EFFECTIVE
DATE.

Grover C. Robinson, IV

REVISED Proposed Ordinance No. 05-20
INITIAL Proposed Ordinance No. 05-20

Vacation of Right of Way Application

Planning Board Minutes December 10, 2019 DRAFT
MAP: Annex Baptist Street Vacation

MAP: Annex Baptist Aerial Parcels
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14. 13-20 PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 13-20 - ESTABLISHING THE URBAN
CORE REDEVELOPMENT BOARD
Recommendation: That City Council adopt Proposed Ordinance No. 13-20on second
reading:
AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING AN URBAN CORE
REDEVELOPMENT BOARD; REPEALING CLAUSE; SEVERIBILITY;
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.
Sponsors: Jared Moore
Attachments: Proposed Ord 13-20 - Establishing the Urban Core Redevelopment Board

FOR DISCUSSION

Establishing the Urban Core Redevelopment Board Area Boundary Map Da

15. 20-00100 IMPLEMENTATION OF RESOLUTION NO. 2019-60 - USE OF
PESTICIDES AND HERBICIDES IN PARKS AND ON ATHLETIC FIELDS,
NOTICE AND POSTING ON THE CITY WEBSITE. REQUEST VS.

REQUIREMENT.
Sponsors: Sherri Myers
Attachments: Resolution No. 2019-60

Bryan Park Spraying notice (1)

Bryan Park Spraying notice (2)

CONSIDERATION OF ANY ADD-ON ITEMS

READING OF ITEMS FOR COUNCIL AGENDA

COMMUNICATIONS

City Administrator's Communication

City Attorney's Communication

Monthly Financial Report - Chief Financial Officer Richard Barker, Jr.

16. 20-00074

Sponsors:

MONTHLY FINANCIAL REPORT - CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
RICHARD BARKER, JR.

Grover C. Robinson, IV

City Council Communication
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ADJOURNMENT

If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at such meeting, he will need a
record of the proceedings, and that for such purpose he may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is
made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

The City of Pensacola adheres to the Americans with Disabilities Act and will make reasonable accommodations for access
to City services, programs and activities. Please call 435-1606 (or TDD 435-1666) for further information. Request must be
made at least 48 hours in advance of the event in order to allow the City time to provide the requested services.
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Clty of Pensacola Pensacola, FL 32502

Memorandum

File #: 20-00103 City Council 2/27/2020

PRESENTATION ITEM

FROM: City Council President Jewel Cannada-Wynn

SUBJECT:

PRESENTATION FROM THE DIRECTOR OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY AREA TRANSIT (ECAT)
REQUEST:

That City Council receive a presentation from the Director of Escambia County Area Transit (ECAT),
giving an update and status of ECAT.

SUMMARY:

This presentation will allow City Council to get an update on ECAT.
PRIOR ACTION:

None

STAFF CONTACT:

Don Kraher, Council Executive

ATTACHMENTS:

1) None

PRESENTATION: Yes
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City of Pensacola Pensacola, L. 32502
Memorandum
File #: 20-00104 City Council 2/27/2020

PRESENTATION ITEM

FROM: City Council President Jewel Cannada-Wynn

SUBJECT:

PRESENTATION FROM THE DIRECTOR OF REBUILD NORTHWEST FLORIDA

REQUEST:

That City Council receive a presentation from the Director of Rebuild Northwest Florida.

SUMMARY:

Rebuild Northwest Florida was created shortly after Hurricane Ivan; they will be closing their doors
effective March 31, 2020. This presentation allows City Council to hear about the accomplishments
of Rebuild Northwest Florida and to get an idea of what to look for in the future.

PRIOR ACTION:

None

STAFF CONTACT:

Don Kraher, Council Executive

ATTACHMENTS:

1) None

PRESENTATION: Yes
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City of Pensacola Pensacola, L. 32502
Memorandum
File #: 20-00030 City Council 2/27/2020
LEGISLATIVE ACTION ITEM
SPONSOR: Grover C. Robinson, IV, Mayor

SUBJECT:

AWARD OF BID #20-008 DAVIS HIGHWAY AT CARPENTER'S CREEK (NORTHSIDE)
STORMWATER TREATMENT ENHANCEMENT PROJECT

RECOMMENDATION:

That City Council award Bid #20-008 Davis Highway at Carpenter's Creek (Northside) Stormwater
Treatment Enhancement Project to Site and Utility, LLC of Pensacola Florida, the lowest and most
responsible bidder with a base bid of $445,111.00 plus a 10% contingency in the amount of
$44,511.10 for a total amount of $489,622.10. Further, that City Council authorize the Mayor to
execute the contract and take all actions necessary to complete the project.

HEARING REQUIRED: No Hearing Required
SUMMARY:

The scope of the project is to provide stormwater treatment for a large untreated drainage sub-basin
within the Carpenter Creek Watershed. This treatment will be provided by fitting the underground
stormwater conveyance system with a proprietary underground treatment unit and associated piping.
This project is consistent with current technology for stormwater retrofit treatment and is part of an
ongoing program utilized throughout the City to improve the water quality of area waterways.

PRIOR ACTION:
None
FUNDING:
Budget: $ 575,000.00
Actual: $ 445,111.00 Construction Contract
44,511.10 10% Contingency

54,434.42 Engineering Design/Permitting/Surveying (Completed)
25,000.00 Engineering Management/Inspection (Estimate)
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File #: 20-00030 City Council 2/27/2020

5,000.00 Construction Testing/Misc. (Estimate)
$ 574,056.52

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

The total budget for this project is $575,000.00 and is funded within the Stormwater Capital Projects
Fund. To date, $54,434.42 has been expended for completed items related to Surveying,
Engineering Design, Studies, and Permitting, leaving a balance of $520,565.58. The remaining
budget balance is sufficient to cover the remaining items that have yet to be completed/expended.

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: Yes
2/4/2020

STAFF CONTACT:

Keith Wilkins, City Administrator
Kerrith Fiddler, Deputy City Administrator - Community Development
L. Derrik Owens, Director of Public Works and Facilities/City Engineer

ATTACHMENTS:

1) Bid Tabulation, Bid No. 20-008

2) Final Vendor Reference List, Bid No. 20-008

3) Map-Davis Highway at Carpenter’s Creek (Northside) Stormwater Treatment Enhancement
Project

PRESENTATION: No
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TABULATION OF BIDS

BID NO: 20-008

TITLE: DAVIS HIGHWAY AT CARPENTER’S CREEK (NORTHSIDE)
STORMWATER TREATMENT ENHANCEMENT PROJECT

OPENING DATE: December 17, 2019
OPENING TIME: 2:30 P.M.

DEPARTMENT: Engineering

SITE &
UTILITY,
LLC

Pensacola, FL

ROADS, INC.
OF NWF

Cantonment, FL

J. MILLER
CONSTRUCTION,
INC.

Pensacola, FL

Base Bid

Attended Prebid

$445,111.00

Yes

$760,442.27

Yes

$795,504.00

Yes
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Opening Date: 12/18/19 Bid No.: 20-008
FINAL VENDOR REFERENCE LIST
DAVIS HIGHWAY AT CARPENTER’S CREEK (NORTHSIDE)
STORMWATER TREATMENT ENHANCEMENT PROJECT
ENGINEERING

Vendor Name Address City St Zip Code SMWBE
004632 A ENEW JRINC 460 VAN PELT LANE PENSACOLA FL 32505

067544 AFFORDABLE CONCRETE & CONSTRUCTION LLC 4089 E JOHNSON AVE PENSACOLA FL 32515 Y
044957  ALL SEASONS CONSTRUCTION LLC 6161 BLUE ANGEL PARKWAY PENSACOLA FL 32526

068571 B&W UTILITIES INC 1610 SUCCESS DRIVE CANTONMENT FL 32533

069786 BEAR GENERAL CONTRACTORS LLC 2803 E CERVANTES ST STEC PENSACOLA FL 32503

036997 BELLVIEW SITE CONTRACTORS INC 3300 GODWIN LANE PENSACOLA FL 32526 Y
073772 BIGGS CONSTRUCTION COMPANY INC PO BOX 1552 PENSACOLA FL 32591 Y
053457  BIRKSHIRE JOHNSTONE LLC 507 E FAIRFIELD DR PENSACOLA FL 32503 Y
065013 BKW INC 8132 PITTMAN AVE PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
070527 BLOWERS, BENJAMIN DBA INNOVIS USA LLC 5540 LEESWAY BLVD PENSACOLA FL 32504

022856 BROWN CONSTRUCTION OF NW FL INC 10200 COVE AVE PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
041503 BROWN, AMOS P JR DBA P BROWN BUILDERS LLC 4231 CHERRY LAUREL DRIVE PENSACOLA FL 32504 Y
050107 CANTONMENT BUILDING MATERIALS INC 990 HIGHWAY 29 N CANTONMENT FL 32533

042045 CHAVERS CONSTRUCTION INC 1795 WEST DETROIT BLVD PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
049653 CHRISTOPHER C BARGAINEER CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION INC 6550 BUD JOHNSON ROAD PENSACOLA FL 32505 Y
045454  COASTLINE STRIPING INC 8840 FOWLER AVENUE PENSACOLA FL 32534

071766 CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT ADVISORS LLC 4547 LASSASSIER PENSACOLA FL 32504

036146 CRONIN CONSTRUCTION INC 99 S ALCANIZ ST SUITE A PENSACOLA FL 32502 Y
070475 CRUZ, SHAWN C DBA COASTAL PROPERTY PREPARATION LLC 5700 ALMAX COURT PENSACOLA FL 32506

033554 D K E MARINE SERVICES P O BOX 2395 PENSACOLA FL 32513 Y
070603 D+B BUILDERS 670 MOLINO ROAD MOLINO FL 32577

007055 DAVIS MARINE CONSTRUCTION INC 8160 ASHLAND AVENUE PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
065871 ECSCLLC 8400 LITLE JOHN JUNCTION NAVARRE FL 32566 Y
072705 EVAN CHASE CONSTRUCTION INC 2991 SOUTH HIGHWAY 29 CANTONMENT FL 32533 Y
032038 EVANS CONTRACTING INC 400 NEAL ROAD CANTONMENT FL 32533

039109 FRANK KELLY INDUSTRIAL SALES 744 E BURGESS RD A105 PENSACOLA FL 32504 Y
074355 GANNETT MHC MEDIA INC DBA PENSACOLA NEWS JOURNAL 2 NORTH PALAFOX ST PENSACOLA FL 32502

032792 GATOR BORING & TRENCHING INC 1800 BLACKBIRD LANE PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
050495 GB GREEN CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT & CONSULTING INC 303 MAN'O'WAR CIRCLE CANTONMENT FL 32533 Y
053862 GFD CONSTRUCTION INC 8771 ASHLAND AVE PENSACOLA FL 32514

058714 GREG ALLEN CONSTRUCTION INC 5006 PERSIMMON HOLLOW ROAD  MILTON FL 32583 Y
000591 GULF ATLANTIC CONSTRUCTORS INC 650 WEST OAKFIELD RD PENSACOLA FL 32503 Y
044100 GULF BEACH CONSTRUCTION 1308 UPLAND CREST COURT GULF BREEZE FL 32563 Y
069565 GULF COAST INDUSTRIAL CONSTRUCTION LLC 12196 HWY 89 JAY FL 32565 Y
074827 GULF COAST MINORITY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE INC 321 N DEVILLERS ST STE 104 PENSACOLA FL 32501

017352 GULF COAST TRAFFIC ENGINEERS 8203 KIPLING STREET PENSACOLA FL 32514

036662 HHHCONSTRUCTION OF NWF INC 8190 BELLE PINES LANE PENSACOLA FL 32526

070385 HANTO & CLARKE GENERAL CONTRACTORS LLC 1401 EAST BELMONT STREET PENSACOLA FL 32501

056716 HOWELL, KENNETH C, JR DBA KEN JR CONSTRUCTION LLC 1102 WEBSTER DRIVE PENSACOLA FL 32505

022978 INGRAM SIGNALIZATION INC 4522 N DAVIS HWY PENSACOLA FL 32503 Y
049240  J MILLER CONSTRUCTION INC 8900 WARING RD PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
053163 J2 ENGINEERING INC 2101 WEST GARDEN STREET PENSACOLA FL 32502

071564 JOSEPH BRIDGES DBA JOE'S LINE UP 222 EHRMANN ST PENSACOLA FL 32507

043857 KBI CONSTRUCTION CO INC 9214 WARING RD PENSACOLA FL 32534

068161 LEA, DOUGLAS C DBA L&L CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLC 9655 SOUTH TRACE ROAD MILTON FL 32583 Y



Opening Date: 12/18/19 Bid No.: 20-008
FINAL VENDOR REFERENCE LIST
DAVIS HIGHWAY AT CARPENTER’S CREEK (NORTHSIDE)
STORMWATER TREATMENT ENHANCEMENT PROJECT
ENGINEERING

Vendor Name Address City St Zip Code SMWBE
058332 LEIDNER BUILDERS INC 409 N PACE BLVD PENSACOLA FL 32505 Y
058801 M&H CONSTRUCTION SERVICES INC 1161 W 9 1/2 MILE RD PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
053467 MIDSOUTH PAVING INC PO BOX 198495 ATLANTA GA 30384

016210 NORD, STEVE DBA SEA HORSE GENERAL CONTRACTORS INC 4238 GULF BREEZE PKWY GULF BREEZE FL 32563 Y
059552 NOVA ENGINEERING AND ENVIRONMENTAL LLC 3900 KENNESAW 75 PKWY STE 100 KENNESAW GA 30144

002720 PANHANDLE GRADING & PAVING INC P O BOX 3717 PENSACOLA FL 32516

058953 PARSCOLLC 714 NORTH DEVILLIERS STREET PENSACOLA FL 32501 Y
060344 PENSACOLA BAY AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE DBA GREATER PENSACOLA CHAMBER 117 W GARDEN ST PENSACOLA FL 32502

003956 PENSACOLA CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION CO INC P O BOX 2787 PENSACOLA FL 32513

055028 PERDIDO GRADING & PAVING PO BOX 3333 PENSACOLA FL 32516 Y
073174 PERRITT, CHRIS LLC 5340 BRIGHT MEADOWS ROAD MILTON FL 32570 Y
066152 PRINCIPLE PROPERTIES INC 3773 HIGHWAY 87 S NAVARRE BEACH FL 32566 Y
051133  PUGH, KEVIN D DBA KEVIN D PUGH SITE & DOZER WORKS LLC 5731 STEWART ROAD WALNUT HILL FL 32568 Y
021834 R &L PRODUCTSINC 9492 PENSACOLA BLVD PENSACOLA FL 32534

018305 R D WARD CONSTRUCTION CO INC 15 EAST HERMAN STREET PENSACOLA FL 32505

049671 RADFORD & NIX CONSTRUCTION LLC 7014 PINE FOREST ROAD PENSACOLA FL 32526 Y
001681 RANDALL, HENRY DBA RANDALL CONSTRUCTION 1045 S FAIRFIELD DRIVE PENSACOLA FL 32506

031881 ROADS INC OF NWF 106 STONE BLVD CANTONMENT FL 32533

017634 ROBERSON EXCAVATION INC 6013 SOUTHRIDGE ROAD MILTON FL 32570 Y
067564 ROBERSON UNDERGROUND UTILITY LLC 9790 ROBERSON WAY MILTON FL 32570 Y
055499 ROCKWELL CORPORATION 3309 LINGER COURT PENSACOLA FL 32526 Y
042044  SALTER/3C'S CONSTRUCTION CO 4512 TRICE RD MILTON FL 32571

065450  SITE AND UTILITY LLC PO BOX 30136 PENSACOLA FL 32503 Y
068159 SOUTHERN DRILL SUPPLY INC 1822 BLACKBIRD LANE PENSACOLA FL 32534

011457 SOUTHERN UTILITY CO INC P O BOX 2055 PENSACOLA FL 32513 Y
028060 THE GREEN SIMMONS COMPANY INC 3407 NORTH W STREET PENSACOLA FL 32505 Y
062939 THREE TRADE CONSULTANTS 5690 JEFF ATES RD MILTON FL 32583 Y
069066 UNDERGROUND SOLUTIONS LLC 3070 GODWIN LN PENSACOLA FL 32526 Y
002482  UTILITY SERVICE COMPANY INC 4326 GULF BREEZE PARKWAY GULF BREEZE FL 32563

030317 WPRINC 4175 BRIARGLEN RD MILTON FL 32583 Y
030448 WARRINGTON UTILITY & EXCAVATING INC 8401 UNTREINER AVE PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
021725 WHITESELL-GREEN INC P O BOX 2849 PENSACOLA FL 32513

069212 YERKES SOUTH INC 634 LAKEWOOD RD PENSACOLA FL 32507 Y

[vendors: 78
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City of Pensacola Pensacola, L. 32502
Memorandum
File #: 20-00070 City Council 2/27/2020
LEGISLATIVE ACTION ITEM
SPONSOR: Grover C. Robinson, IV, Mayor

SUBJECT:

AWARD OF RFP NO. 19-033, PENSACOLA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT PERIMETER INTRUSION
DETECTION SYSTEM

RECOMMENDATION:

That City Council award RFP No. 19-033, Perimeter Intrusion Detection System, to Security
Engineering of Pensacola, Inc., the only responsible proponent, with a base proposal of $242,181.67,
plus a 10% contingency in the amount of $24,218 for a total amount of $266,399.67. Further, that
City Council authorize the Mayor to execute the contract and take all actions necessary to complete
the project.

HEARING REQUIRED: No Hearing Required
SUMMARY:

The Pensacola International Airport is required to have certain items in place to prevent unauthorized
access to the airfield and the aircraft parking areas. The primary means of achieving this currently
includes the installation of a physical barrier in the form of a 6’-8 chain-link fence, topped with barbed
wire. Additionally, the fence has been equipped with an anti-intrusion system to aid in the detection
of attempts to climb, cut, or otherwise breach the area.

The current intrusion detection system was installed in the early 2000’s, and while still functional,
requires replacement. Staff, along with outside consultants, reviewed available options for a new
system and opted to specify a system similar to that which is currently in place, albeit with newer
sensing technology.

Specifications were prepared and advertised under Request for Proposals No. 19-033. Three
proposals were received, two of which were deemed non-responsive. Under the contract, Security
Engineering will replace 2000 linear feet of the current fence-mounted intrusion detection system.
The head-end equipment that will be purchased and installed as part of this project will allow for the
future replacement of additional sections of the existing intrusion detection system.

PRIOR ACTION:
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File #: 20-00070 City Council 2/27/2020

None
FUNDING:
Budget: $300,000.00
Actual:  $266,399.67
FINANCIAL IMPACT:
Funds for this project were carried forward on Supplemental Budget Resolution #2019-70.

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: Yes
2/4/2020

STAFF CONTACT:

Keith Wilkins, City Administrator

Richard Barker, Jr., Deputy City Administrator - Administration & Enterprise
Daniel Flynn, Airport Director

ATTACHMENTS:

1) RFP No. 19-033 Proposal Tabulation
2) RFP No. 19-033 Final Vendor Reference List

PRESENTATION: No
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TABULATION OF RFPS

RFP NO: 19-033

TITLE: PERIMETER INTRUSION DETECTION SYSTEM (PIDS)

PENSACOLA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

SELECTION DATE: December 30, 2019

DEPARTMENT: Airport

Security

Engineering of

Pensacola, Inc.

Pensacola, FL

NEC Corporation

of America

trving, TX

Cornerstone
Detention
Prodcuts, Inc.

Madison, AL

Bazon-Cox &
Associates, Inc.
Prodcuts, Inc.

Chesapeake, VA

Selected

Non-Responsive

Non-Responsive

Non-Responsive
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Opening Date: 12/30/19

FINAL VENDOR REFERENCE LIST

PERIMETER INTRUSION DETECTION SYSTEM (PIDS)
PENSACOLA INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

Bid No.: 19-033

Vendor Name Address City St Zip Code SMWBE
078325 ASYMMETRIC TECHNOLOGIES LLC 1395 GRANDVIEW AVE COLUMBUS OH 43212
078318 BAZON COX & ASSOCIATES INC 1244 EXECUTIVE BLVD STE B113 CHESAPEAKE VA 23320
078319 CORNERSTONE DETENTION PRODUCTS INC 14000 ALABAMA HWY 20 MADISON AL 35756
078326  DIG DEFENCE 102044 SOUTH 4730 ROAD MULDROW OK 74948
074355 GANNETT MHC MEDIA INC DBA PENSACOLA NEWS JOURNAL 2 NORTH PALAFOX ST PENSACOLA FL 32502
074827 GULF COAST MINORITY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE INC 321 N DEVILLERS ST STE 104 PENSACOLA FL 32501
078323  INTUITIVE RESEARCH & TECHNOLGY CORP 73 EGLIN PARKWAY NW SUITE 112 FORT WALTON BCH FL 32548
078320 NEC CORPORATION OF AMERICA 3929 W JOHN CARPENTER FREEWAY  IRVING TX 75063
060344 PENSACOLA BAY AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE DBA GREATER PENSACOLA CHAMBER 117 W GARDEN ST PENSACOLA FL 32502
078321 RBTECINC 7638 STANDISH PLACE DERWOOD MD 20855
035184 SECURITY ENGINEERING OF PENSACOLA INC DBA SECURITY ENGINEERING INC 6708 PLANTATION ROAD PENSACOLA FL 32504
078322  UNITED SECURITY ALLIANCE INC 9008 BRITTANY WAY TAMPA FL 33619
066494  VISION TECHNOLOGIES SYS INC 99 CANAL CENTER PLAZA SUITE 220 ALEXANDRIA VA 22314
078324 VT MILTOPE 3800 RICHARDSON ROAD HOPE HULL AL 36043

|Vendors: 14




City of Pensacola Pensacola, L. 32502
Memorandum
File #: 20-00079 City Council 2/27/2020
LEGISLATIVE ACTION ITEM
SPONSOR: Grover C. Robinson, IV, Mayor

SUBJECT:

AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ITB 20-024 - STREET LIGHT FOUNDATION AND CONDUIT
REPLACEMENT

RECOMMENDATION:

That City Council award a contract for ITB 20-024 Street Light Foundations and Conduit
Replacement to Ingram Signalization Inc., the lowest and most responsible bidder with a base bid
amount of $448,560, plus a 5% contingency of $22,428, plus $24,700 for miscellaneous construction
items for a total amount of $495,688.

HEARING REQUIRED: No Hearing Required
SUMMARY:

During discussions with City Council regarding the FY 2020 Budget, City Council discussed the use
of the FY 2020 Energy Conservation & Efficiency Improvement Funds (LOST V) for the installation
costs associated with the replacement of the existing street lights along S. Baylen Street, S. Spring
Street and S. Reus Street. These projects were expedited due to cost saving in prior projects to
install new lighting throughout the City. The lighting equipment was purchased during FY 2019 and,
as was discussed with City Council, the FY 2020 Energy Conservation & Efficiency Improvements
funds will be used to fund the costs associated with the installation of the lights. The project was put
out to bid on January 13, 2020 and two (2) proposals were received on February 11, 2020.

PRIOR ACTION:

September 18, 2019 - City Council approved the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget, which included $235,000
for Energy Conservation & Improvements in Fiscal Year 2020.

December 12, 2019 - City Council adopted Supplemental Budget Resolution No. 2019-70 carrying
forward $62,045 for Energy Conservation & Efficiency Improvements and $10,129 for the Jefferson
Street Lighting Project.

FUNDING:
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File #: 20-00079 City Council 2/27/2020

Budget: $297,045.00 LOST IV - Energy Conservation and Efficiency Improvements
298,000.00 LOST IV - Baylen Street Lighting
158,000.00 LOST IV - Spring Street Lighting
173,000.00 LOST IV - Reus Street Lighting
10,129.00 LOST IV - Jefferson Street Lighting Balance
$936,174.00

Actual: Baylen Street Lighting

$101,735.48 Materials
181,000.00 Construction
9,050.00 5% Contingency
10,000.00 Miscellaneous Construction Items

$301,785.48

Spring Street Lighting

$161,735.48 Materials
165,000.00 Construction
8,250.00 5% Contingency
9,000.00 Miscellaneous Construction Items

$343,985.48

Reus Street Lighting

$176,735.48 Materials
102,560.00 Construction
5,128.00 5% Contingency
5,700.00 Miscellaneous Construction Items

$290,123.48
$935,894.44 Total

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Funding for the Street Light Foundation and Conduit Replacement project is available in the LOST IV
Capital Improvement Project Plan. The $297,045 budgeted in Energy Conservation & Efficiency
Improvements and the $10,129 budgeted in the Jefferson Street Lighting Project will be transferred to
the Baylen Street, Spring Street and Reus Street Lighting Projects according to the amounts shown
in the Funding section above. To date, $440,206.44 has been expended for the purchase of the light
poles, fixtures and wire. The remaining balance of $495,968.56 is sufficient to fund the installation of
the street lights.

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: Yes
2/14/2020
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File #: 20-00079 City Council

2/27/2020

STAFF CONTACT:

Keith Wilkins, City Administrator
Kerrith Fiddler, Deputy City Administrator - Community Development
L. Derrik Owens, P.E., Director of Public Works and Facilities/City Engineer

ATTACHMENTS:

1) Tabulation of Bids Bid No 20-024 Street Light Foundation and Conduit Replacement
2) Final Vendor Reference List Street Light Foundation and Conduit Replacement
3) Street Light Foundation and Conduit Replacement layout

PRESENTATION: No
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TABULATION OF BIDS

BID NO: 20-024

TITLE: STREET LIGHT FOUNDATION & CONDUIT REPLACEMENT
S. BAYLEN ST, SPRING ST, S. REUS ST, W. GOVERNMENT ST,

W. ROMANA ST, W. INTENDENCIA ST

OPENING DATE: February 11, 2020
OPENING TIME: 2:30 P.M.

DEPARTMENT: Public Works & Facilities

INGRAM SIGNALIZATION,
INC.

Pensacola, FL

BILL SMITH ELECTRIC,
INC.

Gonzalez, FL

BRIEF DESCRIPTION

Base Bid

S/M/W/VBE Vendor

$448,560.00

WBE

$515,112.00

SBE
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Opening Date: 02/11/20

FINAL VENDOR REFERENCE LIST

STREET LIGHT FOUNDATION AND CONDUIT REPLACEMENT

PUBLIC WORKS

Bid No.: 20-024

Vendor Name Address City St Zip Code SMWBE
004632 A ENEW JRINC 460 VAN PELT LANE PENSACOLA FL 32505

067544 AFFORDABLE CONCRETE & CONSTRUCTION LLC 4089 E JOHNSON AVE PENSACOLA FL 32515 Y
077498  ALL PHASE CONSTRUCTION OF NW FL LLC 5340 BRIGHT MEADOW RD MILTON FL 32570 Y
044957  ALL SEASONS CONSTRUCTION LLC 6161 BLUE ANGEL PARKWAY PENSACOLA FL 32526

071765 ATLAS BUILDERS GROUP 4366 AVALON BLVD MILTON FL 32583

069786 BEAR GENERAL CONTRACTORS LLC 2803 E CERVANTES ST STEC PENSACOLA FL 32503

036997 BELLVIEW SITE CONTRACTORS INC 3300 GODWIN LANE PENSACOLA FL 32526 Y
073772  BIGGS CONSTRUCTION COMPANY INC PO BOX 1552 PENSACOLA FL 32591 Y
051492  BILL SMITH ELECTRIC INC P O BOX 1057 GONZALEZ FL 32560 Y
053457  BIRKSHIRE JOHNSTONE LLC 507 E FAIRFIELD DR PENSACOLA FL 32503 Y
065013 BKW INC 8132 PITTMAN AVE PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
070527 BLOWERS, BENJAMIN DBA INNOVIS USA LLC 5540 LEESWAY BLVD PENSACOLA FL 32504

022856 BROWN CONSTRUCTN OF NW FL INC 10200 COVE AVE PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
041140 CAMPBELL SAND & GRAVEL 930 CAMPBELL RD CENTURY FL 32535

042045 CHAVERS CONSTRUCTION INC 1795 DETROIT BLVD PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
049653 CHRISTOPHER C BARGAINEER CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION INC 6550 BUD JOHNSON ROAD PENSACOLA FL 32505 Y
057454 COASTAL PILE DRIVING INC 2201 VALLEY ESCONDIDO DRIVE ~ PENSACOLA FL 32526

045454  COASTLINE STRIPING INC 8840 FOWLER AVENUE PENSACOLA FL 32534

071766 CONSTRUCTION MGMT ADVISORS LLC 4547 LASSASSIER PENSACOLA FL 32504

036146 CRONIN CONSTRUCTION INC 99 S ALCANIZ ST SUITE A PENSACOLA FL 32502 Y
070475 CRUZ, SHAWN C DBA COASTAL PROPERTY PREPARATION LLC 5700 ALMAX COURT PENSACOLA FL 32506

033554 D K E MARINE SERVICES P O BOX 2395 PENSACOLA FL 32513 Y
070603 D+B BUILDERS 670 MOLINO ROAD MOLINO FL 32577

007055 DAVIS MARINE CONSTRUCTION INC 8160 ASHLAND AVENUE PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
065871 ECSCLLC 8400 LITLE JOHN JUNCTION NAVARRE FL 32566 Y
072705 EVAN CHASE CONSTRUCTION INC 2991 SOUTH HIGHWAY 29 CANTONMENT FL 32533 Y
032038 EVANS CONTRACTING INC 400 NEAL ROAD CANTONMENT FL 32533

055177 FLORIDA CONCRETE CONCEPTS INC 4432 ALANTHUS STREET MILTON FL 32583

074355 GANNETT MHC MEDIA INC DBA PENSACOLA NEWS JOURNAL 2 NORTH PALAFOX ST PENSACOLA FL 32502

050495 GB GREEN CONSTRUCTION MGMT & CONSULTING INC 303 MAN'O'WAR CIRCLE CANTONMENT FL 32533 Y
058714 GREG ALLEN CONSTRUCTION INC 5006 PERSIMMON HOLLOW ROAD MILTON FL 32583 Y
000591 GULF ATLANTIC CONSTRUCTORS INC 650 WEST OAKFIELD RD PENSACOLA FL 32503 Y
044100 GULF BEACH CONSTRUCTION 1308 UPLAND CREST COURT GULF BREEZE FL 32563 Y
069565 GULF COAST INDUSTRIAL CONSTRUCTION LLC 12196 HWY 89 JAY FL 32565 Y
074827 GULF COAST MINORITY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE INC 321 N DEVILLERS ST STE 104 PENSACOLA FL 32501

017352 GULF COAST TRAFFIC ENGINEERS 8203 KIPLING STREET PENSACOLA FL 32514

036662 HHHCONSTRUCTION OF NWF INC 8190 BELLE PINES LANE PENSACOLA FL 32526

070385 HANTO & CLARKE GENERAL CONTRACTORS LLC 1401 EAST BELMONT STREET PENSACOLA FL 32501



Opening Date: 02/11/20

FINAL VENDOR REFERENCE LIST
STREET LIGHT FOUNDATION AND CONDUIT REPLACEMENT

PUBLIC WORKS

Bid No.: 20-024

Vendor Name Address City St Zip Code SMWBE
044713 HENRY HAIRE BUILDING & DEVELOPMENT INC 6341 HIGHWAY 90 STE B MILTON FL 32570

056716 HOWELL, KENNETH C, JR DBA KEN JR CONSTRUCTION LLC 1102 WEBSTER DRIVE PENSACOLA FL 32505

022978  INGRAM SIGNALIZATION INC 4522 N DAVIS HWY PENSACOLA FL 32503 Y
049240 J MILLER CONSTRUCTION INC 8900 WARING RD PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
053163 J2 ENGINEERING INC 2101 WEST GARDEN STREET PENSACOLA FL 32502

071564 JOSEPH BRIDGES DBA JOE'S LINE UP 222 EHRMANN ST PENSACOLA FL 32507

068161 LEA, DOUGLAS C DBA L&L CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLC 9655 SOUTH TRACE ROAD MILTON FL 32583 Y
016210 NORD, STEVE DBA SEA HORSE GENERAL CONTRACTORS INC 4238 GULF BREEZE PKWY GULF BREEZE FL 32563 Y
001823 NWF CONTRACTORS INC P O BOX 1718 FORT WALTON BEACH FL 32549

002720 PANHANDLE GRADING & PAVING INC P O BOX 3717 PENSACOLA FL 32516

003956 PENSA CONCRETE CONSTR CO INC P O BOX 2787 PENSACOLA FL 32513

060344 PENSACOLA BAY AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE DBA GREATER PENSACOLA CHAMBER 117 W GARDEN ST PENSACOLA FL 32502

055028 PERDIDO GRADING & PAVING PO BOX 3333 PENSACOLA FL 32516 Y
073174 PERRITT, CHRIS LLC 5340 BRIGHT MEADOWS ROAD MILTON FL 32570 Y
051133  PUGH, KEVIN D DBA KEVIN D PUGH SITE & DOZER WORKS LLC 5731 STEWART ROAD WALNUT HILL FL 32568 Y
018305 R D WARD CONSTRUCTION CO INC 15 EAST HERMAN STREET PENSACOLA FL 32505

049671 RADFORD & NIX CONSTRUCTION LLC 7014 PINE FOREST ROAD PENSACOLA FL 32526 Y
001681 RANDALL, HENRY DBA RANDALL CONSTRUCTION 1045 S FAIRFIELD DRIVE PENSACOLA FL 32506

031881 ROADS INC OF NWF 106 STONE BLVD CANTONMENT FL 32533

055499 ROCKWELL CORPORATION 3309 LINGER COURT PENSACOLA FL 32526 Y
065450  SITE AND UTILITY LLC PO BOX 30136 PENSACOLA FL 32503 Y
011457 SOUTHERN UTILITY CO INC P O BOX 2055 PENSACOLA FL 32513 Y
028060 THE GREEN SIMMONS COMPANY INC 3407 NORTH W STREET PENSACOLA FL 32505 Y
002482  UTILITY SERVICE COMPANY INC 4326 GULF BREEZE PARKWAY GULF BREEZE FL 32563

030317 WPRINC 4175 BRIARGLEN RD MILTON FL 32583 Y
030448 WARRINGTON UTILITY & EXCAVATING INC 8401 UNTREINER AVE PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
021725 WHITESELL-GREEN INC P O BOX 2849 PENSACOLA FL 32513

069212 YERKES SOUTH INC 634 LAKEWOOD RD PENSACOLA FL 32507 Y

[vendors: 66
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DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS AND FACILITIES
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City of Pensacola Pensacola, L. 32502
Memorandum
File #: 20-00080 City Council 2/27/2020
LEGISLATIVE ACTION ITEM
SPONSOR: Grover C. Robinson, IV, Mayor

SUBJECT:
AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR ITB 20-021- FY 2020 STREET REHABILITATION
RECOMMENDATION:

That City Council award a contract for ITB 20-021 Fiscal Year 2020 Street Rehabilitation Bid. 20-021
Project to Midsouth Paving Inc. the lowest and most responsible bidder with a base bid amount of
$1,071,649.00 and Alternate 1 bid amount of $133,814.50 for a total bid amount of $1,205,463.50
plus a 5% contingency of $60,273.18 plus $6,000.00 for miscellaneous construction items for a total
amount of $1,271,736.68.

HEARING REQUIRED: No Hearing Required
SUMMARY:

In September 2019, City Council approved the Fiscal Year 2020 Budget, which included 122 blocks
of standard street rehabilitation in the Local Option Sales Tax Series IV Plan. The Fiscal Year 2020
Streets Rehabilitation listing was developed based upon those streets in greatest need of
reconditioning with the most dilapidated streets listed first. The list was put out to bid on January 6,
2020, and three (3) proposals were received on February 4, 2020.

Public Works & Facilities staff contacted the Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA) concerning
funding assistance as it relates to the adjustment of ECUA’s sanitary sewer manholes within the
roadways in need of reconditioning. ECUA agreed to fund the adjustment of approximately 92
manholes with a funding amount of $44,000 and approximately 17 water valves with a funding
amount of $15,370 for a total amount of $59,370.

The City also included the construction of handicap ramps adjacent to roadways, which are proposed
to be rehabilitated if existing sidewalks are present. The additional cost to incorporate the 22
handicap ramps and necessary sidewalk adjustments is $14,300 and will be constructed as part of
the project.

PRIOR ACTION:
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File #: 20-00080 City Council 2/27/2020

September 18, 2019 - City Council approved the FY 2020 Budget, which included the $500,000 for
the Pavement Management Program

December 12, 2019 - City Council adopted Supplemental Budget Resolution No. 2019-70 carrying
forward the balance of Pavement Management Funds.

FUNDING:

Budget: $ 1,140,869.00 Local Option Sales Tax Fund
722,897.00 LOST Series 2017 Capital Projects Fund
59,370.00 ECUA Reimbursement
$1,923,136.00

Actual: $1,071,649.00 Base Bid
133,814.50 Alternate 1
60,273.18 5% Contingency
6,000.00 Miscellaneous Construction ltems
$1,271,736.68

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Funding for street rehabilitation is available in the Local Option Sales Tax Fund and the LOST Series
2017 Capital Projects Fund. Additionally, ECUA will provide reimbursement of $59,370, which will
offset the cost of the adjustment to their manholes and water valves.

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: Yes
2/14/2020

STAFF CONTACT:

Keith Wilkins, City Administrator
Kerrith Fiddler, Deputy City Administrator - Community Development
L. Derrik Owens, P.E., Director of Public Works and Facilities/City Engineer

ATTACHMENTS:

1) Tabulation of Bids FY 2020 Street Rehabilitation Project
2) FY 2020 Street Rehabilitation Project -Vendor List

3) FY 2020 Street Rehabilitation Map

4) FY 2020 Street Rehabilitation List

PRESENTATION: No
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TABULATION OF BIDS

BID NO: 20-021
TITLE: FY 2020 STREET REHABILITATION

OPENING DATE: February 4, 2020
OPENING TIME: 2:30 P.M.

DEPARTMENT: Public Works & Facilities

MIDSOUTH
PAVING,
INC.

Pensacola, FL

ROADS, INC.
OF NWF

Cantonment, FL

BRIEF DESCRIPTION

Base Bid

Alternate 1

Base Bid plus Alternate 1

Attended Prebid

kkkkkkkkkkkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkhkhkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkhkkkkhkhkhkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkhkhkkkkhkhkhkkkhkhkkkkhkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkhkhkkkkkhkkkkk

$1,071,649.00

$133,814.50

$1,205,463.50

Yes

$1,183,725.65

$140,078.17

$1,323,803.82

Yes

20-021 tab



Opening Date: 02/04/20 Bid No.: 20-021
FINAL VENDOR REFERENCE LIST
FY 2020 STREET REHABILITATION
PUBLIC WORKS

Vendor Name Address City St Zip Code SMWBE
067544 AFFORDABLE CONCRETE & CONSTRUCTION LLC 4089 E JOHNSON AVE PENSACOLA FL 32515 Y
044957  ALL SEASONS CONSTRUCTION LLC 6161 BLUE ANGEL PARKWAY PENSACOLA FL 32526

068495 ANDALA ENTERPRISES INC 641 BAYOU BOULEVARD PENSACOLA FL 32503

053457 BIRKSHIRE JOHNSTONE LLC 11 CLARINDA LANE PENSACOLA FL 32505 Y
070527 BLOWERS, BENJAMIN DBA INNOVIS USA LLC 5540 LEESWAY BLVD PENSACOLA FL 32504

067318 BLUE WATER CONSTRUCTION & LANDSCAPING INC 8863 N EIGHT MILE CREEK ROAD PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
027092 CHAMPION CONTRACTORS INC 505 NORTH FERDON BLVD CRESTVIEW FL 32536

042045 CHAVERS CONSTRUCTION INC 1795 WEST DETROIT BLVD PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
049653 CHRISTOPHER C BARGAINEER CONCRETE CONSTRUCTION INC 6550 BUD JOHNSON ROAD PENSACOLA FL 32505 Y
045454  COASTLINE STRIPING INC 8840 FOWLER AVENUE PENSACOLA FL 32534

060876 CREATIVE PUBLIC AMENITIES 1317 JOHN CARROLL DRIVE PENSACOLA FL 32504 Y
033421 FLOYD BROTHERS CONSTRUCTION 101 EAST 9 1/2 MILE ROAD PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y
053862 GFD CONSTRUCTION INC 8771 ASHLAND AVE PENSACOLA FL 32514

000591 GULF ATLANTIC CONSTRUCTORS INC 650 WEST OAKFIELD RD PENSACOLA FL 32503 Y
074827 GULF COAST MINORITY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE INC 321 N DEVILLERS ST STE 104 PENSACOLA FL 32501

017352 GULF COAST TRAFFIC ENGINEERS 8203 KIPLING STREET PENSACOLA FL 32514

036662 HHHCONSTRUCTION OF NWF INC 8190 BELLE PINES LANE PENSACOLA FL 32526

001597 HEATON BROTHERS CONSTR CO INC 5805 SAUFLEY FIELD ROAD PENSACOLA FL 32526

053163 J2 ENGINEERING INC 2101 WEST GARDEN STREET PENSACOLA FL 32502

071564 JOSEPH BRIDGES DBA JOE'S LINE UP 222 EHRMANN ST PENSACOLA FL 32507

043857 KBI CONSTRUCTION CO INC 9214 WARING RD PENSACOLA FL 32534

068161 LEA, DOUGLAS C DBA L&L CONSTRUCTION SERVICES LLC 9655 SOUTH TRACE ROAD MILTON FL 32583 Y
052456  MEI LING DAVIS LLC PO BOX 18155 PENSACOLA FL 32523

053467 MIDSOUTH PAVING INC PO BOX 385025 BIRMINGHAM AL 35283

001823 NWF CONTRACTORS INC P O BOX 1718 FORT WALTON FL 32549

049208 NWF PAVING AND BLACK TOP INC 3709 WEST BRAINERD STREET PENSACOLA FL 32505

051747 PAEDAE PROPERTIES INC 5104 NORTH W STREET PENSACOLA FL 32505

002720 PANHANDLE GRADING & PAVING INC P O BOX 3717 PENSACOLA FL 32516

030951 PAV'R CONSTRUCTION INC P O BOX1293 GULF BREEZE FL 32562

003956 PENSA CONCRETE CONSTR CO INC P O BOX 2787 PENSACOLA FL 32513

060344 PENSACOLA BAY AREA CHAMBER OF COMMERCE DBA GREATER PENSACOLA CHAMBER 117 W GARDEN ST PENSACOLA FL 32502

000225 PENSACOLA NEWS JOURNAL P O BOX 12710 PENSACOLA FL 32591

064219 POE, JAMIN DBA P3 CONSTRUCTION & ENERGY SOLUTIONS LLC 321 N DEVILLIERS ST STE 208 PENSACOLA FL 32501

066152 PRINCIPLE PROPERTIES INC 4371 MARILYN COURT GULF BREEZE FL 32563 Y
049671 RADFORD & NIX CONSTRUCTION LLC 7014 PINE FOREST ROAD PENSACOLA FL 32526 Y
001681 RANDALL, HENRY DBA RANDALL CONSTRUCTION 1045 S FAIRFIELD DRIVE PENSACOLA FL 32506

031881 ROADS INC OF NWF 106 STONE BLVD CANTONMENT FL 32533

017634 ROBERSON EXCAVATION INC 6013 SOUTHRIDGE ROAD MILTON FL 32570 Y
055499 ROCKWELL CORPORATION 3309 LINGER COURT PENSACOLA FL 32526 Y
065450  SITE AND UTILITY LLC PO BOX 30136 PENSACOLA FL 32503 Y
059753 SITE WORX OF NORTHWEST FL LLC 1450 EVERS HAVEN CANTONMENT FL 32533 Y
057995 T&W BREAKING GROUND LLC 5748 PRINCETON DRIVE PENSACOLA FL 32526

053924 THOMPSON CONTRACTOR RESOURCES INC 196 E NINE MILE RD SUITE C PENSACOLA FL 32534

062939 THREE TRADE CONSULTANTS 5690 JEFF ATES RD MILTON FL 32583

032732 WALLER, DONALD DBA NORTHCOAST CONTAINER INC 2325 MID PINE CIRCLE PENSACOLA FL 32514

044856 WOLFE CONSTRUCTION 40 W NINE MILE ROAD #2 SUITE 212 PENSACOLA FL 32534 Y

|Vendors: 46
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for the function of this office only. It is not intended for conveyance
noris it a survey. The data is not guaranteed accurate or suitable
for any use other than that for which it was gathered.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA

2020 City of Pensacola Resurfacing

Main Roadway From To

S K St Cypress St Sanders Beach Parking lot

N 14th Ave E La Rua St E Gregory St

W La Rua St N Coyle St N Rues St

W Belmont N Coyle St N Rues St

E La Rua St N Palafox St N Guillemard St

E Belmont St N Palafox St N Guillemard St

Langley Ave Spanish Trail Scenic Hwy

E Brainerd St N Hayne St N Davis Ave

E Gadsden St N 6th Ave N 8th Ave

Shannon Place Monteigne End

Monteigne Summit Blvd Wimbledon

W Jackson St N G St N A St

E Jordan St N Davis Hwy N 12th Ave

N 10th Ave E Scott St E Cross St

N 11th Ave E Hatton St E Cross St

Summit Blvd N 12th Ave Firestone Dr

W Chase St N A St N DeVilliers St

W Government St [N ASt Barrancas Ave

W Romana St S DeVilliers St S Spring St
Alternative 1

N Barcelona St W Wright St W Gregroy St

W Gregory St N Palafox St N Spring

S Spring St W Garden St W Romana

N Tarragona St Gregory Sq E Garden St




City of Pensacola Pensacola, L. 32502
Memorandum
File #: 20-00094 City Council 2/27/2020

LEGISLATIVE ACTION ITEM

SPONSOR: City Council Vice President Jared Moore

SUBJECT:

FEDERAL COURTHOUSE PARKING LEASE - NORTH PALAFOX LOT
RECOMMENDATION:

That the City Council approve a lease with the United States Government for Federal Courthouse
parking at the North Palafox Parking Lot. Further that City Council authorize the Mayor, if necessary,
to execute all necessary documents.

HEARING REQUIRED: No Hearing Required
SUMMARY:

The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) property at the southwest corner of North Palafox
and Gregory Streets is developed as a public parking lot. Pursuant to and concurrent with the City of
Pensacola’s (City) lease of the property on North Palafox and Garden Streets to the United States
Government for construction of the Federal Courthouse building, the CRA leased 73 parking spaces
in the lot to the City for sublease to the United States Government for the Federal Courthouse and its
related offices.

The term of the CRA’s parking lease with the City coincided with the term of the Courthouse lease
and terminated upon its termination. Upon the expiration of the leases, the City sold the Courthouse
property to the United States Government. The Office of Administrator of General Services (GSA) is
now pursuing a new lease with the CRA to meet the continued parking needs of the Courthouse.

Staff recommends approving a new lease for 45 spaces in the North Palafox Parking Lot to the
United States Government for Federal Courthouse parking. The requested term is 20 years,
beginning April 1, 2020. The CRA will have the option to terminate the lease after the 5th year with
120 days prior notice. The GSA may terminate the lease after one (1) year with 90 days prior notice.

Annual parking rent to be collected under the lease during the 1st five-year term is $16,200.00, which
is a rate of $30.00 per space per month and will increase at the end of each 5-year increment based
on a 2% escalation schedule. Parking revenues will continue to be collected and retained by the
Downtown Improvement Board (DIB) pursuant to the Downtown Parking Management District

Page 1 of 2



File #: 20-00094 City Council 2/27/2020

Interlocal Agreement.
PRIOR ACTION:
January 10, 2020 - CRA Board approved the above referenced lease

December 12, 1996 - CRA executed a lease with the City of Pensacola for 73 spaces in the North
Palafox Parking Lot for sublease to the GSA for the United States Federal Courthouse.

FUNDING:

N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT:

Annual parking lease revenue of $16,200.00 will be collected and retained by the DIB during the 1st
five-year term and will increase at the end of each 5-year increment based on a 2% escalation
schedule.

STAFF CONTACT:

Don Kraher, Council Executive
M. Helen Gibson, AICP, CRA Administrator
Victoria D’Angelo, Assistant CRA Administrator

ATTACHMENTS:

1) Lease of Real Property - GSA Form 3626
2) Lease Amendment No. 1

3) Section 889 Addendum

4) Parking Plan Map

5) Supplemental Lease Requirements

6) Facility Security Level 1

7) General Clauses - GSA Form 3517A

PRESENTATION: No
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U.S. GOVERNMENT LEASE FOR REAL PROPERTY

(Short Form)

1. LEASE NUMBER
GS-04P-LFL00847

PART | - OFFER (Offeror completes Section A, C and D; Government shall complete Section B)

NOTE: All offers are subject to the terms and conditions outlined in Request for Lease Proposals No. 8FL2425 , Supplemental Lease
Requirements document, General Clauses (GSA Form 3517A), and any other attachments included herein.

A. LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES OFFERED FOR LEASE BY GOVERNMENT

1. NAME AND ADDRESS OF 2. LOCATION(S) IN BUILDING
BUILDING (Include nine-digit
ZIP Code)
N. Palafox Surface 2a. FLOOR(S) 2b. ROOM NUMBER(S) | 26 NUMBER OF PARKING SPACES
OFFERED
Parking Lot NA NA STRUCTURED NA
54 W. Gregory St.
gory 2c.5Q. FT. 2d.  TYPE SURFACE 45
Pensacola FL 32502 ANNUAL PARKING RATES (IF NOT
RENTABLE ~ NA O GENERAL OFFICE INCLUDED IN RATES UNDER PART C
ABOA NA [0 WAREHOUSE BELOW)
Common Area Factor X OTHER (Specify) STRUCTURED NA/space
NA Parking Space Only SURFACE __ Ispace

B. TERM

3a. To Have and To Hold the said Premises with its appurtenances for the term beginning upon acceptance of the Premises as required by this
Lease and continuing for a period of 20 Years, 1 Year Firm, subject to termination and renewal rights as may be hereinafter set forth. The
commencement date of this Lease, along with any applicable termination and renewal rights, shall be more specifically set forth in a Lease
Amendment upon substantial completion and acceptance of the Space by the Government.

3b. The Government may terminate this Lease, in whole or in parts, at any time effective after the Firm Term of this Lease, by providing not less than
90 days’ prior written notice to the Lessor. The effective date of the termination shall be the day following the expiration of the required notice period
or the termination date set forth in the notice, whichever is later. No rental shall accrue after the effective date of termination.

3c. This Lease may be renewed at the option of the Government for a term of 0 YEARS at the rental rate(s) set forth below, provided notice is given
to the Lessor at least NA days before the end of the original Lease term; all other terms and conditions of this Lease, as same may have been
amended, shall remain in full force and effect during any renewal term.

C. RENTAL

4. Rent shall be payable in arrears and will be due on the first workday of each month. When the date for commencement of the lease falls after the
15th day of the month, the initial rental payment shall be due on the first workday of the second month following the commencement date. Rent for a
period of less than a month shall be prorated. Rent shall not be adjusted for changes in real estate taxes or operating costs.

5a. AMOUNT OF ANNUAL RENT 5b. RATE PER MONTH
$16,200 Parking Rent Only $1,350.00 Parking Rent Only
RENTAL RATE BREAKDOWN FIRM TERM NON-FIRM TERM RENEWAL TERM
(3/RSF/YEAR) ($/RSF/YEAR) (3/RSF/YEAR)
6. BUILDING SHELL RENT 6a. SNA 6b. Same as 6a 6¢c. SNA
(INCL. REAL ESTATE TAXES)
7. OPERATING RENT 7a. $NA 7b. Same as 7a 7b. Same as 7a
8. TURNKEY TENANT 8a. $NA 8b. $0.00 8c. $0.00
IMPROVEMENT RENT
(See blocks 11 and 12 below
for additional breakdown of
cost and amortization rate )
9. BUILDING SPECIFIC 9a. $NA 9b. $0.00 9c. $0.00
AMORTIZED CAPITAL (IF
APPLICABLE)
10. TOTAL RENT 10a. $NA 10b. $NA 10c. $NA
11. TENANT IMPROVEMENT COSTS 12. INTEREST RATE TO AMORTIZE TENANT
NA IMPROVEMENTS
NA
13. HVAC OVERTIME RATE PER HOUR NA 14.  ADJUSTMENT FOR VACANT PREMISES RATE
($/ABOA SF/YEAR) NA

GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION
Page 1 of 2

GSA ForM 3626 (REV 3/18)



D. OWNER IDENTIFICATION AND CERTIFICATION

15. RECORDED OWNER
15a. Name 15b. DUNS Number
Community Redevelopment Agency c/o Downtown Improvement Board 962262932

15c. Address 15d. City 15e. State 15f. ZIP + 4
226 S. Palafox Place Pensacola FL 32502
Suite 106

16. BY SUBMITTING THIS OFFER, THE OFFEROR AGREES UPON ACCEPTANCE OF THIS PROPOSAL BY HEREIN SPECIFIED DATE, TO
LEASE TO THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, THE PREMISES DESCRIBED, UPON THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS AS SPECIFIED
HEREIN, IN FULL COMPLIANCE WITH AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE AFOREMENTIONED RLP, WITH ATTACHMENTS.

X | have read the RLP with attachments in its entirety and am requesting no deviations
17. OFFEROR'S INTEREST IN PROPERTY

O OWNER [ AUTHORIZED AGENT O OTHER (Specify)
18. OFFEROR [] Check if same as Recorded Owner
18a. NAME 18b. ADDRESS 18c. CITY 18d. STATE 18e. ZIP + 4
Downtown Improvement 226 S. Palafox PI Suite Pensacola FL 32502
Board - Lissa Dees 106
18f. Title 18g. E-mail address 18h. Telephone Number
Executive Director -- Downtown Improvvement | lissad@downtownpensacola.com 850-434-5371
Board
18i. OFFEROR’S SIGNATURE 18j. DATE SIGNED

PART Il - AWARD (To be completed by Government)

1. Your offer is hereby accepted. This award consummates the lease which consists of the following attached documents: (a) this GSA Form 3626,
(b) Supplemental Lease Requirements, (c) Security Requirements, (d) Parking Plan delineating the Premises, (e) GSA Form 3517A, General Clauses
(Acquisition of Leasehold Interests in Real Property for Small Leases),

The Government will be provided 45 exclusive use surface parking spaces from Monday to Friday between the hours of 7:00am to 5:00pm.
Registered vehicles will not be ticketed at any time if the registered vehicle is parked outside of the above mentioned days and times.

The 45 exclusive use surface parking spaces will be labeled “RESERVED” without any reference to the Government.

The US Courts will provide contact information to the Downtown Improvement Board for a designated contact with the US Courts who will manage
the US Court Employees information within the parking database used by the Downtown Improvement Board for the purposes of parking permitting
and enforcement. This would include managing the information for each employee — Name, license plate number, alternate license plate number(s)
and vehicle description(s).

2. THIS DOCUMENT IS NOT BINDING ON THE GOVERNMENT OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA UNLESS SIGNED BELOW BY
AUTHORIZED LEASE CONTRACTING OFFICER.

3a. NAME OF LEASE CONTRACTING OFFICER (Type or Print) 3b. SIGNATURE OF LEASE 3c. DATE
CONTRACTING OFFICER

GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION GSA FORM 3626 (REV 3/18)
Page 2 of 2



GENERAL SERVICES ADMINISTRATION LEASE AMENDMENT No. 1
PUBLIC BUILDINGS SERVICE

TO LEASE NO. GS-04P-LFL00847
LEASE AMENDMENT
IADDRESS OF PREMISES PDN Number: NA
North Palafox Surface Parking Lot
54 West Gregory Street
Pensacola, FL 32502

THIS AMENDMENT is made and entered into between

Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) of the City of Pensacola,
c/o Managed by Downtown Improvement Board (DIB)

whose address is:

222 West Main Street, Pensacola, FL 32502 (CRA)

226 S. Palafox Place, Suite 106, Pensacola, FL 32502 (DIB)
hereinafter called the Lessor, and the UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, hereinafter called the Government:
WHEREAS, the parties hereto desire to establish the commencement date of the above Lease.

NOW THEREFORE, these parties for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, covenant and agree that the said Lease is amended, effective April 1, 2020 as follows:

A. GSA Form 3626, Part |, Section B. TERM, the Lease is hereby amended to establish the commencement date as follows:

3a. TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the said premises with their appurtenances for the term beginning on April 1, 2020 through March 31,
2040, subject to termination and renewal rights as may be hereinafter set forth.

3b. The Government may terminate this Lease, in whole or in part, at any time effective after the Firm Term of this Lease, by providing no
less than 120 days’ prior written notice to the Lessor. The effective date of the termination shall be the day following the expiration of

This Lease Amendment contains 2 pages.

All other terms and conditions of the lease shall remain in force and effect.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties subscribed their names as of the below date.

FOR THE LESSOR: FOR THE GOVERNMENT:

Signature: Signature:

Name: Name:

Title: Title: Lease Contracting Officer

Entity Name: GSA, Public Buildings Service, Leasing Division
Date: Date:

WITNESSED FOR THE LESSOR BY:

Signature:
Name:
Title:

Date:

Lease Amendment Form 12/12



Lease Amendment No. 1 — GS-04P-LFL00847 PAGE 2 of2

the required notice period or the termination date set forth in the notice, whichever is later. No rental shall accrue after the effective
date of termination.”

The Lessor may terminate this Lease, in whole or in part, after the fifth (5‘“) year of this Lease, by providing not less than 120
days’ prior written notice to the Government. The effective date of the termination shall be the day following the expiration of the
required notice period or the termination date set forth in the notice, whichever is later. No rental shall accrue after the effective date of
termination.”

The Lessor anticipates the possibility of redevelopment of the leased parking space into a mixed used space after the fifth year
of the lease. The Lessor will cooperate with the Government and make all reasonable efforts within its authority to provide, without
guaranteeing, alternate parking for the Government.

B. GSA Form 3626, Part I, Section C. RENTAL, the Lease is hereby amended to establish the rental rates as follows:

“The Government shall pay the Lessor annual rent for the entire term, monthly, in arrears, as follows:

Firm Term Non-Firm Non-Firm Non-Firm Non-Firm
Term? Term® Term® Term®
4/1/2020 - 4/1/2021 - 4/1/2025 - 4/1/2030 - 4/1/2035 -
3/31/2021 3/31/2025 3/31/2030 3/31/2035 3/31/2040
Annual Rent Annual Rent Annual Rent Annual Rent Annual Rent
Parking1 $16,200.00 $16,200.00 $16,524.00 $16,855.00 $17,195.00
Total Annual Rent $16,200.00 $16,200.00 $16,524.00 $16,855.00 $17,195.00

! Parking costs calculation:
(Firm Term) Parking cost are for forty-five (45) surface parking spaces reflecting a rate of $30.00 per surface parking space per month.
(Non-Firm Term®) Parking cost are for forty-five (45) surface parking spaces reflecting a rate of $30.00 per surface parking space per month.
(Non-Firm Termb) Parking cost are for forty-five (45) surface parking spaces reflecting a rate of $30.60 per surface parking space per month.
(Non-Firm Term®) Parking cost are for forty-five (45) surface parking spaces reflecting a rate of $31.21 per surface parking space per month.
( )

Non-Firm Term®) Parking cost are for forty-five (45) surface parking spaces reflecting a rate of $31.84 per surface parking space per month.

C. Attachments:
1. FAR representation, 52.204-24, entitled “Representation Regarding Certain Telecommunications and Video

Surveillance Services or Equipment.” (2 Pages)

D. The remainder of this page was left intentionally blank.

INITIALS: &
LESSOR GOV'T
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Representation Regarding Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services

or Equipment (Acquisitions of Leasehold Interests in Real Property)

Complete appropriate boxes, sign the form, and return form, along with any other required disclosure
information, to LCO or his/her designee. The Offeror makes the following additional Representations.
NOTE: The "Offeror," as used on this form, is the owner of the property offered, not an individual or agent
representing the owner.

52.204-24 Representation Regarding Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or
Equipment (AUG 2019)

(a)

(c)

(d)

Definitions. As used in this clause-

“Covered telecommunications equipment or services”, “Critical technology”, and “Substantial or
essential component” have the meanings provided in FAR 52.204-25, Prohibition on Contracting
for Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment.

Prohibition. Section 889(a)(1)(A) of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for
Fiscal Year 2019 (Pub. L. 115-232) prohibits the head of an executive agency on or after August
13, 2019, from procuring or obtaining, or extending or renewing a contract to procure or obtain,
any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services
as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any
system. Contractors are not prohibited from providing-

(1) A service that connects to the facilities of a third-party, such as backhaul, roaming, or
interconnection arrangements; or

(2) Telecommunications equipment that cannot route or redirect user data traffic or permit
visibility into any user data or packets that such equipment transmits or otherwise handles.

Representation. The Contractor shall notify the Contracting Officer if it [ ] will or [X] will not
[Contractor to complete] provide covered telecommunications equipment or services to the
Government in the performance of any contract, subcontract, order, or other contractual
instrument resulting from this contract. This representation shall be provided as part of the
proposal and resubmitted on an annual basis from the date of award.

Disclosures. If the Contractor has responded affirmatively to the representation in paragraph (c)
of this clause, the Contractor shall provide the following additional information to the Contracting
Officer--

(1) All covered telecommunications equipment and services offered (include brand; model
number, such as original equipment manufacturer (OEM) number, manufacturer part
number, or wholesaler number; and item description, as applicable);

(2) Explanation of the proposed use of covered telecommunications equipment and services
and any factors relevant to determining if such use would be permissible under the
prohibition in paragraph (b) of this provision;

LESSOR: GOVERNMENT: Representation Regarding Certain
Telecommunications and Video

Surveillance Services or Equipment

REV (08/19)

Page 1



3)

(4)

For services, the entity providing the covered telecommunications services (include entity
name, unique entity identifier, and Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) code, if
known); and

For equipment, the entity that produced the covered telecommunications equipment (include
entity name, unique entity identifier, CAGE code, and whether the entity was the OEM or a
distributor, if known).

OFFEROR OR
LEGALLY
AUTHORIZED

REPRESENTATIVE

NAME, ADDRESS (INCLUDING ZIP CODE) | TELEPHONE NUMBER

Signature Date

LESSOR: GOVERNMENT: Representation Regarding Certain
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SECTION 1 GENERAL TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND STANDARDS

1.01 DEFINITIONS AND GENERAL TERMS (SMALL) (SEP 2015)

Unless otherwise specifically noted, all terms and conditions set forth in this Lease shall be interpreted by reference to the following definitions,
standards, and formulas:

A INTENTIONALLY DELETED
B. INTENTIONALLY DELETED
C. Space. The Space shall refer to that part of the Premises to which the Government has exclusive use, such as Office Area, or other type of

Space. Parking areas to which the Government has rights under this Lease are not included in the Space.

D. INTENTIONALLY DELETED

1.02 PUBLIC TRANSPORTATON(SMALL)(SEP-2015) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

1.03 AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES (OCT 2016)

Signatories to this Lease shall have full authority to bind their respective principals with regard to all matters relating to this Lease. No other persons
shall be understood to have any authority to bind their respective principals except to the extent that such authority may be explicitly delegated by
notice to the other party, or to the extent that such authority is transferred by succession of interest. The Government shall have the right to substitute
its Lease Contracting Officer (LCO) by notice without an express delegation by the prior LCO.

1.04
INTENTIONALLY DELETED

1.05 WAIVER OF RESTORATION (OCT 2018)

Lessor shall have no right to require the Government to restore the Premises upon expiration or earlier termination (full or partial) of the Lease, and
waives all claims against the Government for waste, damages, or restoration arising from or related to (a) the Government's normal and customary
use of the Premises during the term of the Lease (including any extensions thereof), as well as (b) any initial or subsequent alteration to the Premises
regardless of whether such alterations are performed by the Lessor or by the Government. At its sole option, the Government may abandon property



in the Space following expiration or earlier termination (full or partial) of the Lease, in which case the property will become the property of the Lessor,
and the Government will be relieved of any liability in connection therewith.
1.06 NOVATION AND CHANGE OF OWNERSHIP (SMALL) (OCT 2016)

Consistent with GSAM 570.115, in the event of a transfer of ownership of the leased premises or a change in the Lessor’s legal name, FAR 42.12
applies.

1.07 ASBESTOS (SMALL) (SEP 2015)

The leased space shall be free of all asbestos containing materials, except undamaged asbestos flooring in the space or undamaged boiler or pipe
insulation outside the space, in which case an asbestos management program conforming to Environmental Protection Agency guidance shall be
implemented. The space shall be free of other hazardous materials and in compliance with applicable Federal, State, and local environmental laws
and regulations. If asbestos abatement work is to be performed in the Space after occupancy, the Lessor shall submit to the Government the occupant
safety plan and a description of the methods of abatement and re-occupancy clearance, in accordance with OSHA, EPA, DOT, state, and local
regulations and guidance, at least 4 weeks prior to the abatement work.

1.08 ADJUSTMENTFORREDUCED SERVICES(SMALL){OCT2018) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

LEASE NO. GS-04P-LFL00847, PAGE 3 LESSOR: GOVERNMENT:
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SECTION 2 CONSTRUCTION STANDARDS AND SHELL COMPONENTS

2.01 WORK PERFORMANCE (SMALL) (SEP 2015)

All work in performance of this Lease shall be done by skilled and licensed workers or mechanics and shall be acceptable to the LCO.

2.02 ENVIRONMENTALLY PREFERABLE PRODUCTS REQUIREMENTS (OCT 2017)

A. The Lessor must provide environmentally preferable products as detailed throughout individual paragraphs of this Lease.

B. When individual paragraphs of this Lease do not contain specific requirements for environmentally preferable products, the Lessor must

provide products meeting at least one of the environmentally preferable criteria as outlined under the Green Procurement Compilation at
WWW.SFTOOL.GOV/GREENPROCUREMENT to determine whether any of these criteria are applicable for a product category.

C. The Lessor, if unable to comply with the environmentally preferable products requirements above, must submit a waiver request for each
material to the LCO within the Tl pricing submittal. The waiver request shall be based on the following exceptions:

1. Product cannot be acquired competitively within a reasonable performance schedule.

2. Product cannot be acquired that meets reasonable performance requirements.

3. Product cannot be acquired at a reasonable price.

4.  An exception is provided by statute.
The price shall be deemed unreasonable when the total life cycle costs are significantly higher for the sustainable product versus the non-sustainable
product. Life cycle costs are determined by combining the initial costs of a product with any additional costs or revenues generated from that product
during its entire life.

2.03 EXISTHNG-FIT-OUT-SALVAGED-OR REUSED BUILDING-MATERIAL{SMALL)}{SEP-2015) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

The Lessor shall reuse items or materials in the construction phase of the project, as long as such meet the quality standards set forth by the
Government in this Lease.

2.04 WOODPRODUCTS{SMALL)}{OCT2016)-INTENTIONALLY DELETED
2.05 ADHESIVES-AND-SEALANTS{(OCT2017)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

2.06 BUILDING-SHELL REQUIREMENTS{(SMALL){(OCT2016) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

2.07 RESPONSIBILITY OF THE LESSOR AND LESSOR’S ARCHITECT/ENGINEER (SMALL) (SEP 2015)

THE LESSOR REMAINS SOLELY RESPONSIBLE FOR DESIGNING, CONSTRUCTING, OPERATING, AND MAINTAINING THE LEASED
PREMISES IN FULL ACCORDANCE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE LEASE. The Lessor shall, without additional compensation, correct or
revise any errors or deficiencies in its designs, drawings, specifications, or other services, as noted by the Government’s review or otherwise.

2.08 MEANS OF EGRESS (MAY 2015)

A. Prior to occupancy, the Premises and any parking garage areas shall meet or will be upgraded to meet either the applicable egress
requirements in the National Fire Protection Association, Life Safety Code (NFPA 101) or the International Code Council, International Building Code
(IBC), each current as of the Lease Award Date, or use an alternative approach or method that achieves an equivalent level of safety deemed
acceptable by the Government.

B. The Space shall have unrestricted access to a minimum of two remote exits on each floor of Government occupancy.

C. Interlocking or scissor stairs located on the floor(s) where Space is located shall only count as one exit stair.

D. A fire escape located on the floor(s) where Space is located shall not be counted as an approved exit stair.

E Doors shall not be locked in the direction of egress unless equipped with special locking hardware in accordance with requirements of NFPA

101 or the IBC.

2.09 AUTOMATIC FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEM (SEP 2013)
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A. Any portion of the Space located below-grade, including parking garage areas, and all areas in a Building referred to as "hazardous areas"
(defined in National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) 101) that are located within the entire Building (including non-Government areas) shall be
protected by an automatic fire sprinkler system or an equivalent level of safety.

2.10 FIRE-ALARM-SYSTEM-(SEP2013)-INTENTIONALLY DELETED

211 ENERGY-INDEPENDENCE-AND-SECURITY-ACT(SMALL)}(SEP-2015)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

212 ELEVATORS{(SMALL)(OCT2016)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

213 DEMOLITION (JUN 2012)

Any demolition of existing improvements that is necessary to satisfy the Government'’s layout shall be done at the Lessor’s expense.

214 ACCESSIBILITY (FEB 2007)

The Building, leased Space, and areas serving the leased Space shall be accessible to persons with disabilities in accordance with the Architectural

Barriers Act Accessibility Standard (ABAAS), Appendices C and D to 36 CFR Part 1191 (ABA Chapters 1 and 2, and Chapters 3 through 10). To the
extent the standard referenced in the preceding sentence conflicts with local accessibility requirements, the more stringent shall apply.

2.15 CEILINGS{SMALL)}(OCT2047)-INTENTIONALLY DELETED

2.16 3) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

217 WINDOWS{(SMALL)(SEP-2015) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

2.18 PARTTIONS: PERMANENT(SMALL){SEP2015) INTENTIONALLY DELETED
219 INSULATION:—THERMAL;-ACOUSTIC;- AND-HVAC(SMALL)(SEP-2015) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

2.20 PAINTING - SHELL (SMALL) (AUG 2016)

The Lessor shall bear the expense for all painting associated with the Building shell including all common areas. Exterior perimeter walls and interior
core walls within the Space shall be spackled and prime painted with low VOC primer. If any Building shell areas are already painted prior to Tls, then
the Lessor shall repaint, at the Lessor’s expense, as necessary during Tls.

2.21 FLOORS-AND-FLOOR LOAD-(AUG-2011)-INTENTIONALLY DELETED

2.22 MECHANICAL, ELECTRICAL, PLUMBING: GENERAL (SMALL) (SEP 2015)

A. The Lessor shall be responsible for meeting the applicable requirements of all federal, state, and local codes and ordinances. When codes
conflict, the more stringent standard shall apply.

B. The Lessor shall provide and operate all Building equipment and systems in accordance with applicable technical publications, manuals, and
standard procedures.

C. Convenience outlets shall be installed in accordance with NFPA Standard 70, National Electrical Code, or local code, whichever is more
stringent. The Lessor shall provide duplex utility outlets in restrooms, corridors, and dispensing areas.

2.23 DRINKING FOUNTAINS (OCT-2018)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

2.24 RESTROOMS(SMALL)}(SEP-2015)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

2.25 PLUMBING FIXTURES: WATER CONSERVATION (SMALL) (OCT 2016)

For new installations and whenever plumbing fixtures are being replaced), all fixtures must conform to EPA WaterSense.: Information on EPA
WaterSense fixtures can be found at_ HTTP:/WWW.EPA.GOV/WATERSENSE/.

2.26 HEATING- VENTH-ATION;-AND-AIR-CONDITHONING —SHELL(SIMPLIFIED}(OCT2016) INTENTIONALLY DELETED
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2.27 5) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

2.28 FELECOMMUNICATIONS:LOCALEXCHANGE-ACCESS{SIMPLIFIED)-{JUN-2012) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

2.29 LIGHTING: INTERIOR AND PARKING — SHELL (SMALL) (OCT 2016)

NOTE: FOR PRICING ESTIMATING PURPOSES, FIXTURES WILL BE INSTALLED AT THE AVERAGE RATIO OF 1 FIXTURE PER 80 ABOA SF.

A INTENTIONALLY DELETED
B. INTENTIONALLY DELETED
C. INTENTIONALLY DELETED
D. BUILDING PERIMETER: Exterior parking areas, vehicle driveways, pedestrian walks, and the Building perimeter lighting levels shall be

designed per llluminating Engineering Society (IES) standards. Provide 5 foot-candles for doorway areas, 3 foot-candles for transition areas and at
least 1 foot-candle at the surface throughout the parking lot. Parking lot fixtures shall provide a maximum to minimum uniformity ratio of 15:1 and a
maximum to average uniformity ratio of 4:1..

E. PARKING STRUCTURES: The minimum illuminance level for parking structures is 3 foot-candles as measured on the floor with a uniformity
ratio of 10:1.
F. EXTERIOR POWER BACKUP: Exterior egress, walkway, parking lot, and parking structure lighting must have emergency power backup to

provide for safe evacuation of the Building.

2.30 6) INTENTIONALLY DELETED
2.31 5} INTENTIONALLY DELETED
LEASE NO. GS-04P-LFL00847, PAGE 6 LESSOR: GOVERNMENT:
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SECTION 3 DESIGN, CONSTRUCTION, AND POST AWARD ACTIVITIES

3.01 SCHEDULE FOR COMPLETION-OF- SPACE(SIMPLIFIED){SEP-2013)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

3.02 ACCESS TO THE GOVERNMENT PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE (SIMPLIFIED) (SEP 2015)
Subject to the Lessor's permission, which shall not be unreasonably withheld, the Government or its contractors shall have access to the Premises
prior to acceptance of the Space to prepare the Space for occupancy. If the work to be completed by the Government is a prerequisite for the

issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy, or its equivalent, the Government shall be entitled to at least 10 Working Days to complete work by its own
contractors.

3.03 ACCEPTANCE-OF- SPACE-AND-CERTIFICATE - OF OCCUPANCY(SIMPLIFIED)(SEP-2015)INTENTIONALLY DELETED
3.04 LEASE TERM COMMENCEMENT DATE AND RENT RECONCILIATION (SMALL) (SEP 2015)

The Lease Term Commencement Date, and final measurement verification of the Premises, shall be memorialized by Lease Amendment.

3.05 AS-BUILT DRAWINGS-(SMALL)}(SEP-2015)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

3.06 SEISMIC- RETROFIT(SEP2013) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

LEASE NO. GS-04P-LFL00847, PAGE 7 LESSOR: GOVERNMENT:
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SECTION 4 TENANT IMPROVEMENT COMPONENTS

4.01 TENANT IMPROVEMENTS AND PRICING (SMALL) (SEP 2015)
A. The Lease is a fully serviced, turnkey Lease with a fixed rent that covers all Lessor costs, including all demolition, shell upgrades, Tls,
insurance, operating costs, taxes, parking, and security upgrades. Rent will be based upon a proposed rental rate per rentable square foot
(RSF), limited by the offered rate and the maximum ABOA SF solicited under this RLP. The Tenant Improvements to be delivered by the
Lessor will be based upon information provided with this Lease, The Lessor will be required to design and build the Tls and will be
compensated for the Tl costs through the rent. Offerors are encouraged to consider the use of existing fit-out and other improvements to
minimize waste.
B. The Government shall have the right to make lump sum payments for any or all Tl work.
4.02 FINISHSELECTIONS(SMALL)(SEP-2015)INTENTIONALLY DELETED
4.03 WINDOW-COVERINGS{(SIMPLIFIED)(AUG-2011)-INTENTIONALLY DELETED
4.04 DOORS:—SUITE ENTRY(SEP-2013) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

4.05 DOORS:INTERIOR(SMALL)}(SEP-2015)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

4.06 DOORS:- HARDWARE (SMALL)}(SEP-2015)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED
4.07 PARTITIONS:-SUBDIVIDING(SMALL)}SEP2015)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

4.08 PAINTING —TFHSMALL)}SEP2015)INTENTIONALLY DELETED

4.09 FLOOR COVERINGS-AND-PERIMETERS{SMALL)}(OCT2047) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

4.10 HEATING-AND-AIR CONDITHIONING{SMALL)(SEP-2015)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

4.11 ELECTRICAL:DISTRIBUTION(SMALL)}{SEP2015)INTENTIONALLY DELETED

4.12 FELECOMMUNICATIONS:DISTRIBUHON-AND-EQUIPMENT(JUN-2012) INTENTIONALLY DELETED
4.13 FELECOMMUNICATIONS:LOCAL EXCHANGE -ACCESS{AUG-2008) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

4.14 DATA DISTRIBUTHON-(JUN-2042)-INTENTIONALLY DELETED
4.15 ELECTRICAL; TELEPHONE DATA FOR SYSTEMS-FURNITURE(JUN-2012) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

4.16 LIGHTING: INTERIOR AND PARKING - Tl (SMALL) (SEP 2015)
FIXTURES: Any additional lighting fixtures and/or components required beyond what would have been provided under the paragraph, “Lighting:
Interior and Parking — Shell (SMALL)"are part of the Tls.

LEASE NO. GS-04P-LFL00847, PAGE 8 LESSOR: GOVERNMENT:
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SECTION 5 UTILITIES, SERVICES, AND OBLIGATIONS DURING THE LEASE TERM

5.01 PROVISION OF SERVICES, ACCESS, AND NORMAL HOURS (SIMPLIFIED) (JUN 2012)

The Government’s normal hours of operations are established as 7:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday, with the exception of Federal holidays.
Services, maintenance, and utilities shall be provided during these hours. The Government shall have access to the Premises and its Appurtenant
Areas at all times without additional payment, including the use, during other than normal hours, of necessary services and utilities such as elevators,
restrooms, lights, and electric power. Cleaning shall be performed during normal hours.

5.02 UTILITIES (APR 2011)The Lessor is responsible for providing all utilities necessary for base Building and tenant operations as part of the
rental consideration.

5.03 HEATING-AND-AIR CONDITIONING(SMALL)(OCT2018)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

5.04 OVERHME-HVAC USAGE (SMALL)(SEP2016) INTENTIONALLY DELETED
5.05 JANITORIAL SERVICES (SMALL) (SEP 2015)
The Lessor shall maintain the Premises and all areas of the Property to which the Government has routine access in a clean condition and shall

provide supplies and equipment for the term of the Lease. The following schedule describes the level of services intended. Performance will be
based on the LCO’s evaluation of results, not the frequency or method of performance.

A. Daily. Police sidewalks, parking areas, and driveways.
C. As required. Properly maintain plants and lawns. Provide initial supply, installation, and replacement of light bulbs, tubes, ballasts, and

starters. Provide and empty exterior ash cans and clean area of any discarded cigarette bultts. Remove snow and ice from entrances, exterior walks,
and parking lots of the building by the beginning of the normal working hours and continuing throughout the day

D. Pest control. Control pests as appropriate, using Integrated Pest Management techniques, as specified in the GSA Environmental
Management Integrated Pest Management Technique Guide (E402-1001).

5.06 SELECTION OF CLEANING PRODUCTS (SMALL) (SEP 2015)

The Lessor shall use cleaning products (including general purpose cleaners, floor cleaners, hand soap, etc.) that comply with either the Green Seal
standard, the UL/EcoLogo standard, EPA’s Design for the Environment (DfE) designation, or a substitute acceptable to the LCO. Hand soap products
shall also be USDA Certified BioPreferred.

5.07 SELECTION OF PAPER PRODUCTS (APR 2015)

The Lessor shall select paper and paper products (e.g., restroom tissue and paper towels) conforming to the Green Seal Standard (GS-1), or a
substitute acceptable to the LCO.

5.08 MAINTENANCE-OF PROVIDED-FINISHES{SMALL)(SEP2015)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

5.09 IDENTITY VERIFICATION OF PERSONNEL (OCT 2016)

A. The Government reserves the right to verify identities of personnel with routine and/or unaccompanied access to the Government's Space,
including both pre and post occupancy periods. The Lessor shall comply with the agency personal identity verification procedures below that
implement Homeland Security Presidential Directive-12 (HSPD-12), Office of Management and Budget (OMB) guidance M-05-24 and M-11-11, and
Federal Information Processing Standards Publication (FIPS PUB) Number 201, as amended. These policies require the Government to conduct
background investigations and make HSPD-12 compliant suitability determinations for all persons with routine or unaccompanied access to
Government leased Space. By definition, this includes at a minimum each employee of the Lessor, as well as employees of the Lessor's contractors or
subcontractors who will provide building operating services requiring routine access to the Government’s leased Space for a period greater than 6
months. The Government may also require this information for the Lessor's employees, contractors, or subcontractors who will be engaged to perform
alterations or emergency repairs in the Government’s Space.

B. Application Process: The background investigation will be done using the Government's prescribed process. The Lessor must provide
information on each of their contractor/personnel meeting the above criteria to the Government, whereupon each identified contractor/personnel will be
notified with instructions for completing the identity verification application within a given time frame. The application process will include completing
supplemental information forms that must be inputted into the identity verification system in order for the application to be considered complete.
Additionally, the Lessor must ensure prompt completion of the fingerprint process for their contractor/personnel. Email notifications will be sent with
instructions on the steps to be taken to schedule an appointment for fingerprinting at an approved regional location along with instructions on how to
complete the background investigation application.
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C. The Lessor must ensure the Lease Contracting Officer (or the Lease Contracting Officer's designated representative) has all of the requested
documentation timely to ensure the completion of the investigation.

D. Based on the information furnished, the Government will conduct background investigations. The Lease Contracting Officer will advise the
Lessor in writing if a person fails the investigation, and, effective immediately, that person will no longer be allowed to work or be assigned to work in
the Government’s Space.

E. Throughout the life of the Lease, the Lessor shall provide the same data for any new employees, contractors, or subcontractors who will be
assigned to the Government’s Space in accordance with the above criteria. In the event the Lessor's contractor or subcontractor is subsequently
replaced, the new contractor or subcontractor is not required to have persons re-apply who were cleared through this process while associated with
the former contractor or subcontractor in accordance with GSA policy. The Lessor shall require each cleared person to re-apply and obtain a new
clearance in accordance with GSA policy.

F. The Lessor is accountable for not allowing contractors to start work without the successful completion of the appropriate background
investigation as required by GSA policy.

G. Access Card Retrieval/Return: Upon an Entry on Duty notification, the Government will issue a Personal Identity Verification (PIV) credential
that is sometimes referred to as a GSA Access card. Lessors are responsible for all PIV credential issued to their contractors/personnel pursuant to
this Lease. Lessors are specifically responsible for ensuring that all GSA PIV access cards are returned to the Lease Contracting Officer or their
designee whenever their employees or a contractor no longer require access to the Space (such as when no longer needed for contract performance,
upon completion of the Contractor employee’s employment, and upon contract completion or termination). Additionally, the Lessor must notify the
Lease Contracting Officer or their designee whenever a GSA PIV Access card is lost or stolen in which event the Lessor may be responsible for
reimbursing the Government for replacement credentials at the current cost per PIV HSPD12 credential. Unreturned PIV Access cards will be
considered as lost or stolen cards.

H. The Government reserves the right to conduct additional background checks on Lessor personnel and contractors with routine access to
Government leased Space throughout the term of the Lease to determine who may have access to the Premises.

. The Lease Contracting Officer may delay final payment under a contract if the Contractor fails to comply with these requirements.

J. The Lessor shall insert this paragraph in all subcontracts when the subcontractor is required to have physical access to a federally controlled
facility or access to a federal information system.

5.10 RANDOLPH-SHEPPARD-COMPLIANCE(SMALL)(SEP-2015)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

5.1 INDOOR-AIR-QUALITY(OCT2016)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED

5.12 RADON-IN-AIR(OCT-2016) INTENTIONALLY DELETED

5.13 RADON-IN-WATER-(JUN-2012)- INTENTIONALLY DELETED
5.14 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS (SEP 2013)

A. The leased Space shall be free of hazardous materials, hazardous substances, and hazardous wastes, as defined by and according to
applicable Federal, state, and local environmental regulations. Should there be reason to suspect otherwise, the Government reserves the right, at
Lessor’s expense, to require documentation or testing to confirm that the Space is free of all hazardous materials.

B. Lessor shall, to the extent of its knowledge, notify Government of the introduction of any hazardous materials onto the Property by Lessor or
others, including but not limited to, co-tenants occupying Space in the Building.

515  MOLD (SIMPLIFIED) (OCT 2018)

A. Actionable mold is either visible mold or airborne mold of types and concentrations in excess of that found in the local outdoor air or non-
problematic control areas elsewhere in the same building, whichever is lower.

B. The Lessor shall provide Space to the Government that is free from actionable mold and free any conditions, such as ongoing water leaks or
moisture infiltration, that reasonably can be anticipated to permit the growth of actionable mold or are indicative of the possibility that actionable mold
will be present (indicators). Ventilation zones serving the Space shall also be free of actionable mold. The Lessor shall safely remediate all actionable
mold in accordance with methods identified in "Mold Remediation in Schools and Commercial Buildings" (EPA 402-K-01-001, September 2008 and all
applicable state laws pertaining to mold remediation practices.

5.16 OCCUPANT EMERGENCY PLANS (SMALL) (SEP 2015)
The Lessor is required to cooperate, participate and comply with the development and implementation, and any subsequent revisions of the
Government’s Occupant Emergency Plan (OEP) and if necessary, a supplemental Shelter-in Place (SIP) Plan.
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SECTION 6 ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

6.01 SECURITY STANDARDS (SMALL) (SEP 2015)

The Lessor agrees to the requirements of Security Level | attached to this Lease. Level | Security is included in shell rent.

6.02 MODIFIED-LEASE PARAGRAPHS(OCT2016) INTENTIONALLY DELETED
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SECURITY REQUIREMENTS - FACILITY SECURITY LEVEL |

THESE PARAGRAPHS CONTAIN SECURITY REQUIREMENTS, AND, UNLESS
INDICATED OTHERWISE, ARE TO BE PRICED AS PART OF THE BUILDING
SHELL. WHERE THEY ARE IN CONFLICT WITH ANY OTHER REQUIREMENTS ON
THIS LEASE, THE STRICTEST SHALL APPLY.

DEFINITIONS:

CRITICAL AREAS - The areas that house systems that if damaged or compromised
could have significant adverse consequences for the facility, operation of the facility, or
mission of the agency or its occupants and visitors. These areas may also be referred
to as “limited access areas,” “restricted areas,” or “exclusionary zones.” Critical areas do
not necessarily have to be within Government-controlled space (e.g., generators, air
handlers, electrical feeds which could be located outside Government-controlled space).

SENSITIVE AREAS — Sensitive areas include vaults, Sensitive Compartmented
Information Facilities (SCIFs), evidence rooms, war rooms, and sensitive documents
areas. Sensitive areas are primarily housed within Government-controlled space.

FACHHY-ENTRANCES, LOBBY, - COMMON-AREAS, NON-PUBLIC;
AND-UHLITY-AREAS-INTENTIONALLY DELETED

SITES

SIGNAGE

POSTING OF SIGNAGE IDENTIFYING THE SPACE AS GOVERNMENTAL

The Lessor shall not post sign(s) or otherwise identify the facility and parking areas as a
Government, or specific Government tenant, occupied facility, including during construction,
without written Government approval.

POSTING OF REGULATORY SIGNAGE
The Government may post or request the Lessor to post regulatory, statutory and site specific
signage at the direction of the Government.

LANDSCAPING

Security Requirements (Level I) (REV 6/22/18) Page 1



LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS

Lessor shall maintain landscaping (trees, bushes, hedges, land contour, etc,) around the facility.
Landscaping shall be neatly trimmed in order to minimize the opportunity for concealment of
individuals and packages/containers. Landscaping shall not obstruct the views of security
guards and CCTV cameras, or interfere with lighting or IDS equipment.

CRIME PREVENTION THROUGH ENVIRONMENTAL DESIGN

The Lessor shall separate from public access, restricted areas as designated by the
Government, through the application of Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design
(CPTED) principles by using trees, hedges, berms, or a combination of these or similar features,

and by fences, walls, gates and other barriers, where feasible and acceptable to the
Government.

SECURITY SYSTEMS

No requirements

STRUCTURE-INTENTIONALLY DELETED

OPERATIONS AND ADMINISTRATION

LESSOR TO WORK WITH FACILITY SECURITY COMMITTEE (FSC)
The Lessor shall cooperate and work with the buildings Facility Security Committee (FSC)
throughout the term of the lease.

ACCESS-TO BUILDINGINFORMATION-INTENTIONALLY DELETED

CYBERSECURHY{SHELL)}INTENTIONALLY DELETED

Security Requirements (Level I) (REV 6/22/18) Page 2



GENERAL CLAUSES

{Acquisition of Leasehold Interests in Real Property for Small Leases)

1. MAINTENANCE OF THE PROPERTY, RIGHT TO INSPECT (SIMPLIFIED) (APR 2015)

The Lessor shall maintain the Property, including the Building, Building systems, and all equipment,
fixtures, and appurtenances furnished by the Lessor under this Lease, in good repair and
tenantable condition. Upon request of the Lease Contracting Officer (LCO), the Lessor shall provide
written documentation that Building systems have been properly maintained, tested, and are
operational within manufacturer's warranted operating standards. The Lessor shall maintain the
Premises in a safe and healthful condition according to applicable OSHA standards, including
standards governing indoor air quality, existance of mold and other biolagical hazards, presence of
hazardous materials, etc. The Government shall have the right, at any time after the Lease is
sfgned and during the term of the Lease, to inspect all areas of the Property to which access is
necessary for the purpose of determining the Lessor's compliance with this clause.

2. [f the building is partially or totally destroyed or damaged by fire or other casualty so that the leased
space is untenantable as determined by the Government, the Government may terminate the
lease upon 15 calendar days written notice to the Lessor and no further rental will ba due.

3. The Lessor shall maintain the demised premises, including the building, building systems, and all
equipment, fixtures, and appurtenances furnished by the Lessor under this lease, in good repair
and tenantable condition. Upon request of the Contracting Officer, the Lessor shall provide written
documentation that building systems have been maintained, tested, and are operational.

4, DEFAULT BY LESSOR (APR 2012)

A, The following cenditions shall constitute default by the Lessor, and shall give rise to the
following rights and remedies for the Government:

(1) Prior to Acceptance of the Premises. Failure by the Lessaor to diligently perform all
obligations required for Acceptance of the Space within the times specified, without
excuse, shall constitute a default by the Lessor. Subject to provision of notice of default
to the Lessor, and provisicn of a reasonable opportunity for the Lessor to cure its default,
the Government may terminate the Lease on account of the Lessor's default.

{2y After Acceptance of the Premises. Failure by the Lessor to perform any service, to
pravide any item, or satisfy any requirement of this Lease, without excuse, shall
constitute a default by the Lessor. Subject to provision of notice of default to the lessor,
and provision of a reasonable opportunity for the Lessor to cure its default, the
Government may perform the service, provide the item, or obtain satisfaction of the
requirement by its own employees or contractors. If the Government elects to take such
action, the Government may deduct from rental payments its costs incurred in connection
with taking the action. Alternatively, the Government may reduce the rent by an amount
reascnably calculated to approximate the cost or value of the service not performed, item
not provided, or reguirement not satisfied, such reduction effective as of the date of the
commencement of the default condition.

(3) Grounds for Termination. The Government may terminate the Lease if:

INITIALS: &
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(i) The Lessor's default persists notwithstanding provision of notice and
reasonable opportunity to cure by the Government, or

{ii) The Lessor fails to take such actions as are necessary to prevent the
recurrence of default conditions,

and such conditions (i) or {ii} substantially impair the safe and healthful
occupancy of the Premises, or render the Space unusable for its intended
purposes.

(4) Excuse. Failure by the Lessor to timely deliver the Space or perform any service, provide
any item, or satisfy any requirement of this Lease shall not be excused if its faiture in

performance arises from:
(i Circumstances within the Lessor's control;

(it} Circumstances about which the Lesscr had actual or constructive
knowledge prior to the Lease Award Date that could reasonably be
expected to affect the Lessor's capability to perform, regardiess of the
Government's knowledge of such matters;

(iii) The condition of the Property,

(iv) The acts or omissions of the Lessor, its employees, agents or
contractors; or '

(v) The Lessor's inability to obtain sufficient financial resources to perform its
obligations.

(5) The rights and remedies specified in this clause are in addition to any and all remedies to
which the Government may be entitled as a matter of law.

5. INTEGRATED AGREEMENT (JUN 2012)

This Lease, upan execution, contains the entire agreement of the parties and no prior written or oral
agreement, express or implied, shall be admissible to contradict the provisions of the Lease.

Except as expressly attached to and made part of the Lease, neither the Request for Lease
Proposals nor any pre-award communications by either party shall be incorporated in the Lease.

6. CHANGES (SIMPLIFIED) (SEP 2011)

A.  The LCO may at any time, by written order, direct changes to thé Tls within the Space,
Building Security Requirements, or the services required under the Lease.

B.  If any such change causes an increase or decrease in Lessor's costs or time required for
performance of its obligations under this Lease, whether or not changed by the order, the
Lessor shall be entitled to an amendment to the Lease providing for one or more of the
following:

1. An adjustment of the delivery date;
2. An equitable adjustment in the rental rate; or
3. Alump sum equitable adjustment.

C. The Lessor shall agsert its right to an amendment under this clause within 30 days from the
date of receipt of the change order and shall submit a proposal for adjustment. Failure to
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agree to any adjustment shall be a dispute under the Disputes clause. However, the
pendency of an adjustment or existence of a dispute shali not excuse the Lessor from
proceeding with the change, except the Lessor shall not be obligated to comply with such
order or direction if the adjustment to which it is entitled causes the annuai rent {net of
operating costs) to exceed the Simplified Lease Acquisition Threshold established under
GSAR 570.102.

D Absent a written change order fram the LCO, or from a Government official toc whom the LCO
has explicitly delegated in writing the authority to direct changes, the Government shall not be
liable to Lessor under this clause.

7. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAW (JAN 2011)

Lessor shall comply with all Federal, state and local laws applicable to its ownership and leasing of
the Property, including, without limitation, laws applicable to the construction, ownership, alteration
or operation of ail Buildings, structures, and facilities located thereon, and obtain all necessary
permits, licenses and similar items at its own expense. The Government will comply with all
Federal, state and local laws applicable to and enforceable against it as a tenant under this Lease,
provided that nothing in this Lease shall be construed as a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the
Government. This Lease shall be governed by Federal law.

8. 52.204-25 PROHIBITION ON CONTRACTING FOR CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND
VIDEO SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT (AUG 2019)

{a) Definitions. As used in this clause—
“Covered foreign country” means The People's Republic of China.
“Covered telecommunications equipment or services” means —

(1) Telecommunications egquipment produced by Huawei Technologies Company or
ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities);

(2) For the purpose of public safety, security of Government facilities, physical sscurity
surveillance of critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and
telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communicafions Corporation, Hangzhou
Hikvision Digital Technology Company, of Dahua Technology Company {or any subsidiary or
affiliate of such entities); :

. (3) Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or
using such equipment; or

(4) Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or
provided by an entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of National
Intelligence or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an
entity owned or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign
country. .

“Critical technology” means-

{1) Defense articles or defense services included on the United States Muniticns List set
forth in the International Traffic in Arms Regulations under subchapter M of chapter | of title 22,
Code of Federal Regulations;

(2) Items included on the Commerce Control List set forth in Supplement No. 1 to part 774
of the Expért Administration Regulations under subchapter C of chapter VI of fitle 15, Code of
Federal Regulations, and controlled—

() Pursuant to muiilateral regimes, including for reasons relating to national
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security, chemical and biclogical weapons proliferation, nuclear nonproliferation, or missile
technology; or

(i) For reasons relating to regional stability or surreptitious listening;

(3) Specially designed and prepared nuclear equipment, parts and components, materials,
software, and technology covered by part 810 of title 10, Code of Federal Regulations (relating to
assistance to foreign atomic energy activities);

(4) Nuclear facilities, equipment, and material covered by part 110 of title 10, Code of
Federal Regulations (relating to export and import of nuclear equipment and material);

(5) Select agents and toxins covered by part 331 of title 7, Code of Federal Regulations,
part 121 of title 9 of such Code, or part 73 of title 42 of such Code; or

{6) Emerging and foundational technologies controlled pursuant to section 1758 of the
Export Control Reform Act of 2018 (50 U.S.C. 4817).

“Substantial or essential component® means any component necessary for the proper
function or performance of a piece of equipment, system, or service.

(b} Prohibition.  Section 889(a)(1)(A) of the John §. McCain National Defense
Authorization Act for Fiscal Year 2019 (Pub. L. 115-232) prohibits the head of an executive
agency on or after August 13, 2019, from procuring or obtaining or extending or renewing a
contract to procure or obtain, any equipment system, or service that uses covered
telecommunications equipment or services as a substantial or essential component of any system,
or as critical technology as part of any system. The Contractor is prohibited from providing to the
Government any equipment, system, or service that uses covered telecommunications equipment
or services as a substantial or essantial component of any system, or as critical technology as part
of any system, unless an exception at paragraph (c) of this clause applies or the covered
telecommunication equipment or services are covered by a waiver described in Federal
Acquisition Regulation 4.2104.

(c) Exceptions. This clause does not prohibit contractors from providing-

(1) A service that connects to the facilities of a third-party, such as backhaul, roaming, or
interconnection arrangemeants; or

(2) Telecommunications equipment that cannot route or redirect user data traffic or
permit visibility into any user data or packets that such equipment transmits or otherwise handles.

(d) Reporting requirement.

(1} In the event the Contractor identifies covered telecommunications equipment or
services used as a substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as
part of any system, during contract performance, or the Contractor is notified of such by a
subcontractor at any tier or by any other source, the Contractor shall report the information in
paragraph {d)(2) of this clause to the Contracting Officer, unless elsewhere in this contract are
established procedures for reporting the information; in the case of the Department of Defense,
the Contractor shall report to the website at hitps://dibnet.dod.mil. For indefinite delivery contracts,
the Contractor shall report to the Contracting Officer for the indefinite delivery contract and the
Contracting Officer(s} for any affected order or, in the case of the Department of Defense, identify
both the Indefinite delivery contract and any affected orders in the report provided at
hitos://dionet. dod.mil.

(2) The Contractor shall report the following information pursuant to paragraph {d)(1)
of this clause

' () Within one business day from the date of such identification or notification:
the contract number; the order number(s), if applicable; supplier name; supplier unigue entity
identifier (if known); supplier Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) code (if known); brand,
model number (original equipment manufacturer number, manufacturer part number, or
wholesaler number); item description; and any readily available information about mitigation
actions undertaken or recommended.
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(i) Within 10 business days of submitting the information in paragraph (d){2){i) of
this clause: any further available information about mitigation actions undertaken or
recommended. In addition, the Contractor shall describe the efforts it undertook to prevent use or
submission of covered telecommunications equipment or services, and any additional efforts that
will be incorporated to prevent future use or submission of covered telecommunications equipment
or services.

(e) Subcontracts. The Contractor shall insert the substance of this clause, including this
paragraph (e), in all subcontracts and other contractual instruments, including subcontracts for the
acguisition of commercial items.

9, 552,204-70 REPRESENTATION REGARDING CERTAIN TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND VIDEC
SURVEILLANCE SERVICES OR EQUIPMENT {AUG 2019)

(&) Definitions. As used in this clause-

“Covered telecommunications equipment or services”, “Critical technology”, and “Substantial or essential
component” have the meanings provided in FAR 52.204-25, Prohibition on Contracting for Certain
Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment.

) Protubition. Section 889(a)(1){A) of the John S. McCain National Defense Authorization Act for
Fiscal Year 2019 {Pub. L. 115-232} prohibits tha head of an executive agency on or after August 13,
2019, from procuring or obtaining, or extending or renewing a contract to procure or obtain, any
equipment, system, or seivice that uses covered telecommunications equipment or services as a
substantial or essential component of any system, or as critical technology as part of any system.

Contractors are not prohibited from providing-
(1} A service that connects to the facilities of a third-party, such as backhaul, roaming, or

interconnection arrangements; or
(2) Telecommunications equipment that cannot route or redirect user data traffic or

permit visibility into any user data or packets that such equipment transmits or otherwise handles,

{c) Representation. The Offeror or Contractor represents that it [ ] will or [ ] will not [Contractor to
complete and submit to the Contracting Officer] provide covered telecommunications equipment or
services to the Government in the performance of any contract, subcontract, order, or other contractual
instrument resulting from this contract. This representation shall be provided as part of the proposal and
resubmitted on an annual basis from the date of award.

(d) Disclosures. If the Offeror or Contractor has respanded affirmatively to the representation in
paragraph {c) of this clause, the Offeror or Contractor shall provide the following additional information to

the Contracting Officer--

{1} Al covered telecommunications equipment and services offered or provided (include
brand; model number, such as original equipment manufacturer (OCEM) number, manufacturer
part number, or wholesaler number; and item description, as applicable),

(2) Explanation of the proposed use of covered telecommunications equipment and
services and any factors relevant to determining if such use wouid be permissible under the
prehibition in paragraph (b) of this provision;

{3} For services, the entity providing the covered telecommunications services {include
entity name, unique entity identifier, and Commercial and Government Entity (CAGE) code, if
known); and

(4) For equipment, the entity that produced the covered telecommunicaficns equipment
{include entity name, unique entity identifier, CAGE code, and whether the entity was the OEM or

a distributor, if known).

10. 52.252-2  CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE (VARIATION) {DEC 2003)
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INITIALS:

This contract incorporates one or more clauses by reference, with the same force and effect as if
they were given in full text. Upon request, the Contracting Officer will make the full text available,
or the full text may be found at http:// www.acquisition.gov.

FAR 52.204-7
FAR 52.204-10,

FAR 52.204-13

FAR 52.204-19

FAR 52.209-6

FAR 52.215-10

FAR 52.215-12

FAR 52.219-9

FAR 52.219-16

FAR 52.219-28

FAR 52.222-21

FAR 52.222-26

FAR 52.222-35

FAR 52.222-36

FAR 52.222-37

FAR 52.223-6

FAR 52.232-23

11. The following clauses are incorporated by reference:

SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT ( OCT 2018)

REPORTING EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND FIRST-TIER
SUBCONTRACT AWARDS (OCT 2018) (Applicable if over $30,000 total
contract vaiue.)

SYSTEM FOR AWARD MANAGEMENT MAINTENANCE (OCT 2018)

INCORPORATION BY REFERENCE OF REPRESENTATIONS AND
CERTIFICATIONS (DEC 2014).

PROTECTING THE GOVERNMENT'S INTEREST WHEN
SUBCONTRACTING WITH CONTRACTORS DEBARRED, SUSPENDED,
OR PROPOSED FOR DEBARMENT {OCT 2015)

(Applicable to leases over $35,000 tofal contract vaiue.)

PRICE REDUCTION FOR DEFECTIVE CERTIFIED COST OR PRICING DATA

(AUG 2011)
(Applicable when cost or pricing data are required for work or services over

$750,000.)

SUBCONTRACTOR CERTIFIED COST OR PRICING DATA (OCT 2010)
(Applicable when the clause at FAR 52.215-10 is applicable.)

SMALL BUSINESS SUBCONTRACTING PLAN {AUG 2018) ALTERNATE Il
(JAN 2017) (Applicable to Leases over $700,000 total contract value.)

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES—SUBCONTRACTING PLAN (JAN 1999)
(Applicable to leases over $700,000 total contract value.)

POST-AWARD SMALL BUSINESS REREPRESENTATION (JUL 2013)
{(Applicable to leases exceeding the micro-purchase threshold)

PROHIBITION OF SEGREGATED FACILITIES (APR 2015)
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY (SEP 2016)
EQUAL OPPORTUNITY FOR VETERANS {OCT 2015}

(Applicable to leases $150,000 or more, total contract value. Full texi may
be found at htip://www.acquisition, gov)

EQUAL QPPORTUNITY FOR WORKERS WITH DISABILITIES (JUL 2014)
(Applicable to leases over $15,000 total contract value. Full text may be

found at hit_g:/fwww.acggisition‘gov)

EMPLOYMENT REPORTS ON VETERANS (FEB 2016)
(Applicable to leases $150,000 or more, total contract value.)

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (MAY 2001)
(Applicable to Leases over the Simplified Lease Acquisition Threshold as
well as to any Leases of any value awarded to an individual)

ASSIGNMENT OF CLAIMS (MAY 2014)
(Applicable to leases over the micro-purchase threshold.)

LESSOR
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FAR 52.232-33 PAYMENT BY ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER - SYSTEM FOR AWARD
MANAGEMENT (QCT 2018) '

FAR 52,233-1 DISPUTES (MAY 2014)
GSAR 552.215-70  EXAMINATION OF RECORDS BY GSA (JUL 2018)

GSAR 552.270-12  ALTERATIONS (SEP 1999)

GSAR 552.270-16  ADJUSTMENT F.OR VACANT PREMISES (JUN 2011)
GSAR 552.27020  PAYMENT (SEP 1999)

GSAR B52.270-256  SUBSTITUTION OF TENANT AGENCY (SEP 199%)

GSAR 552.270-28 MUTUALITY OF OBLIGATION {SEP 1999)
GSAR 552.270-31  PROMPT PAYMENT (JUN 2011)

The information collection requirements contained in this soficitation/contract, that are not reéquired by
regulation, have been approved by the Office of Management and Budget pursuant to the Paperwork .
Reduction Act and assigned the OMB Confrol No. 3080-0163.

INITIALS: &
LESSOR GOVERNMENT GSA FORM 3517A PAGE 7 (10M19)




City of Pensacola Pensacola, L. 32502
Memorandum
File #: 20-00095 City Council 2/27/2020

LEGISLATIVE ACTION ITEM

SPONSOR: City Council President Jewel Cannada-Wynn
SUBJECT:

APPOINTMENTS - ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY BOARD
RECOMMENDATION:

That City Council appoint five (5) individuals who are employed or retired environmental
professionals, or members of local environmental organizations, or a business with an interest in City
environmental issues; and appoint two (2) members who are residents or property owners of the City
as at large members for a term of two (2) years, expiring March 1, 2022.

HEARING REQUIRED: No Hearing Required
SUMMARY:

The Environmental Advisory Board may review and make recommendations to the City Council and
Mayor on environmental policy issues as follows:
(1) Proposed ordinances and codes of an environmental nature.
(2)  Proposed changes to existing environmental ordinances and codes.
(83)  Other environmental matters affecting the city referred to the Board by the City Council
and Mayor.
(4)  Other environmental matters affecting the City that are initiated by the Board and
approved by the City Council and/or Mayor.

The following have been nominated or are incumbents that wish to be considered for reappointment:
Nominee Nominated by

Employed or retired environmental professionals, or member of local environmental
organization or business with an interest in City environmental issues

Calvin Avant Incumbent
William “Blase” Butts Incumbent
Katie Fox Incumbent
Michael Lynch Incumbent
Neil Richards Incumbent

Page 1 of 2



File #: 20-00095 City Council 2/27/2020

At-Large

Kyle Kopytchak Incumbent
Alexander Kozmon Hill
PRIOR ACTION:

City Council appoints members to this board on a biennial basis.
FUNDING:
Budget: N/A

Actual: N/A

FINANCIAL IMPACT:
None.

STAFF CONTACT:

Ericka L. Burnett, City Clerk
ATTACHMENTS:

1) Member List

2) Application of Interest - Calvin Avant

3) Application of Interest - William “Blase” Butts
4) Application of Interest - Katie Fox

5) Application of Interest - Kyle Kopytchak

6) Nomination Form - Alexander Kozmon

7) Application of Interest - Alexander Kozmon
8) Resume - Alexander Kozmon

9) Application of Interest - Michael Lynch
10)Application of Interest - Neil Richards
11)Ballot

PRESENTATION: No

Page 2 of 2



Environmental Advisory Board

February 12, 2020

No. of First Term
Name Profession Appointed By Terms Year Exp Date Appointed Length Comments
Avant, Ph.D, Calvin Environmental Group Council 0 2019 3/1/2020 7/13/2017 2
Bennett, Robert "Bob" R.  At-large/City Resident Council 0 2019 3/1/2020 4/12/2018 2
Butts, William "Blase" Employed Env Council 0 2019 3/1/2020 4/12/2018 2
Professional
Fox, Katie At-Large/City Resident Council 0 2019 3/1/2020 2/28/2019 2
Horning, Ph.D, Gloria G. Member of Business Org Council 0 2019 3/1/2020 3/8/2018 2
Kopytchak, Kyle At-Large Council 3 2019  3/1/2020 7/18/2013 2
Lynch, Michael Employed Env Council 2 2019  3/1/2020 9/25/2014 2
Professional
Richards, Neil At-large Council 2 2019  3/1/2020 2/28/2014 2
VACANT, VACANT Employed Env Council 1 2019  3/1/2020 3/17/2016 2
Professional

Term Length: TWO YEAR TERMS

The Environmental Advisory Board may review and make recommendations to the City Council and Mayor on
environmental policy issues as follows:

(1)Proposed ordinances and codes of an environmental nature.

(2)Proposed changes to existing environmental ordinances and codes.

(3)Other environmental matters affecting the city referred to the Board by the City Council and Mayor.

(4)Other environmental matters affecting the City that are initiated by the Board and approved by the City Council
and/or Mayor.

The Board shall be composed of nine (9) members appointed by the City Council: Five (5) members who are
employed or retired environmental professionals, or members of local environmental organizations or businesses
with an interest in City environmental issues. To the extent practicable, members will be residents or property
owners of the City. Four (4) at-large members who are residents or property owners of the City.



Ericka Burnett

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

noreply@civicplus.com

Thursday, January 30, 2020 7:45 AM

Ericka Burnett; Robyn Tice

[EXTERNAL] Online Form Submittal: Application for Boards, Authorities, and
Commissions - City Council Appointment

Application for Boards, Authorities, and Commissions - City Council
Appointment

This application will be utilized in considering you for appointment to a City Council
board, authority, or commission. Pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 119, all
information provided on or with this form becomes a public record and is subject to
disclosure, unless otherwise exempted by law.

Completed applications will be kept on file for a period of one (1) year from the date
received in the Office of the City Clerk.

It is necessary to contact a member of Council to obtain a nomination in order to be
placed on the ballot for consideration. Please go to cityofpensacola.com/council for
Council Member contact information. If you have any questions, contact the City
Clerk’s Office.

Personal Information

Name Calvin Avant
Home Address 615 N. W Street
Business Address 615 N. W Street

To which address do you  Business
prefer we send

correspondence regarding

this application?

Preferred Contact Phone 18507480675

Number(s)
Email Address calavant2905@gmail.com
Upload Resume Field not completed.

(optional)



Details
Are you a City resident?
If yes, which district?

If yes, how long have you
been a City resident?

Do you own property
within the City limits?

Are you a registered voter
in the city?

Board(s) of interest:

Please list the reasons for
your interest in this
position:

Do you currently serve on
a board?

If yes, which board(s)?

Do you currently hold a
public office?

If so, what office?

Would you be willing to
resign your current office
for the appointment you
now seek?

Diversity

No
Field not completed.

Pensacola

No

No

Environmental Justice
Renewable energy

1. To be a voice for the underserved community.

2. Ensure that the minority communities receive fair equitable
treatment

3. That city implement policies that achieve equitable outcomes
for residents and communities burdened by air and water
pollution.

Yes

Environmental

No

Field not completed.

N/A

In order to encourage diversity in selections of members of government
committees, the following information is required by Florida Statute 760.80 for some

committees.
Gender

Race

Male

African-American



Physically Disabled No

Acknowledgement of | accept these terms.
Terms

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.

THIS EMAIL IS FROM AN EXTERNAL EMAIL ACCOUNT ---------




Ericka Burnett

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

noreply@civicplus.com

Tuesday, January 28, 2020 11:19 AM

Ericka Burnett; Robyn Tice

[EXTERNAL] Online Form Submittal: Application for Boards, Authorities, and
Commissions - City Council Appointment

Application for Boards, Authorities, and Commissions - City Council
Appointment

This application will be utilized in considering you for appointment to a City Council
board, authority, or commission. Pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 119, all
information provided on or with this form becomes a public record and is subject to
disclosure, unless otherwise exempted by law.

Completed applications will be kept on file for a period of one (1) year from the date
received in the Office of the City Clerk.

It is necessary to contact a member of Council to obtain a nomination in order to be
placed on the ballot for consideration. Please go to cityofpensacola.com/council for

Council Member contact information. If you have any questions, contact the City
Clerk’s Office.

Personal Information
Name Blase Butts

Home Address 1130 E. Lee St.
Pensacola, FL 32503

Business Address Field not completed.

To which address do you  Home
prefer we send

correspondence regarding

this application?

Preferred Contact Phone 850-435-5919

Number(s)
Email Address blasebutts@live.com
Upload Resume Field not completed.

(optional)



Details
Are you a City resident?
If yes, which district?

If yes, how long have you
been a City resident?

Do you own property
within the City limits?

Are you a registered voter
in the city?

Board(s) of interest:

Please list the reasons for
your interest in this
position:

Do you currently serve on
a board?

If yes, which board(s)?

Do you currently hold a
public office?

If so, what office?

Would you be willing to
resign your current office
for the appointment you
now seek?

Diversity

Yes

10+ years

Yes

No

Environmental Advisory Board

I am an environmental professional working in the waste and
drinking water treatment field. | enjoy our local waterways and
want them to improve. | manage a website for Ocean Hour FL
that picks up trash from our area waterways - 22, 400 Ibs of
trash in 2019

Yes

Environmental Advisory Board

No

Field not completed.

N/A

In order to encourage diversity in selections of members of government
committees, the following information is required by Florida Statute 760.80 for some

committees.
Gender

Race

Male

Caucasian



Physically Disabled No

Acknowledgement of | accept these terms.
Terms

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.

THIS EMAIL IS FROM AN EXTERNAL EMAIL ACCOUNT ---------




Ericka Burnett

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

noreply@civicplus.com

Wednesday, January 29, 2020 4:59 PM

Ericka Burnett; Robyn Tice

[EXTERNAL] Online Form Submittal: Application for Boards, Authorities, and
Commissions - City Council Appointment

Application for Boards, Authorities, and Commissions - City Council
Appointment

This application will be utilized in considering you for appointment to a City Council
board, authority, or commission. Pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 119, all
information provided on or with this form becomes a public record and is subject to
disclosure, unless otherwise exempted by law.

Completed applications will be kept on file for a period of one (1) year from the date
received in the Office of the City Clerk.

It is necessary to contact a member of Council to obtain a nomination in order to be
placed on the ballot for consideration. Please go to cityofpensacola.com/council for
Council Member contact information. If you have any questions, contact the City
Clerk’s Office.

Personal Information

Name Katie Fox
Home Address 3525 Dunfries Road Pensacola FI 32503
Business Address Field not completed.

To which address do you  Home
prefer we send

correspondence regarding

this application?

Preferred Contact Phone 8505168910

Number(s)
Email Address kfox@geosyntec.com
Upload Resume Field not completed.

(optional)



Details
Are you a City resident?
If yes, which district?

If yes, how long have you
been a City resident?

Do you own property
within the City limits?

Are you a registered voter
in the city?

Board(s) of interest:

Please list the reasons for
your interest in this
position:

Do you currently serve on
a board?

If yes, which board(s)?

Do you currently hold a
public office?

If so, what office?

Would you be willing to
resign your current office
for the appointment you
now seek?

Diversity

Yes

30+ years

Yes

Yes

Environmental Advisory Board

Passionate about my community and the environment. My
interests and career path provide experience and expertise to
the board related to environmental issues such as stormwater
management, water quality, soil and groundwater
contamination/remediation, climate change and resiliency,
water resources engineering, and restoration.

Yes

Environmental Advisory Board

No

Field not completed.

N/A

In order to encourage diversity in selections of members of government
committees, the following information is required by Florida Statute 760.80 for some

committees.
Gender
Race

Physically Disabled

Female

Caucasian

No



Acknowledgement of | accept these terms.
Terms

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.

THIS EMAIL IS FROM AN EXTERNAL EMAIL ACCOUNT ----——--




Ericka Burnett

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

noreply@civicplus.com

Thursday, February 6, 2020 9:46 AM

Ericka Burnett; Robyn Tice

[EXTERNAL] Online Form Submittal: Application for Boards, Authorities, and
Commissions - City Council Appointment

THIS EMAIL IS FROM AN EXTERNAL EMAIL ACCOUNT

Application for Boards, Authorities, and Commissions - City Council
Appointment

This application will be utilized in considering you for appointment to a City Council
board, authority, or commission. Pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 119, all
information provided on or with this form becomes a public record and is subject to
disclosure, unless otherwise exempted by law.

Completed applications will be kept on file for a period of one (1) year from the date
received in the Office of the City Clerk.

It is necessary to contact a member of Council to obtain a nomination in order to be
placed on the ballot for consideration. Please go to cityofpensacola.com/council for
Council Member contact information. If you have any questions, contact the City
Clerk’s Office.

Personal Information

Name Kyle Kopytchak
Home Address 3817 N 12Th Ave, Pensacola, FL 32503
Business Address Field not completed.

To which address do you  Home
prefer we send

correspondence regarding

this application?

Preferred Contact Phone 850-572-4470

Number(s)
Email Address kyle33fl@aol.com
Upload Resume Field not completed.

(optional)



Details
Are you a City resident?  Yes
If yes, which district? 5

If yes, how long have you 20 Years
been a City resident?

Do you own property Yes
within the City limits?

Are you a registered voter Yes
in the city?

Board(s) of interest: EAB

Please list the reasons for  Continuing on the board
your interest in this
position:

Do you currently serve on  Yes
a board?

If yes, which board(s)? EAB

Do you currently hold a No
public office?

If so, what office? Field not completed.

Would you be willing to N/A
resign your current office

for the appointment you

now seek?

Diversity

In order to encourage diversity in selections of members of government
committees, the following information is required by Florida Statute 760.80 for some
committees.

Gender Male

Race Caucasian

Physically Disabled No



Acknowledgement of | accept these terms.
Terms

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.




CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA

NOMINATION FORM

Alexander Kozmon

[, Ann Hill , do nominate
(Nominee)
2320 N. 14th Ave (03) 850-438-6177
(Home Address) (Phone)
(Business Address) (Phone)
vankozl@live.com City Resident: _YES NO

(Email Address) Property Owner within the City: YES NO

for appointment by the City Council for the position of:

AT-LARGE MEMBER
WHO IS A CITY RESIDENT OR PROPERTY OWNER OF THE CITY

Provide a brief description of nominee’s qualifications:

Mr. Kozmon has an M.S. in Organizational Management and a B. A. in Environmental Geography.

He has served as past president of the local University of Florida/IFAS Extension Master Gardener

volunteer program and was recognized for outstanding service in that program. He has a keen awareng

of the issues surrounding environmental stewardship and how our actions can affect, to the betterment

and detriment, the local government. He sees the //” %g_/
Lz

importance of local government in effecting LA
City Council Member

positive change.

| hereby certify that the above
nomination was submitted to my
office within the time limitations
prescribed by the Rules and
Procedures of Council.

Ericka L. Burnett, City Clerk

eSS
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Ericka Burnett

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

noreply@civicplus.com

Friday, February 14, 2020 11:35 AM

Ericka Burnett; Robyn Tice

[EXTERNAL] Online Form Submittal: Application for Boards, Authorities, and
Commissions - City Council Appointment

THIS EMAIL IS FROM AN EXTERNAL EMAIL ACCOUNT

Application for Boards, Authorities, and Commissions - City Council
Appointment

This application will be utilized in considering you for appointment to a City Council
board, authority, or commission. Pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 119, all
information provided on or with this form becomes a public record and is subject to
disclosure, unless otherwise exempted by law.

Completed applications will be kept on file for a period of one (1) year from the date
received in the Office of the City Clerk.

It is necessary to contact a member of Council to obtain a nomination in order to be
placed on the ballot for consideration. Please go to cityofpensacola.com/council for

Council Member contact information. If you have any questions, contact the City
Clerk’s Office.

Personal Information
Name Alexander Kozmon

Home Address 2320 North 14th Avenue
Pensacola, FLorida 32503

Business Address Field not completed.

To which address do you  Home
prefer we send

correspondence regarding

this application?

Preferred Contact Phone 438-6177

Number(s)
Email Address vankoz1@live.com
Upload Resume Kozmon Resume 022020 .pdf

(optional)



Details
Are you a City resident?  Yes
If yes, which district? 5

If yes, how long have you 9 years
been a City resident?

Do you own property Yes
within the City limits?

Are you a registered voter Yes
in the city?

Board(s) of interest: Environmental Review

Please list the reasons for ~ To work towards increasing an appreciation for and the
your interest in this benefits of environmental stewardship throughout the
position: community, through various avenues.

Do you currently serve on  No
a board?

If yes, which board(s)? Field not completed.

Do you currently hold a No
public office?

If so, what office? Field not completed.

Would you be willing to N/A
resign your current office

for the appointment you

now seek?

Diversity

In order to encourage diversity in selections of members of government
committees, the following information is required by Florida Statute 760.80 for some
committees.

Gender Male
Race Caucasian
Physically Disabled No



Acknowledgement of | accept these terms.
Terms

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.




Alexander F. Kozmon

2320 North 14t Avenue, Pensacola, Florida 32503
Telephone (850)438-6177

OBJECTIVE

To utilize my professional development and education to improve an organization’s
ability to provide to its internal and external clientele.

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Police Lieutenant, State of Connecticut, DMHAS, May 2000-2009

Commanding Officer of the Department of Mental Health and Addiction Services
Police at Precinct 6/Connecticut Valley Hospital. Responsibilities included patrol
supervision, human resource management and training, and community relations.

EDUCATION

Master of Science, Eastern Connecticut State University, 2003, Organizational
Management

Bachelor of Arts, Central Connecticut State University, 1986, Environmental
Geography

CIVIC AFFILIATIONS

Pensacola Police Department Honor Guard Bagpiper, 2018 - Present

University of Florida/IFAS Extension Master Gardener Program President,
2017/2018, 2020

University of Florida/IFAS Extension Master Gardener Program, 2014-Present
RECOGNITION

University of Florida/IFAS Extension Master Gardener Program Outstanding
Service, 2018

PERSONAL

References provided upon request



Ericka Burnett

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

noreply@civicplus.com

Tuesday, January 28, 2020 11:06 AM

Ericka Burnett; Robyn Tice

[EXTERNAL] Online Form Submittal: Application for Boards, Authorities, and
Commissions - City Council Appointment

Application for Boards, Authorities, and Commissions - City Council
Appointment

This application will be utilized in considering you for appointment to a City Council
board, authority, or commission. Pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 119, all
information provided on or with this form becomes a public record and is subject to
disclosure, unless otherwise exempted by law.

Completed applications will be kept on file for a period of one (1) year from the date
received in the Office of the City Clerk.

It is necessary to contact a member of Council to obtain a nomination in order to be
placed on the ballot for consideration. Please go to cityofpensacola.com/council for
Council Member contact information. If you have any questions, contact the City
Clerk’s Office.

Personal Information
Name Michael Lynch

Home Address 3 Fairpoint Place
Gulf Breeze, FL 32561

Business Address 1120 N. 12th Ave.
Pensacola, FL 32501

To which address do you  Home
prefer we send

correspondence regarding

this application?

Preferred Contact Phone 8509100241

Number(s)
Email Address lynchau1@hotmail.com
Upload Resume Field not completed.

(optional)



Details
Are you a City resident?
If yes, which district?

If yes, how long have you
been a City resident?

Do you own property
within the City limits?

Are you a registered voter
in the city?

Board(s) of interest:

Please list the reasons for
your interest in this
position:

Do you currently serve on
a board?

If yes, which board(s)?

Do you currently hold a
public office?

If so, what office?

Would you be willing to
resign your current office
for the appointment you
now seek?

Diversity

No
Field not completed.

Field not completed.

No

No

Environmental Advisory Board

| have served on the board since 2014 and would like to
continue. | am a professional engineer that works for an
Environmental Consulting firm whose office is located in
Pensacola. Through my work | am constantly involved in
projects affecting our environment and would like to use my
expertise and experience to support the City's efforts in
addressing environmental issues that it faces.

Yes

Environmental Advisory Board

No

Field not completed.

N/A

In order to encourage diversity in selections of members of government
committees, the following information is required by Florida Statute 760.80 for some

committees.

Gender

Male



Race Caucasian

Physically Disabled No
Acknowledgement of | accept these terms.
Terms

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.

THIS EMAIL IS FROM AN EXTERNAL EMAIL ACCOUNT ---------




Ericka Burnett

From:
Sent:
To:
Subject:

noreply@civicplus.com

Friday, January 31, 2020 5:10 AM

Ericka Burnett; Robyn Tice

[EXTERNAL] Online Form Submittal: Application for Boards, Authorities, and
Commissions - City Council Appointment

Application for Boards, Authorities, and Commissions - City Council
Appointment

This application will be utilized in considering you for appointment to a City Council
board, authority, or commission. Pursuant to Florida Statutes, Chapter 119, all
information provided on or with this form becomes a public record and is subject to
disclosure, unless otherwise exempted by law.

Completed applications will be kept on file for a period of one (1) year from the date
received in the Office of the City Clerk.

It is necessary to contact a member of Council to obtain a nomination in order to be
placed on the ballot for consideration. Please go to cityofpensacola.com/council for
Council Member contact information. If you have any questions, contact the City
Clerk’s Office.

Personal Information

Name Neil Richards
Home Address 4430 Youpon Rd
Business Address retired

To which address do you  Home
prefer we send

correspondence regarding

this application?

Preferred Contact Phone 8502325625

Number(s)
Email Address abcnrr@yahoo.com
Upload Resume Field not completed.

(optional)



Details
Are you a City resident?
If yes, which district?

If yes, how long have you
been a City resident?

Do you own property
within the City limits?

Are you a registered voter
in the city?

Board(s) of interest:

Please list the reasons for
your interest in this
position:

Do you currently serve on
a board?

If yes, which board(s)?

Do you currently hold a
public office?

If so, what office?

Would you be willing to
resign your current office
for the appointment you
now seek?

Diversity

No
Field not completed.

Field not completed.

No

No

Environmental Advisory Board

To continue to improve with a balanced approach the air,

water, and soil in the City of Pensacola

Yes

Environmental Advisory Board

No

Field not completed.

N/A

In order to encourage diversity in selections of members of government
committees, the following information is required by Florida Statute 760.80 for some

committees.
Gender
Race

Physically Disabled

Male

Caucasian

No



Acknowledgement of | accept these terms.
Terms

Email not displaying correctly? View it in your browser.

THIS EMAIL IS FROM AN EXTERNAL EMAIL ACCOUNT/center>



Ballot — Environmental Advisory Board
February 27, 2020
Two year term expiring March 1, 2022

At Large

Kyle Kopytchak

Alexander Kozmon

Vote for Two

Employed or retired environmental professionals, or members of local environmental
organizations or businesses with an interest in City environmental issues

Calvin Avant

William “Blaise” Butts
Katie Fox

Michael Lynch

Neil Richards

Vote for Five

Signed:

Council Member




222 West Main Street

Clty of Pensacola Pensacola, FL 32502

Memorandum
File #: 20-00046 City Council 2/27/2020
LEGISLATIVE ACTION ITEM
SPONSOR: Grover C. Robinson, IV, Mayor

SUBJECT:

FY 2019 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR)

RECOMMENDATION:

That City Council accept the City of Pensacola Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the year
ended September 30, 2019 as prepared by the Financial Services Department and the Independent
Auditors Report issued thereupon.

HEARING REQUIRED: No Hearing Required

SUMMARY:

At the end of each fiscal year, the City’s Financial Services Department prepares a CAFR as required
by Section 11.45 of the Florida Statutes.

PRIOR ACTION:
None.
FUNDING:
Budget: $90,500
Actual:  $90,500
FINANCIAL IMPACT:
Each fiscal year the cost of an independent audit is included in the City Council’s budget.

CITY ATTORNEY REVIEW: Yes
2/14/2020

STAFF CONTACT:

Page 1 of 2



File #: 20-00046 City Council 2/27/2020

Keith Wilkins, City Administrator
Richard Barker, Jr., Deputy City Administrator - Administration & Enterprise

Amy Lovoy, Finance Director
ATTACHMENTS:

1) FY19 CAFR

2) SAS 114 Auditor Letter

3) Financial Condition Assessment

PRESENTATION: No

Page 2 of 2



Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report
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GROVER C. ROBINSON, IV
Mayor

February 10, 2020

The Honorable Jewel Cannada-Wynn, President
And Members of the City Council

City of Pensacola

Pensacola, Florida

Pursuant to applicable Florida Statutes and sound financial management practices, the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Pensacola, Florida, for the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2019, has been prepared and is submitted herewith.

The City of Pensacola's CAFR was prepared by the Financial Services Department.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and completeness and fairness of the
presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. City management believes that the
report is a fair presentation of the City's financial position and results of operations as measured
by the financial activity of its various funds, that presented data is accurate in all material aspects
and that all disclosures necessary to enable the reader to gain maximum understanding of the
City's financial affairs have been included.

This report has been presented in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP). These principles require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview,
and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). The Letter of Transmittal is designed to complement the
MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of Pensacola’s MD&A can be found
immediately following the report of the independent auditors.

Mayor’s Initiatives

As the Chief Executive of the City of Pensacola, the Mayor and his staff serve to administer and
enforce city ordinances, direct city employees providing services to citizens, and prepare and
submit the city budget. In addition to these specific duties outlined in the City Charter, the
Mayor also performs economic development, community outreach, and public awareness
functions. Mayor Robinson took office on November 27, 2018 as the second Mayor to serve
under the City’s strong mayor form of government.



Upon his election in November 2018, Mayor Robinson formed a transition team of 12 volunteers
to make recommendations to advance the City in multiple areas including neighborhoods, crime,
walkability, economic development and transparency. The categories studied were:

¢ Crime and Safety ¢ Governmental Efficiency
¢ Economic Development e Legal

¢ Education ¢ Neighborhoods

¢ Environment ¢ Traffic & Walkability

¢ Finance ® Transparency

The implementation of the recommendations made by the transition team will be a multi-year
endeavor. However, the first recommendation, to create a mission, vision, values and an
employee code of ethics for the City of Pensacola, has already been accomplished. The City’s
mission is to provide the highest quality of life for all our citizens by providing cost effective
municipal services, including public safety, infrastructure and public amenities and working
together with the community to create a healthier environment and growing economy.

The Reporting Entity

The financial reporting entity includes all funds of the primary government, as well as all of its
component units. Component units are legally separate organizations for which the City is
financially accountable and, for financial statement purposes, are either blended with the
activities of the City or discretely presented. The criteria used to determine whether an
organization should be a part of the City’s reporting entity were those outlined by Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity:
Omnibus.

The Downtown Improvement Board (DIB) has been classified as a component unit and is
discretely presented in the City’s annual financial report in a separate column in the government-
wide financial statements. The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA), also meets the
definition of a component unit; however their financial reporting is blended with the City’s
financial activity.

Form of Government

The City operates under a Mayor-Council structure commonly referred to as a “Strong Mayor”
form of government. With the Mayor-Council structure, the Council is the governing body of
the City with all legislative powers of the City vested therein, which consisted of seven (7)
Council Members, one (1) elected from each of the seven (7) election districts of the City. The
Mayor is not a member of Council and does not have voting power. The Mayor’s term allows
for a maximum of three consecutive four year terms of office. Beginning in January 2022 and
every ten years thereafter, a Charter Review Commission will be established to review the City’s
charter. With the Mayor-Council structure, the Mayor replaces the City Manager as the
executive head of the City and shall appoint a City Administrator to assist in managing daily
operations.



The City of Pensacola provides a full range of municipal services including public works, public
safety, recreation and cultural activities. In addition, the City’s enterprise activities include a
natural gas utility, sanitation collection system, seaport, and international airport.

Accounting and Internal Controls

Management of the City is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls.
Internal accounting controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss through unauthorized use or disposition; the
reliability of financial records for preparing financial statements and maintaining accountability
for assets. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived and the evaluation of costs and benefits requires
estimates and judgments by management.

Budget Process

The budget process for the City of Pensacola does not have an easily identifiable beginning or
end. During the course of each fiscal year, new initiatives for services, regulations, funding
sources, better methods of providing existing services, and citizen comments are brought forward
for discussion, study and implementation. Although the budget document is developed at a fixed
point in time, and identifies a work plan for a specific period of time, the budget process is fluid.

There are a number of tools used throughout the course of the fiscal year to report on the status
of the budget. A report is provided to City Council quarterly on pertinent funds which shows a
comparison of revenues and expenditures to budgeted numbers. Additionally, City Council is
provided a monthly financial overview. Monthly reports are generated for public review to
provide a more frequent overview of the financial status as compared to budget. In accordance
to Chapter 166.241, Florida Statues, budget amendments within a fund (transfers of amounts
from one line item to another) approved by the Chief Financial Officer as the Mayor’s designee
and Supplemental Budget Resolutions adopted by Council are the only means to amend an
adopted budget. Two public hearings are held before the adoption of the final budget and final
millage rates.

Debt Administration

Debt administration is the responsibility of the City’s Chief Financial Officer. Additional
assistance is employed through the services of RBC Capital Markets, the City’s Financial
Advisors.

On July 25, 2019, the City issued its $58,140,000 Urban Core Redevelopment Refunding and
Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2019 (the “2019 Urban Core Bond”) through a loan from
BBVA Mortgage Corporation. The 2019 Urban Core Bond was issued to provide for an
advanced refunding of the outstanding principal balance of the Redevelopment Revenue Bonds,
Series 2009B (“2009B Redevelopment Bonds”), as well as finance certain community
redevelopment capital improvements in the Urban Core Redevelopment Area included in the
Urban Core Community Redevelopment Plan and the costs of issuance on the borrowing.



The newly issued 2019 Urban Core Bond matures on December 31, 2043 and has a fixed interest
rate of 3.40%. Pledged revenues for the repayment of the principal and interest will be Tax
Increment Revenues derived from the Urban Core Community Redevelopment Area. In the
event that these revenues are insufficient to pay debt service, the 2019 Urban Core Bond is
further secured by certain non-ad valorem revenues budgeted and appropriated therefor pursuant
to a Covenant to Budget and Appropriate.

Pledged revenues for business-type debt are typically the sole pledge of net revenues from
operations, however, from time to time there are pledges of specific revenue streams. In fiscal
year 2019 business-type activities paid a total of $11.1 million and $1.9 million, respectively, for
principal and interest on bonds.

Revenues traditionally pledged for general government type debt include infrastructure sales tax,
local option gasoline tax, communication services tax, local business tax and tax increment
revenues. The City paid a total of $6.3 million and $4.2 million, respectively for principal and
interest, for governmental activities debt during fiscal year 2019. The City typically issues debt
with a levelized structure thereby eliminating large increases and decreases in principal payments
from year to year. However, a $1.4 million decrease can be seen in fiscal year 2019 mainly due
to the payoff of the Capital Funding Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 in fiscal year 2018 which was
offset with the first payment on the City’s Infrastructure Sales Surtax Revenue Bond, Series
2017 in fiscal year 2019. The City has no general obligation debt.

In order to be in compliance with all continuing disclosure requirements, the City of Pensacola
issues an annual Report to Bondholders published on or before the 180" day after the end of the
City’s fiscal year. However, due to a delay in receiving required audit information from the
State of Florida for pension disclosure under GASB 68, the City was not able to meet this
deadline for fiscal year 2015. Therefore, on March 28, 2016, the City filed a Notice of Failure to
File Annual Report, for fiscal year 2015, on the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s
Electronic Municipal Market Access System (EMMA). The required audit information was
received in mid-April 2016 from the State, and the complete Annual Report, including audited
financial statements for fiscal year 2015, was filed on EMMA on May 12, 2016, which filing
along with the above mentioned Notice cured the violation. The Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report and the Report to Bondholders should be read in conjunction to get a clear and
complete understanding of the market effect on the City of Pensacola.

Pensacola Energy

Pensacola Energy, a department of the City, became a City-owned utility on April 27, 1948,
upon its purchase from the Gulf Power Company. Pensacola Energy supplies natural gas to
approximately 49,000 service connections and is one of the largest municipal gas distribution
systems in Florida as it relates to customer base.

Pensacola Energy had operating income before depreciation of $17,868,804; a decrease of
$1,416,747 over last year. Operating revenue increased by $390,334 (0.8%) during fiscal year
2019 and operating expenses decreased by $1,026,413 (3.0%). The primary reason for the
increase in operating revenue is attributed to a 2.4% rate increase based on the CPI. The primary
decrease in expense can be linked to decrease in salaries and employee benefits due to a
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reallocation of personnel between operating accounts and capital construction accounts. In fiscal
year 2019, the cost of natural gas increased by $253,761. Excluding the cost of gas, operating
expenses decreased by $1,280,174. The revenue classification for billed gas service is 48.9%
residential, 29.3% commercial and 21.8% industrial.

Pensacola Energy budgets for normal winters; however, actual revenues fluctuate with the cost
of natural gas and weather patterns. Pensacola Energy’s rates are adjusted annually with the
Consumer Price Index (CPI) if approved by City Council. A 3.3% increase was approved in
fiscal year 2018 and a 2.4% increase was approved in fiscal year 2019.

Fiscal year 2020 operating revenues are budgeted at $52.6 million, $320,600 (0.6%) higher than
the prior year budget. The fiscal year 2020 budget was prepared with a 1.9% rate increase based
on Consumer Price Index. Offsetting that increase was a $500,000 decrease in revenues related
to navy projects. Fiscal year 2020 appropriations increased $320,600 (0.6%) over fiscal year
2019 mainly due a $935,300 decrease in operating expenses offset by a $801,300 increase in
personal services and $380,200 increase in capital outlay. Pensacola Energy’s transfer to the
General Fund is budgeted to remain at $8 million. The transfer complies with the City Council
adopted financial planning policy which states “Long-term, the budgeted transfer should not be
more than 15 percent of budgeted ESP revenue”.

Sanitation Services

The City has operated a solid waste collection system for over fifty years. Sanitation service is
mandatory within the city limits and the City provides residential garbage, recycling and trash
collection to approximately 20,400 customers. Commercial dumpster services are provided by
private hauling companies that are franchised by the City and regulated by the Sanitation
Services department. Commercial Solid Waste Franchise fees are set at $1.50 per cubic yard of
non-compacted waste and are used to sustain the Code Enforcement operation.

Sanitation had operating income before depreciation of $736,848; a decrease of $271,155 over
the prior fiscal year. Operating revenue increased by $319,280 (3.9%) during fiscal year 2019
and expenses increased by $590,435 (8.3%). The primary reason for the increase in operating
revenue over the prior fiscal year is attributed to a 2.4% rate increase based on the CPI and a
$1.00 per month increase in the Sanitation Equipment Surcharge. Funds generated by the
Sanitation Equipment Surcharge will be used for the replacement of sanitation equipment. The
Sanitation Equipment Surcharge was $2.00 per month for fiscal year 2019. Residential
sanitation fees are set at $24.64 per month and support the self-sustaining Sanitation Services
operation. In addition, there is a fuel and lubricant pass-through surcharge of $1.50 per month
for fiscal year 2019. The primary increase in expense can be linked to increased repairs and
maintenance on vehicles.

Fiscal year 2020 revenues are budgeted at $8.5 million, $233,600 (2.8%) higher than the prior
year budget. The fiscal year 2020 budget was prepared with a 1.9% rate increase based on the
Consumer Price Index. Fiscal year 2020 appropriations increased by $118,100 (1.4%) over
fiscal year 2019 budget mainly due to a $43,700 increase in the liability insurance, a $21,300
increase in landfill fees and a $20,200 increase in allocated overhead.



Port of Pensacola

The Port of Pensacola, a department of the City, provides marine terminal services connecting
water and land transportation. Revenues are generated through fees for wharfage, handling,
dockage, rent, storage, security, and harbor services. Rates are established in a published,
publicly available tariff. The two basic categories of freight are general cargo and bulk cargo.

The Port had operating income before depreciation of $570,632; an increase from last fiscal year
by $937,100. Operating revenues increased $1,141,213 (90.6%) and expenses increased by
$204,043 (12.5%). The primary reason for the increase in operating revenue can be linked to
increased vessel activity at the Port. The increase in expense can be linked to an increase in
utilities as a direct result of the vessel activity.

For many years the Port of Pensacola has been the recipient of Florida Seaport Transportation
and Economic Development Trust Fund (FSTED) monies to fund capital projects. During fiscal
year 2019, the Port was awarded $897,600 ($560,700 in FSTED funds requiring $336,900 in
local match of which $300,000 will be provided by Local Option Sales Tax dollars) for berth
improvements, upland cargo improvements and maintenance dredging.

Fiscal year 2020 operating revenues are budgeted at $2.1 million, $508,700 (31.42%) higher than
the prior year budget as revenues are based on historical trend information on vessel activity
levels as well as current and prospective lease agreements as well as increased vessel dockage
days currently experienced at the Port. Fiscal year 2020 appropriations increased by $508,700
over fiscal year 2019 budgeted totals primarily due to an increases in operating cost such as
liability insurance, utilities and repairs and maintenance.

Pensacola International Airport

The City of Pensacola owns the Pensacola International Airport and operates the facility as an
enterprise department. The Airport plays an important role in the national, state, and local air
transportation systems, serving as the primary commercial service airport for northwest Florida
and southeast Alabama with a principal service area encompassing Escambia, Santa Rosa, and
Okaloosa Counties in Florida and Baldwin, Escambia and Mobile counties in Alabama. During
fiscal year 2019, 2.2 million passengers utilized the scheduled service of six airlines to eighteen
non-stop destinations making Pensacola the 92nd largest airport out of over 400 commercial
service airports in the United States in terms of the total number of domestic passengers served.

The Airport had operating income before depreciation of $9,840,459; a $607,726 increase over
last fiscal year. The Airport Fund’s operating revenues increased by $2,700,696 (11.6%) in
fiscal year 2019. Airline revenues increased by $73,366 and non-airline revenues increased by
$2,627,330. The primary reason for the increase in non-airline revenues is attributed to interest
income, parking, rental car revenues and customer facilities charges related to rental cars. The
Airport Fund’s operating expenses increased by $2,092,970 (14.9%).

Fiscal year 2020 operating revenues are budgeted at $22.5 million, $1,901,000 (9.2%) higher

than the prior fiscal year budget. Charges to the Airlines such a Loading Bridge fees, Landing
Fees, Apron Area Rentals and Airline Rentals are projected to decrease a total of $147,000
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which results in reduced landing fees passed on to consumers. Non-Airline Revenues such as
Restaurant and Lounge, Hanger/Ground Leases, Parking Lot and Rental Car Customer Facility
Charge revenues are projected to increase a total of $2,048,000. Fiscal year 2020 operating
appropriations decreased by $549,800 over fiscal year 2019 budgeted totals primarily due to a
$3.4 million decrease in debt service payments related to the refunding of the Airport Capital
Improvement Bonds, Series 2008 and the Customer Facility Charges Revenue Note. Offsetting
the increase was a decrease of $2.2 million in airport maintenance expenses and $360,100 in
airport administrative expenses.

The Airport has an operating agreement with the airlines which provides for revenues sufficient
to meet operating expenses, debt service payments and capital expenditures. However, it does
not provide for any incentives given to the airlines nor depreciation which is reported on the
City’s financial statements as an operating expense.

Current Year Events and Future Year Plans

The Pensacola City Council approved a fiscal year 2019 budget of $239,718,600, an increase of
$10,869,800 from the 2018 budget. Overall appropriated fund balance increased by $6,358,400
and overall revenue estimates increased by $4,511,400. The General Fund anticipated an
increase in revenues of $1,801,800 (3.5%) due to a $1,088,000 increase in property taxes as a
result of a 5.79% increase in property valuation, $500,000 increase in Sales and Use Taxes based
on prior year receipts, $210,800 increase in Public Services Tax based on historical trends and a
weather pattern of warm summers and mild to colder winters. The Debt Service Funds
anticipated an increase of $259,000 (4.7%) mainly due to increased transfers to cover debt
service. The Special Revenue Funds anticipated an increase in revenues of $993,300 (2.7%)
mainly due to increased intergovernmental revenues based on available grant funding as well as
other financing sources related to operating transfers. The Capital Project Funds anticipated an
increase in revenues of $185,400 (1.7%) due to increases in Sales and Use Taxes based on prior
year receipts. The Enterprise Funds anticipated an increase in revenues of $1,343,000 (1.5%).
Natural gas sales were projected at $50,922,000, an increase of $527,500 or 1.0% from the fiscal
year 2018 budget. The increase is attributed to increases in the Consumer Price Index which is a
component of Pensacola Energy’s rate structure. Sanitation revenues were projected at
$8,259,000, an increase of $440,600 or 5.6% from the fiscal year 2018 budget. Anticipated
increases in residential refuse charges and a new equipment surcharge based on the rate change
effective June 1, 2017 account for the majority of the increase. Port revenues were projected at
$1,619,100, a decrease of $8,800 or 0.5% from the fiscal year 2018 budget based historical trend
information on vessel activity. Pensacola International Airport revenues were projected at
$20,559,000, an increase of $226,000 or 1.1% from the fiscal year 2018 budget.

Departmental events and plans

Planning Services provides the public the opportunity to obtain input from the administrators of
Planning Services, Inspection Services, Public Works and Engineering by coordinating a
standing weekly development review meeting. Planning Services continues to maintain the
City's Comprehensive Plan, which was updated in 2019 via the State of Florida’s Evaluation and
Appraisal process. Planning Services also maintains the current Land Development Code (LDC)



and continues to work towards encouraging mixed-use development, and implementing form-
based, sustainable development guidelines to create a more walkable-built environment.

The Pensacola Police Department continued its efforts through community policing strategies
to improve communication and relationships between officers and the public by fostering a
closer police-community relationship during fiscal year 2019. In an effort to achieve this goal,
the department participated in numerous town hall meetings to discuss concerns within the
community, worked with neighborhood groups to inform residents about problems in their areas,
how to try to make their neighborhoods safer and also offer another Citizen’s Police Academy,
increasing intentional face-to-face contact with the public to open lines of communication and
continued periodic Coffee with a Cop days held at various locations.

The department also pursued additional funding sources that would allow the department to
improve ways in which police services were provided and further prevent crime. During the past
fiscal year, the department received $196,312 in local, state and federal grants to purchase items
necessary to further crime prevention goals as well as improve officer safety. Grant funds were
used to purchase items such as a 3D Mapping System, SWAT Helmets, Bullet Proof Vests, as
well as provide overtime specifically designated for addressing gun crimes and enforcing DUI
laws. In addition, the department received $37,694 for overtime reimbursement through multi-
jurisdictional task forces through the U.S. Marshal’s Office; Bureau of Alcohol, Tobacco,
Firearms and Explosives; Organized Crime Drug Enforcement Task Force; and the Internet
Crimes against Children Task Force and other miscellaneous revenues.

In fiscal year 2020, the department will continue its efforts to reduce crime by increase
concentrated patrols in known problem areas for burglaries, drugs, etc. as well as partner with
neighborhood associations to educate them about crime in their areas as a means of helping share
information with residents and encourage them to watch for criminal activities.

The Pensacola Fire Department maintained its Insurance Services Organization (ISO) Class 2
rating. A rating based on a class rating scale of 1 (highest) to 10 (lowest) and obtained by
evaluating crucial factors such as: fire suppression, which includes fire station locations,
personnel, apparatus, and equipment; water supply, which includes fire hydrant spacing,
inspections, and fire flow; and communications, which includes station alerting and dispatch,
radio communication equipment, and emergency response times.

In fiscal year 2019, construction was completed on Fire Station 3 and the new station became
response ready and the old Fire Station 3 was demolished as required by the Federal Aviation
Administration. The design of the grant-funded live fire training simulator was completed. New
self-contained breathing apparatus test equipment and a breathing air compressor were installed.
Intrinsically safe LED flashlights are now on all fire apparatus, enhancing firefighter’s ability to
search for victims and hazards in low visibility. Incident reporting and record management
continues to advance allowing the Pensacola fire department to more accurately monitor,
evaluate, and improve what is occurring within the department. The Fire Cadet Program
continues to elevate departmental recruiting, improve staffing, and promote diversity. Employee
training and development continues to evolve with Training Division coordination which
promotes uniformity in all-hazards training exercises and response readiness. Community risk
reduction efforts increased in all community centers and neighborhoods.
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In fiscal year 2020, construction of the live fire training simulator will be completed and the Fire
Boat will undergo grant-funded upgrades. Apparatus and facility maintenance will continue to
be a top priority and a Fire Engine replacement will occur. The department will strive to
continue the advancement of the Fire Cadet Program through renewed recruitment strategies.
Community risk reduction, outreach and fire prevention/education initiatives will continue,
including installation of grant-funded smoke alarms. New employee and supervisor drills,
training and development programs will be implemented. Training exercises and increased
aircraft rescue firefighting (ARFF) response drills will further develop response readiness.
Leadership training provided by Human Resources will be completed by all PFD supervisors as
succession and transition planning continues. Upgrades to the City Emergency Coordination
Center including connectivity and communications with the Escambia County EOC will
continue. Fire apparatus equipment upgrades will continue, including extrication airbags and
high-flow water monitors, which will provide fire companies with more options during rescue
and fire operations. The Pensacola Fire Department will continue to provide a wide range of
services and programs designed to protect the lives and property of the citizens and visitors to the
City of Pensacola from adverse effects of fires, sudden medical emergencies or exposure to
dangerous conditions created by either man or nature.

The Parks and Recreation Department continued it’s committed to improve and promote the
quality of life for all citizens and visitors of Pensacola by protecting the heritage of our parks
while providing a wide range of recreational, social, and educational opportunities. The City of
Pensacola has a total of 93 parks and open spaces, along with 10 community resource centers
which are maintained by the Parks and Building Maintenance Divisions, programmed by the
Recreation Division, and utilized by Pensacola residents and City organizations.

Numerous park improvements occurred in fiscal year 2019. Additional park park projects
included: installation of new playgrounds at Hitzman Park, Armstrong Park and a complete
renovation of Morris Court Park; countless volunteer cleanup days at Chimney Park and Bay
Bluffs Natural Area; repaving of Bayou Texar boat launch parking lot and the awarding of a
contract to rebuild Construction on the new Bayview Community Resource Center began as did
the renovation of Gull Point Community Center and the Bayview Senior Center. The department
will continue to develop the park master plan based on a parks needs assessment report from
University of West Florida (UWF). Fricker Center and the Vickrey Center will receiving some
much needed improvements during fiscal year 2020. Additional projects are taking place at
Highland Terrace Park (new parking), Calloway Park (new basketball courts), Legion Field (new
playground, press box, and tee ball field), Hitzman Park (new athletic fields), Roger Scott Tennis
Center (renovations to the courts), McGee Field (new pressbox), Bill Gregory (restroom
renovations), Scott Pool (restroom renovations), Miraflores Park (Boy Scout Building
renovations), EPH Center (renovations), Bayview Dog Park (renovations), Osceola Golf Course
(new cart paths), and new playgrounds at Springdale, Kiwanis, EPH Lions, Durant, and Tierre
Verde Parks.

Events at the Community Maritime Park continued to increase participation in fiscal year 2019.
UWF Football boasted a home game attendance of over 6,000. Seasonal events such as Blues on
the Bay Concert series and the Hill-Kelly Movies at the Park series stayed consistent with
participation numbers varying from 700 to 2,500 in attendance. This year the City partnered with
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Breath Yoga Studio to provide free Yoga classes the first Sunday of each month. The first event
had over 140 attendees with an average monthly attendance of 75 each following month.
Community Maritime Park ended the year with 68 events and an approximate total attendance of
71,000 in attendance.

Parks and Recreation actively partners with local corporate, non-profit, and community groups to
provide service benefits to the entire community. These organizations support the Parks and
Recreation Department thru sponsorships for events such as the City’s annual Easter Egg Hunt,
Blues on the Bay Music Series, Drive-in Movie, and Halloween Egg Haunt as well as providing
support for recreational, social and educational programs within the City’s Resource Centers and
parks.

The Public Works and Facilities Department continued to meet its mission statement of
providing courteous and quality service, while maintaining the City’s current infrastructure and
constructing new infrastructure. The department maintains 332 miles of roadway, 73 stormwater
ponds, 118 various underground stormwater treatment units, 18 ditches, 2,193 drainage inlets
and 15 major stormwater outfalls. Approximately 2,621 miles of roadway were swept and
approximately 3,872 tons of road debris were removed during fiscal year 2019.

During fiscal year 2019, the department completed Groups IV, Groups V, and Group VI of the
resurfacing project which resurfaced 620 city blocks of asphalt roadway, repaired/replaced
approximately 7,145 feet of existing sidewalk, installed 193 handicap ramps, repaired over 260
potholes, addressed 176 traffic signal issues, and repaired over 100 City owned streetlights. The
department replaced 43 City owned street lights on S Jefferson St with new antique replica style
LED lights which provided energy savings over the older style light that were replaced. The
department also replaced 210 City owned street lights with LED lights along Summit Blvd,
Spanish Trail, Wright Street, and Palafox. In addition, the department installed 4 new video
detection systems and 14 uninterrupted power supplies to traffic signals owned by the City.
Several significant capital stormwater projects were also completed that provided enhanced
treatment and flooding abatement in numerous areas of the City. Major capital stormwater
projects included the installation of two stormwater treatment units at the Woodcliff Drive at
Livingston Outfall, three stormwater treatment units at Raintree, Stow, and Menendez Outfalls,
two large stormwater treatment units at East Cross Street, Yates, Escambia and Osceola Outfalls,
and one large Stormwater treatment unit at the Texar Drive and 18th Avenue Bayou Texar
Outfall.

In fiscal year 2020, the department will complete several large stormwater capital improvement
projects including installation of the piping system to divert water from Langley Avenue to the
new Gaberonne Swamp/Pensacola Bay Watershed Improvements - Spanish Trail Retention
Pond, installation of a stormwater treatment unit at Davis Highway at Carpenter Creek Outfall,
installation of 3 stormwater treatment units on the eastern side of Bayou Texar as well as
installation of 3 stormwater treatment units on the western side of Bayou Texar. Finally, two
large grant-funded stormwater projects including 12th Avenue and Cross Street HMPGP
Stormwater Improvement Project and Lee Street Area-A HMGP Stormwater Improvement
Project will be completed. In addition, the department will complete replacement on Spring
Street, Baylen Street, Intendencia Street, and Rues Street lighting to match Jefferson Street
which a new LED historical replica lighting for consistence in the downtown area.
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The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA), was established in 1980 to implement the
revitalization of a 1,237-block blighted area, referred as the Pensacola Inner City Community
Redevelopment Area. This area encompasses 17th Avenue on the east, Pensacola Bay on the
south, Bayou Chico and the City limit line on the west and the City limit line on the north.
Within the Pensacola Inner City Community Redevelopment Area, there exists three
Redevelopment Areas - the Urban Core Community Redevelopment Area, the Urban Infill and
Redevelopment Area (commonly referred to as Eastside Community Redevelopment Area) and
the Westside Community Redevelopment Area.

The Urban Core Community Redevelopment Area was established in 1984 and has facilitated a
variety of public and private sector redevelopment initiatives since its inception, including
streetscape, park, and commercial fagade improvements and relocation of the Emerald Coast
Utilities Authority (ECUA) Wastewater Treatment Plant. In 2010, public improvements to a 27-
acre waterfront parcel on Pensacola Bay were completed which created the Vince Whibbs, Sr.
Community Maritime Park (CMP), a multi-use athletic stadium, amphitheater and public
promenade, and parcels available for private development. The pivotal redevelopment project
was made possible through the City’s issuance of the Urban Core Redevelopment Revenue
Bond, Series 2009. For many years, the majority of future tax increment revenues were set aside
primarily to pay debt service and fund the operations of the CRA. However, in recent years,
steady growth of the area’s tax base has enabled the initiation several key community
redevelopment projects aimed at encouraging neighborhood livability, blight removal and access
to the waterfront.

In 2019, the City achieved adoption of urban design standards for key downtown neighborhoods,
including historic Belmont DeVilliers and Tanyard, and substantial strides were made towards
the future redevelopment of the former ECUA wastewater treatment plant site, the CMP parcels,
and enhanced accessibility to the Pensacola waterfront. Recent and future capital projects are
supported by the issuance of the Urban Core Redevelopment Revenue Bond, Series 2017 and the
Urban Core Redevelopment Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2019. CRA
initiatives slated for fiscal year 2020 include the continuation of the CRA’s established
residential and commercial improvement programs, as well as, considerable public realm
enhancements such as streetscape improvements to A Street, DeVilliers Street, and Reus Street.

The Eastside Community Redevelopment Area was established in 2005. In 2018, the CRA
completed reconstruction of the historic birth site of General Daniel “Chappie” James, Jr.,
America’s first African American Four Star General, to accommodate the operation of a
commemorative museum and youth flight academy. The project was funded through the issuance
of the Eastside Redevelopment Revenue Bonds, Series 2017. Construction of a 2" phase of
improvements, including an outdoor classroom, streetscape and site enhancements, is slated for
implementation in the upcoming year. In addition to paying debt service, Eastside tax increment

revenues will fund affordable housing programs and public realm improvements during fiscal
year 2020.

The Westside Community Redevelopment Area was established in 2007. However, tax

increment revenues were not received for many years due to the 2008 decline in property values
caused by the recession. In order to remedy this, City Council reaffirmed the existence of blight
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in the district, rescinded the 2007 base year for the Westside Community Redevelopment Area
taxable property values and established a new base year of 2013. With a new base year set, the
CRA started receiving tax increment revenues in 2015. In 2017, the City issued the Westside
Redevelopment Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 to fund critical Westside redevelopment initiatives
supporting blight removal and neighborhood livability. Projects supported by the bond issuance
include streetscape enhancements to “A” Street, development of the West Moreno District
Stormwater Park, and property acquisition and redevelopment. In addition to debt repayment,
Westside tax increment revenues will fund the continued implementation of the CRA’s
established commercial fagade improvement program and public realm improvements during
fiscal year 2020.

The CRA continues to work with private sector concerns to support a revitalized and blight free
community. Investment in the Pensacola Inner City Community Redevelopment Area will assist
in removing blight, maintaining housing affordability and strengthening the property tax base
and potential for future revenue growth.

The Housing Division focused on continuing to meet the community’s need for supportive
services including providing decent, safe, and affordable housing to enhance the quality of life
for all area residents.

In support of the Mayor’s commitment to building stronger neighborhoods, 12 families had their
homes rehabilitated through the city’s Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Housing
Rehabilitation Program during fiscal year 2019. The services of this program include project
development and administration to aid moderate and low income homeowners in repairing their
homes. The program’s successful outcomes include fostering affordable workforce housing and
neighborhood reinvestment, providing jobs, and reducing blight while spending program funds
with local businesses. Funds received through the State Housing Initiatives Partnership (SHIP)
program supported eight families, with special needs, complete repairs to their home.

Additionally, CDBG funds supported the delivery of 16,584 meals for elderly and/or disabled
city residents through the Council on Aging of West Florida, Inc.’s nutritional service programs,
and provided guidance, and educational information for 76 families through the Homebuyer and
Foreclosure Prevention educational program. This service resulted in 29 families purchasing
homes within the community.

SHIP funds assisted 92 families in the community reach the goal of homeownership. The
HOME Homebuyer Program assisted two families in the community reach the goal of
homeownership. In January 2017, City Council supported the establishment of the Housing
Initiatives Fund and the City of Pensacola Housing Incentive Program to offer homebuyer
assistance to families interested in purchasing homes within the city. During 2019, utilizing a
combination of homebuyer programs, 20 families successfully purchased homes within the city.

The Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) Program provided rental assistance for
approximately 2,165 extremely and very low income families each month during fiscal year
2019. This reflects approximately $1.1 million in monthly rental housing assistance in our
community, paid out to an estimated 610 local landlords. Housing Division completed 3,618
inspections of rental units ensuring that families were residing in decent and safe living
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conditions. The HCV Program stabilizes families and allows them to fulfill their other household
obligations, pursue jobs and continue their education, while offering steady monthly rental
income to area property owners.

An average of 177 homeless veterans received rental assistance each month through the Veterans
Affairs Supportive Housing Program (HUD-VASH). Participants received VA case management
services as well as rental assistance from the city to secure housing. Since the initial allocation of
25 HUD-VASH vouchers received in 2009, the Housing Division has increased the total voucher
allocation for this program to 203 to address the housing needs of homeless veterans in the
community.

Pensacola Energy celebrated the end of a 3-year, large scale underground pipeline replacement
project in 2019 removing all cast iron main from the natural gas distribution system. The
current year included the installation of 18.8 miles of main to replace cast iron and an additional
4.4 miles of main installation to replace steel main in existing neighborhoods and along Nine
Mile and Corry Field Roads. Nine miles of natural gas main was installed in ten new
subdivisions serving over 700 lots. Commercial growth activity remains strong primarily in the
areas of downtown Pensacola and around Navy Federal Credit Union.

The natural gas rate ordinance allows for an annual adjustment in rates based on the Consumer
Price Index (CPI), an Infrastructure Recovery Charge as a rate component,a Weather
Normalization Adjustment Factor, and a Purchase Gas Adjustment which includes a dedicated
component to restore Pensacola Energy’s operating reserves. A multi-year infrastructure
replacement plan has been developed for the Infrastructure Recovery Charge which allows costs
to be collected through rates the year following the expenses.

The Sanitation Services and Fleet Management Department is comprised of three separate
activities, including Sanitation Services, Code Enforcement and Fleet Management. In fiscal
year 2019, Sanitation Services collected 16,510 tons of solid waste and 4,282 tons of curbside
recyclables. The City contracts with Escambia County Utility Authority (ECUA) to provide
recyclable processing.

As part of the Mayor’s initiative to reinvest in City neighborhoods, Sanitation Services provides
the Mayor’s Neighborhood Cleanup program to each City neighborhood once per year. The ten
neighborhood cleanups completed in fiscal year 2019 resulted in the removal of 457 tons of bulk
waste, 1,829 old tires and 5,430 cans of old paint. In March 2015, the City of Pensacola and
Escambia County entered into an Interlocal Agreement that provides for exchange of services
that benefit each entity. The agreement provides the City with no-cost yard trash disposal in
exchange for providing ten county neighborhood cleanups.

The Port of Pensacola’s fiscal year 2019 had increases in nearly every measurable — breakbulk
cargo tonnage increased 78%, wind energy component shipments increased 126% and vessel
dockage days were up 287%. As a result, revenue from port operations nearly doubled from $1.3
million in fiscal year 2018 to $2.4 million in fiscal year 2019. For fiscal year 2020, the Port
anticipates continuation of its existing base book of business, including continuation of a major
multi-year, multi-phase vessel conversion and upgrade project being completed by port tenant
Offshore Inland Marine on behalf of space exploration company Blue Origin.
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The Pensacola International Airport had 2.2 million passengers in fiscal year 2019 utilized the
scheduled service of six airlines to eighteen non-stop destinations. In fiscal year 2019, the
Pensacola International Airport continued with capital planning as a result of update of the
Master Plan.

Construction for the Airport’s first large scale Maintenance Repair Overhaul (MRO) facility,
located in the northeast quadrant off of Runway 17/35, was completed in June 2018. This
173,000 square foot hangar facility is now in operation, providing approximately $260,000 in
annual rent to the airport, and providing hundreds of jobs for local residents. Pooled funding for
the project was provided by Florida Department of Transportation, Escambia County, City of
Pensacola, Department of Economic Opportunity, and the tenant. Additional expansion is
projected over the next several years.

The Airport’s most current Master Plan was completed in 1999. In fiscal year 2015, the Airport
solicited qualifications from firms experienced in airport master planning services. Beginning in
fiscal year 2016, the selected consultant reviewed the existing conditions of the Airport and
analyzed the future passenger, aircraft, and facility development demands. The consultant
developed alternatives to ensure the future demands can be met from both a financial and an
operational standpoint. The project has been approved by City Council, with Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA) acceptance expected in January 2020. The master planning services are
funded through Passenger Facility Charges that have already been collected.

For fiscal year 2020, the Airport will continue with the expansion of the MRO campus, the
design/construction of a Customs and Border Protection General Aviation Facility, the expansion
of public parking facilities, and the implementation of projects outlined in the Master Plan to
accommodate the forecast needs of the Airport for the next five years.

Citywide topics

In fiscal year 2019, the City lost two (2) key staff employees: the Chief Human Resources
Officer and the Sanitation & Fleet Management Director. Rod Powell was appointed as the
Interim Chief Human Resources Officer in March 2019. John Pittman was appointed as the
Sanitation & Fleet Management Director on June 17, 2019. The City experienced an 13.74%
turnover rate in fiscal year 2018, a slight increase over the fiscal year 2018 rate of 11.35%.
Based on exit interviews, employees cited increased compensation from other job opportunities
and retirement as the main reason for their separations.

The City has five unions and negotiated pension reform over the past few years. The American
Federation of State County and Municipal Employees (AFSCME) union and the City entered
into a three year agreement on September 19, 2018 for fiscal years October 1, 2018 through
September 30, 2021. The contract provides for the AFSCME members to receive a 3% pay
increase effective October 1, 2018, October 1, 2019 and October 1, 2020. The City and the three
police unions entered into a three year agreement on September 13, 2018 for fiscal years October
1, 2018 through September 30, 2021. The Police Officers’ contract provides for the members to
receive a 10% pay increase effective October 1, 2018, and 4% pay increase effective October 1,
2019 and October 1, 2020. The Police Sergeants’ contract provides for the members to receive a
3% pay increase effective October 1, 2018, and 4% pay increase effective October 1, 2019 and
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October 1, 2020. The Police Lieutenants’ contract provides for the members to receive a 3% pay
increase effective October 1, 2018, October 1, 2019 and October 1, 2020. The City and
International Firefighters’ Association (IFFA) entered into an agreement July 25, 2017 for fiscal
years October 1, 2017 through September 30, 2020. The IFFA contract provides for the
members to receive a 3% pay increase effective October 1, 2017, October 1, 2018 and October 1,
2019. In fiscal year 2020, the City provided a 4% salary adjustment for non-union employees,
effective October 1, 2019. Non-union employees also received a merit increase of 0%, 1% or
2% based on performance reviews, effective October 1, 2019.

For fiscal year 2020, each of the above unions executed a Memorandum of Understanding to
amend their pay increases for October 1, 2019 referenced above in order to receive the same
increases as the nonunion employees, which was a 4% salary adjustment, effective October 1,
2019 and a merit increase of 0%, 1% or 2% based on performance reviews.

Independent Auditors

The Florida Statutes and the City’s Bond Resolutions require an annual audit of the City’s
financial records by an independent certified public accountant. The City’s fiscal year 2019
financial statements have been audited by the certified public accounting firm of Warren Averett,
LLC. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

The City is also required to undergo an annual audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of
its major federal programs and state projects.

Reporting Achievements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada
awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of
Pensacola for its comprehensive annual financial report for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2018. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance
with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.

In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily
readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents
conform to program standards. Such comprehensive annual financial reports must satisfy both
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and applicable legal requirements.
The City of Pensacola has been awarded a Certificate of Achievement for thirty-eight of its last
thirty-nine fiscal years.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that the current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and will be submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

15



Acknowledgements

The City’s accounting staff, as always, is dedicated in preparing a timely and accurate
comprehensive annual financial report. Appreciation is expressed to all those who contributed to
its preparation and to City Council for the continued support of a fiscally sound City
government.

Respectfully submitted,

1A,

Grover C. Robinson, IV Richard Barker, Jr.
Mayor Chief Financial Officer

16



®

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of

Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to
City of Pensacola
Florida

For its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report
for the Fiscal Year Ended

September 30, 2018

Executive Director/CEO

17




CITY OF PENSACOLA

FISCAL YEAR 2019
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

CITIZENS OF

PENSACOLA
| |

CITY COUNCIL CITY CITY MAYOR
ATTORNEY CLERK
| |
COMMUNITY CITY
REDEVELOPMENT ADMINISTRATOR

AGENCY

18




CITY OF PENSACOLA
FISCAL YEAR 2019
CITTY FUNCTIONAL CHART

MAYOR

CITY ADMINISTRATOR

CITY ATTORNEY

CITY CLERK

FINANCIALSERVICES

FIRE

HOUSING

HUMAN RESOURCES

INSPECTION SERVICES

PARKS & RECREATION

PENSACOLAENERGY

PENSACOLA
INTERNATIONALAIRPORT

PLANNING SERVICES

POLICE

PORTOF PENSACOLA

PUBLIC WORKS &
FACILITIES

SANITATION SERVICES AND

FLEET MANAGEMENT

19




CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
LISTING OF ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS

ELECTED OFFICIALS
FY 2019 MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL

: A‘k
Grover C. Robinson, IV
Mayor

Sherri F. Myers P. C. Wu, Ph.D.
District 2 Council Vice President
District 1

-
-

-

?

Andy Terhaar
Gerald Wingate Council President
District 5 District 3

District 4

Jewel Cannada-Wynn
District 7

Ann Hill
District 6

20



CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
LISTING OF ELECTED AND APPOINTED OFFICIALS

ELECTED OFFICIALS
FY 2020 MAYOR & CITY COUNCIL

Grover C. Robinson, IV <
Mayor b -

L/

P. C. Wu, Ph.D.

Sherri F. Myers
District 2 Council Vice President
District 1

Andy Terhaar
John Jerralds Council President
District 5 District 3

District 4

Jewel Cannada-Wynn
District 7

Ann Hill
District 6

21



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



FINANCIAL SECTION

This section contains the following subsections:
INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK



w Warren 316 South Baylen Street, Suite 300
Averett Pensacola, FL 32502

CPAs AND ADVISORS warrenaverett.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Pensacola, Florida

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Pensacola, Florida (the “City”), as of and for the year ended
September 30, 2019, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, business-type activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City
of Pensacola, as of September 30, 2019, and the respective changes in financial position and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof and the respective budgetary comparisons for the General Fund, the
Community Redevelopment Agency Fund, the Urban Core Redevelopment Trust Fund, the Eastside
Tax Increment Financing District Fund, the Westside Tax Increment Financing District Fund, Hospital
Special Assessment Fund, and the Housing Assistance Payments Fund, for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and schedules related to pension and other post-employment
benefits, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.
Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Pensacola, Florida’'s basic financial statements. The introductory
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, statistical
section, and financial data schedule are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a
required part of the basic financial statements of the City of Pensacola, Florida.

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards, passenger facility charges, and state
financial assistance is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance), and as specified in the Passenger Facility
Charges Audit Guide for Public Agencies, issued by the Federal Aviation Administration, and by
Section 215.97, Florida Statutes, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of
the City of Pensacola, Florida.

The combining and individual fund financial statements and schedules, the financial data schedule
and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, passenger facility charges, and state financial
assistance are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements
or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information
is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.
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The introductory section and statistical section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February
10, 2020, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion
on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal
control over financial reporting and compliance.

Wen Gveec- LLC.

Pensacola, Florida
February 10, 2020
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This section will provide a comparative analysis between fiscal year 2019 and 2018. The
comparison amounts are shown at a summary level with additional detail provided for
explanation. The format is designed to provide the reader a narrative overview of the City’s
financial activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2019. This discussion should be read in
conjunction with the Letter of Transmittal located in the Introductory Section.

Financial Highlights

The City’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources (net position) as of September 30, 2019 by $401,986,395. Of this
amount, the net investment in capital assets totaled $381,403,188, which is unavailable,
and restricted net position totaled $37,915,870 resulting in a negative unrestricted net
position of $17,332,663. Unrestricted net position is negative primarily due to GASB
Statement No. 68, which reduced governmental activities unrestricted net position by
$64,999,227 and business-type activities by $17,582,207 for a total reduction of
$82,581,434. GASB Statement No. 68 requires the City to report on the face of the
financial statements the deferred inflows, deferred outflows and net pension liabilities for
each of the City’s pension plans and the City’s proportionate share of the Florida
Retirement System (FRS). This unfunded pension obligation will continue to negatively
impact unrestricted net position for future periods until all plans have been fully funded.
For a more detailed explanation of GASB Statement No. 68 refer to the Government-
Wide Financial Analysis section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

The City’s total net position of $336,847,195 increased $30,279,855 (9.9%) over the
fiscal year 2018 net position of $306,567,340. Governmental activities increased by
$13,216,811 (16.7%) and business-type activities increased by $17,063,044 (7.5%). For
a detailed explanation of these fluxes refer to the Government-Wide Financial Analysis
section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

As of September 30, 2019, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund
balances of $92,314,408, an increase of $13,216,811 (16.7%) over the prior fiscal year.
The increase can be attributed to the issuance of the Urban Core Redevelopment
Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2019 which had a net effect of
$18,000,264 on total fund balance related to unspent bond proceeds. For a detailed
explanation of the fluxes refer to the Government-Wide Financial Analysis section of this
report. The unassigned fund balance for the City’s General Fund is $1,516,294.
Unassigned fund balance is the portion of fund balance which is not obligated or
specifically designated and is available for any purpose.

Governmental funds’ revenues increased by $16,086,327 (18.3%) over the prior fiscal
year total of $88,039,442. The major increase in governmental funds’ revenues stems
from the addition of the Hospital Special Assessment Fund which had $14,462,331 in
revenues. The Hospital Special Assessment Fund was created to account for the non-ad
valorem assessment imposed on real property owned by hospitals located within the City
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of Pensacola. The purpose of the assessment is to support the provision of charity health
care by the hospitals to indigent members if the Northwest Florida community.
Significant increases in revenues of $1,725,468 also occurred in General Fund, $377,305
in Local Option Sales Tax revenues, $504,742 in non-general fund interest income,
$500,472 in tax increment revenues and $399,011 in reimbursements related to the
Natural Disaster Fund. Offsetting the increases was $834,958 in Section 8 Housing
Choice Vouchers program funding, $1,111,388 in intergovernmental revenues and
donations recorded in the Special Grants Fund and a $385,645 decrease in Community
Development Block Grant funding.

Governmental funds’ expenditures increased by $3,792,364 (5.3%) over the prior fiscal
year total of $110,058,129. The major increase in governmental funds’ expenditures
stems from a $14,462,331 increase for the Hospital Special Assessment Fund, which was
offset by a $9,133,665 decrease in capital expenditures and a $1,101,660 decrease in debt
service payments.

The City’s General Fund fund balance, excluding restricted fund balance, increased by
$4,266,850 from $18,817,494 to $23,084,344 in fiscal year 2019 related to increased
revenues and a one-time transfer in from the City’s Inspection Services Fund. Included in
the committed fund balance is Council Reserves of $13,793,017. The Council Reserve
balance represents 23.89% of fiscal year 2020 beginning budgeted General Fund
appropriations which exceeds the 20% minimum reserve goal stated in the City Council’s
Fund Balance Policy. The General Fund had a decrease in restricted fund balance of
$154,331 related to a decrease in contractual obligations. Total fund balance increased
by $4,112,519 (20.7%) from fiscal year 2018.

General Fund revenues increased over fiscal year 2018 by $1,725,468 (3.8%) mainly
related to a $1,079,707 increase in ad valorem tax revenues, $215,203 in interest income
and $300,469 in intergovernmental revenues. Expenditures increased by $2,041,575
(4.5%) primarily as a result of increased personnel cost related to increases in employee
pay and the addition of four budgeted positions which were filled during fiscal year 2019.

The City’s enterprise funds reported combined ending net position of $243,662,975, an
increase of $16,193,232 (6.6%) in comparison to the prior fiscal year. Of the total net
position amount, $194,787,731 represents net investment in capital assets which
increased $8,562,246 (10.4.6%). Operating revenues increased by $4,551,523 (5.5%)
from last fiscal year and operating expenses before depreciation increased by $1,861,035
(3.3%). For a detailed explanation of these fluxes refer to the Government-Wide
Financial Analysis section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis.
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Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City’s basic financial
statements. These statements have three components: 1) government-wide financial statements,
2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements. This report also contains
other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. Following is a

chart that illustrates the components of the CAFR.

COMPONENTS OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT

Management’s Basic Required
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and Statements Information
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[ I
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Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview
of the City of Pensacola’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents financial information on all the City’s assets, liabilities,
and deferred inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. The
focus of the statement is designed to be similar to bottom line results for the City and its
governmental and business-type activities.  This statement combines and consolidates
governmental funds current financial resources (short-term spendable resources) with capital
assets and long term obligations. Over time, increases and decreases in net position may serve as
a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the City’s net position changed
during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported for some items that will only result in cash
flows in future fiscal years (e.g., earned but unused vacation leave and revenue in connection
with receivables which are not considered available to liquidate liabilities of the current period).

Both the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Pensacola
that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities
such as police, fire, public works, recreation and general administration) from other functions
that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City include general
government, public safety, transportation, culture and recreation, economical and physical
environment, and human services. The business-type activities of the City include the airport,
seaport, natural gas utility services and sanitation services.

Discretely presented component units, which are legally separate governmental units over which
the City can exercise influence, are presented as a separate column in the government-wide
statements. The Downtown Improvement Board in the only discretely presented component unit
of the City. The focus of the financial statements is the Primary Government, which are the
operations of the City.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts used to maintain control over resources that have been
segregated for specific activities or objectives. Traditional users of the CAFR will find the Fund
Financial Statements presentation more familiar. The focus is on “major” funds, rather than fund
types, as reported in the traditional financial statement presentation. All of the City’s funds can
be divided into three categories: governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.
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Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
However, unlike the government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial
statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as balances
of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in
evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements.

Since the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
This allows readers to better understand the long-term impact of the government’s near-term
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

Governmental fund information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet
and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances
for the General Fund, Housing Assistance Payments Fund, Community Redevelopment Agency
Fund, Urban Core Redevelopment Trust Fund, Eastside Tax Increment Financing District Fund,
Westside Tax Increment Financing District Fund, CRA Debt Service Fund, Hospital Special
Assessment Fund, CRA 2017 Project Fund and CRA 2019 Project Fund, all of which are
considered to be major funds. All other governmental type funds are considered “nonmajor” and
are reported in a single, aggregated column. Individual fund data for each of these nonmajor
governmental funds is provided in the form of Combining Statements and Individual Fund
Statements and Schedules section of this report.

Blended component units, which are legally separate entities in which the City and the entity
have substantially the same governing body or the entity’s debt is expected to be repaid almost
entirely with resources from the City, are presented as funds of the primary government. The
Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) is the only blended component unit of the City.

Proprietary Funds. Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the business-
type activities in the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The proprietary
fund financial statements can be found in the Basic Financial Statements section of this report.

The City of Pensacola maintains two types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal
service funds. The City uses enterprise funds to account for the assets, operation and
maintenance of the City-owned natural gas service, garbage and trash service, port facility, and
airport. Internal service funds are used to account for activities that provide goods and services
to other City departments such as computers, telecommunications, fleet maintenance, insurance,
mail and engineering. Since internal service funds predominately benefit governmental rather
than business-type functions, they have been included within governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements.
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Fiduciary Funds. The City of Pensacola is the plan sponsor for the General Pension,
Firefighters’ and Police Officers’ retirement fund. The City is responsible for ensuring that the
assets reported in these funds are used for their intended purposes. All of the City’s fiduciary
activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement of changes
in net position. These activities are excluded from the government-wide financial statements
because the assets cannot be used to support or finance the City’s programs or operations.
During fiscal year 2007, the City closed the General Pension requiring new general employees to
participate in the Florida Retirement System (FRS) though the General Pension remains open for
existing participants who chose not to participate in the FRS. During fiscal year 2013, the City
closed the Police Officers’ Retirement fund requiring new police employees to participate in the
Florida Retirement System (FRS) though the Police Officers’ Retirement fund remains open for
existing participants who chose not to participate in the FRS.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes to the financial statements provide additional information that is essential to gain a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The
notes can be found as part of the Basic Financial Statements section of this report.

Other information

This report additionally includes Required Supplementary Information (RSI) containing
schedules of the City’s total Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) liability and the City’s net
pension liability and contributions for the City’s three sponsored pension plans as well as the
City’s proportionate share in the Florida Retirement System pension plan and health insurance
subsidy program. Combining statements for nonmajor governmental funds and internal service
funds are included as well as budgetary comparisons for all debt service and nonmajor
governmental funds. Additional information about the City can be found in the Statistical
Section.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

The City of Pensacola adopted the government-wide financial statement presentation. This
reporting structure and measurement focus using accrual accounting for all of the government’s
activities was mandated by the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) in Statement
No. 34, Basic Financial Statements - and Management’s Discussion and Analysis - for State and
Local Governments. Comparative data for fiscal years ending September 30, 2019 and 2018 is
presented.

It is important to note that GASB Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Pensions; an amendment of GASB Statement No. 27, was implemented during fiscal year 2015.
GASB Statement No. 68 requires governments that offers defined pension benefits to its
employees to report on the face of its financial statements the unfunded pension obligation (the
“Net Pension Liability”). In the past, the Net Pension Liability was shown in the notes to the
financial statements only.
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In addition, GASB Statement No. 68 requires each local government participating in a defined
benefit cost-sharing multiple-employer pension plans, such as the Florida Retirement System
(FRS), to report on the face of its financial statements their proportionate share of the
“collective” Net Pension Liability. In the past, governments did not directly report information
about their proportionate share of these pension obligations. Instead, governments only reported
a liability to the extent that they failed to make their required contributions.

GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
other than pensions, was implemented during fiscal year 2018. GASB Statement No. 75
requires governments that offer other post-employment benefits (OPEB) to its employees to
report on the face of its financial statements the total unfunded OPEB obligation (the “Total
OPEB Liability”). In the past, the Total OPEB Liability report on the face of the financial
statements represented only the unfunded annual required contributions since implementation of
GASB Statement No. 45 in fiscal year 2008.

Both the Net Pension Liability and Total OPEB Liability are recorded at the fund level for
proprietary activities and the allocated amount for governmental activities is presented at the
government-wide level. The recording of the deferred inflows, deferred outflows, total pension
liabilities and total OPEB liability for each of the City’s pension plans, the City’s proportionate
share of the Florida Retirement System (FRS) and the City’s OPEB negatively impact the City’s
unrestricted net position. The governmental fund-level statements are not affected by this
pronouncement which use a modified-accrual basis of accounting.

At year-end, the City is reporting positive balances in two of three categories of net position for
governmental activities and all three categories for business-type activities.

Summary Statement of Net Position

As of September 30, 2019
Governmental Business-Type Total Primary
Activities Activities Government
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Current and other assets $ 87735016 S 83,382,179 $  70,335496 $ 66,616,175 $ 158,070,512 $ 149,998,354
Internal balances 641,318 1,228,438 (641,318) (1,228,438) 0 0
Noncurrent assets 26,413,509 16,786,541 14,119,994 13,483,259 40,533,503 30,269,800
Capital assets 259,051,922 258,648,045 259,745,302 257,865,074 518,797,224 516,513,119
Total assets 373,841,765 360,045,203 343,559,474 336,736,070 717,401,239 696,781,273
Total deferred outflows
of resources 21,329,155 25,646,532 6,451,916 7,052,328 27,781,071 32,698,860
Current and other liabilities 15,003,074 16,570,829 10,285,205 10,605,738 25,288,279 27,176,567
Noncurrent liabilities 208,134,221 203,421,755 103,941,629 104,390,073 312,075,850 307,811,828
Total liabilities 223,137,295 219,992,584 114,226,834 114,995,811 337,364,129 334,988,395
Total deferred inflows
of resources 13,710,205 9,395,657 2,406,786 1,322,844 16,116,991 10,718,501
Net position:
Net investment in
capital assets, 186,615,457 191,203,167 194,787,731 186,225,485 381,403,188 377,428,652
Restricted 24,658,258 23,754,264 13,227,612 12,176,912 37,885,870 35,931,176
Unrestricted (52,980,295) (58,653,937) 35,647,632 29,067,346 (17,332,663) (29,586,591)
Total net position $  158,293420 $ 156,303,494 § 243,662,975 $ 227,469,743 $ 401,956,395 $ 383,773,237
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The total City’s net investment in capital assets, such as land, roads, parks, buildings, machinery
and equipment, is greater than the total net position. The City’s net investment in capital assets
is presented less any outstanding debt related to the acquisition and accumulated depreciation of
those assets. The City uses these capital assets to provide services to the citizens and
consequently these assets are not available for future spending. Although the investment in
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay
this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to liquidate these liabilities.

Restricted net position are resources subject to external restriction on how they may be used
while unrestricted assets may be used to meet the City’s ongoing obligations to citizens and
creditors. Unrestricted net position represents 14.6% of total net position for business-type
activities. Unrestricted net position for governmental activities is negative primarily due to the
unfunded pension obligations totaling $64,999,227 and unfunded OPEB obligations of
$16,954,816. These unfunded obligations will continue to negatively impact unrestricted net
position for future periods until all obligations have been fully funded. In addition, the
unrestricted net position for governmental activities is negatively impacted due to the recognition
of the City’s long-term contribution to the Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA) of
$10,400,000. In March 2007, the CRA approved an amended plan and assisted in the funding of
the relocation of the Main Street wastewater treatment plant. The $19.5 million contribution
resulted in a long-term liability which was recognized in fiscal year 2012 and as of the
September 30, 2019 has $10.4 million remaining. Of this commitment $975,000 is reserved as
restricted net position. Since the commitment is a long-term liability and future revenue sources
have been pledged for the annual payment of $1.3 million which began in fiscal year 2013 with
the last payment in fiscal year 2027, it is expected that this commitment will continue to
negatively impact unrestricted net position for future periods.

(Remainder of this page intentionally left blank)
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Revenues
Program revenues:
Charges for services

Operating grants and contributions

Capital grants and contributions

General revenues:
Property taxes
Other taxes
Intergovernmental
Investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital asset
Other

Total revenues

Expenses

General government
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Economic environment
Physical environment
Human services
Unallocated deprecation
Interest on long-term debt
Utility
Sanitation
Port
Airport

Total expenses

Increase (decrease) in net position
before transfers and other items

Transfers in (out)

Increase (decrease) in
net position

Net position at beginning of year

Change in accounting principle -
Implementation of GASB 75

Net position as restated

Net position at end of year

$

Changes in Net Position

Year Ended September 30, 2019

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
9,201,378 § 8,788,795 $ 86,809,081 $ 82,108,892 96,010,459 $ 90,897,687
36,160,940 21,219,767 36,160,940 21,219,767
2,533,119 3,239,646 10,172,410 24,610,034 12,705,529 27,849,680
15,718,156 14,638,449 15,718,156 14,638,449
31,410,263 31,123,533 31,410,263 31,123,533
7,630,878 7,330,410 7,630,878 7,330,410
1,683,080 946,252 1,353,089 837,949 3,036,169 1,784,201
708,896 2,529,358 112,180 29,531 821,076 2,558,889
29,113 35,573 605,249 753,915 634,362 789,488
105,075,823 89,851,783 99,052,009 108,340,321 204,127,832 198,192,104
12,101,937 12,382,833 12,101,937 12,382,833
36,484,101 37,978,435 36,484,101 37,978,435
5,333,798 4,057,926 5,333,798 4,057,926
14,315,481 13,787,334 14,315,481 13,787,334
16,877,887 18,318,018 16,877,887 18,318,018
5,524,973 4,033,681 5,524,973 4,033,681
14,492,331 30,000 14,492,331 30,000
1,917,285 2,025,235 1,917,285 2,025,235
5,953,180 4,324,860 5,953,180 4,324,860
34,105,382 34,940,330 34,105,382 34,940,330
7,488,155 6,901,117 7,488,155 6,901,117
2,713,331 2,615,462 2,713,331 2,615,462
28,606,833 26,533,722 28,606,833 26,533,722
113,000,973 96,938,322 72,913,701 70,990,631 185,914,674 167,928,953
(7,925,150) (7,086,539) 26,138,308 37,349,690 18,213,158 30,263,151
9,945,076 10,480,300 (9,945,076) (10,480,300) 0 0
2,019,926 3,393,761 16,193,232 26,869,390 18,213,158 30,263,151
156,303,494 157,756,967 227,469,743 202,497,845 383,773,237 360,254,812

0 (4,847,234) 0 (1,897,492) 0 (6,744,726)

156,303,494 152,909,733 227,469,743 200,600,353 383,773,237 353,510,086
158,323,420 $ 156,303,494 $ 243,662,975 $ 227,469,743 $ 401,986,395 $ 383,773,237
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Governmental Activities
Fiscal Year 2019

Program expenses matched with program revenues
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GASB Statement No. 34 reporting requires that functional expenses are matched with revenues
that directly support the function. The increase in current year net position for Governmental
Activities on the Statement of Activities equaled $2,019,926. The majority of this increase can
be attributed to the Pension Expense recognized in association with GASB Statement No. 68.
Pension Expense is an actuarial determined number which can fluctuate greatly from year to year
as it is calculated based on actual verses expected market experience, benefit changes and
changes in actuarial assumptions. Pension expense recognized in fiscal year 2019 was
significantly lower than fiscal year 2018 resulting in a decrease in overall functional expenses.
The bar chart above gives a clear indication of which functions are dependant on general
revenues to support their operations. Excluding General Government, Public Safety has the
largest differences as this function is traditionally supported by taxes. Taxes, investment
earnings and other revenues are classified as general revenues of the government. Taxes
continue to be the largest revenue source for governmental activities.
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Business-type Activities
Fiscal Year 2019

Expenses compared to charges for services revenues
(Including depreciation and bad debt expense)
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The increase in current year net position for Business-type Activities on the Statement of
Activities totaled $16,193,232. The Utility Fund increased $7,690,540, the Sanitation Fund
increased $493,865, the Port Fund increased $3,000,522 and Airport Fund increased $5,008,305.
All funds charged fees sufficient to cover operations when excluding depreciation.
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Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

The City of Pensacola uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance
related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The focus of governmental funds is to provide information on near-term
inflows, outflows and balances of spendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing
the City’s financing requirements. In particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful
measure of a government’s net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of September 30, 2019, the City’s governmental funds reported combined fund balances of
$92,314,408, an increase of $13,216,811 (16.71%) over the prior fiscal year. The increase can
be attributed to the issuance of the Urban Core Redevelopment Refunding and Improvement
Revenue Bond, Series 2019 which had a net effect of $18,000,264 on total fund balance related
to unspent bond proceeds and an increase of $4,112,519 in the City’s General Fund related to
increased revenues and a one-time transfer in from the City’s Inspection Services Fund.
Offsetting those increases was an $8,350,531 decrease in fund balance in the City’s Local Option
Sales Tax (LOST) Project Fund related to capital purchases.

Non-spendable and restricted governmental funds balance of $63,201,547 are available to meet
current commitments in the next fiscal year; $46,579 of non-spendable for prepaids and
inventory; $365,127 for Saenger capital reserve; $4,455,146 for debt service requirements;
$34,432,790 for community development projects and $23,901,905 for other purposes leaving a
remaining unrestricted fund balance of $29,112,861.

Below is a comparative chart for the City’s “major” funds; General Fund, Housing Assistance
Payments Fund, Community Redevelopment Agency Fund, Urban Core Redevelopment Trust
Fund, Eastside Tax Increment Financing District Fund, Westside Tax Increment Financing
District Fund, CRA Debt Service Fund, Housing Assistance Payments Fund, CRA 2017 Project
Fund and CRA 2019 Project Fund.

Major Fund Information

Eastside Tax
Housing Community Urban Core Increment
Assistance Redevelopment  Redevelopment Financing
General Fund Payments Fund Agency Fund Trust Fund District Fund
Fiscal Year 2019
Revenues and other sources $ 57,826,726 $ 16,136,936 $ 2,738,728 $ 5,898,476 $ 171,413
Expenditures and other outlays (53,714,207) (16,222,504) (2,963,553) (5,898.,476) (205,700)
Increase (decrease) in fund balance ~ $ 4,112,519 $ (85,568) $ (224,825) $ 0 $ (34,287)
Fiscal Year 2018
Revenues and other sources $ 53,675,020 $ 16,970,694 $ 4216,636 $ 5,260,081 $ 128,377
Expenditures and other outlays (50,819,746) (16,850,659) (2,694,352) (5,260,081 (88,577)
Increase (decrease) in fund balance ~ $ 2855274 $ 120,035 $ 1,522,284 $ 09 39,800
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Major Fund Information (continued)

Westside Tax
Increment
Financing Hospital Special CRA Debt CRA 2017 CRA 2019
District Fund Assessment Service Fund Project Fund Project Fund
Fiscal Year 2019
Revenues and other sources $ 435174 $ 14,462,331 $ 5,001,701 $ 217,192 $ 58,409,746
Expenditures and other outlays (426,303) (14,462,331) (5,729,192) (987,015) (40,409,482)
Increase (decrease) in fund balance ~ $ 8,871 $ 09 (727,491) $ (769,823) $ 18,000,264
Fiscal Year 2018
Revenues and other sources $ 308,215 $ 09 4582896 $ 8,144,473 $ 0
Expenditures and other outlays (350,703) 0 (4,620,963) (951,131) 0
Increase (decrease) in fund balance ~ $ (42,488) $ 0% (38,067) $ 7,193,342 $ 0

The General Fund is the main operating fund of the City. At September 30, 2019, total fund
balance in the General Fund was $23,991,947, an increase of $4,112,519 (20.69%) from
beginning fund balance. The unrestricted portion of fund balance was $23,084,344, however
$13,793,017 is committed for the Council Reserve, $109,195 is committed for park purchases,
$495,451 is committed for the tree planting trust fund, $1,543,396 is assigned for general
government, $5,100,000 is assigned for future fund balance draw downs, $25,920 is assigned for
assessments, $51,762 is assigned for housing initiatives and $449,309 is assigned for inner city
housing initiatives leaving an unassigned fund balance of $1,516,294.

As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, a comparison of both total and unrestricted fund
balances compared with total fund operating expenditures shows percentages of 50.24% and
48.34%, respectively. The Government Finance Officer’s Association (GFOA) Best Practice
recommendation is for a government to maintain in its General Fund unrestricted fund balance
no less than two months of General Fund operating expenditures. At 48.34% of unrestricted
fund balance, this provides more than five months of coverage.

The Housing Assistance Payments Fund had a total fund balance at year-end of $3,220,515, a
decrease of $85,568 (2.59%). Fund balance of $601 is non-spendable and $3,219,914 is
restricted for housing assistance payments as required by the Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD). Changes to fund balance are a function of federal funding by the HUD
and the operating efficiency employed by the City’s Housing staff. Fluctuations can be large or
small depending on the goals of the federal government programs.

The Community Redevelopment Agency Fund was created to account for the development
projects in the Urban Core Community Redevelopment Area as well as administrative cost
associated with running the program. The Community Redevelopment Agency had a total fund
balance at fiscal year-end of $4,455,117, a decrease of $224,825. All funds are restricted to be
spent on CRA operations, community development projects in the Urban Core CRA district and
repayment of debt.

The Urban Core Redevelopment Trust Fund was created to account for the tax increment

receipts collected in the Urban Core Community Redevelopment Area. The receipts collected
throughout the year are transferred to the Community Redevelopment Agency Fund and the
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CRA Debt Service Fund in order to pay for CRA operations, debt service and community
development projects in the Urban Core CRA district. The Urban Core Redevelopment Trust
Fund had a total fund balance at year-end of $0.

The Eastside Tax Increment Financing District Fund was created to account for the tax
increment receipts and development projects in the Urban Infill and Redevelopment Area as well
as administrative cost associated with running the program. The Eastside Tax Increment
Financing District Fund had a total fund balance at fiscal year-end of $620,206, a decrease of
$34,357. All funds are restricted to be spent on operations, community development projects
and repayment of debt in the Eastside CRA district.

The Westside Tax Increment Financing District Fund was created to account for the tax
increment receipts and development projects in the Urban Infill and Redevelopment Area as well
as administrative cost associated with running the program. The Westside Tax Increment
Financing District Fund had a total fund balance at fiscal year-end of $89,775, an increase of
$8,871. All funds are restricted to be spent on operations, community development projects and
repayment of debt in the Westside CRA district.

The Hospital Special Assessment Fund was created to account for the non-ad valorem
assessment imposed on real property owned by hospitals located within the City of Pensacola.
The purpose of the assessment is to support the provision of charity health care by the hospitals
to indigent members if the Northwest Florida community. The assessment collected by the City
is paid to the State of Florida, Agency for Health Care Administration. The State than uses those
funds to draw down a federal match of grant dollars equal to approximately 150% of the
assessment dollars collect which are then returned to the participating hospitals. The Hospital
Special Assessment Fund had a total fund balance at fiscal year-end of $0.

The CRA Debt Service Fund had a total fund balance at fiscal year-end of $2,894,782 which is
restricted for debt service payments on the Redevelopment Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A,
Eastside Redevelopment Revenue Bond, Series 2017, Westside Redevelopment Revenue Bond,
Series 2017, Urban Core Redevelopment Revenue Bond, Series 2017 and Urban Core
Redevelopment Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2019. The fund balance
decrease of $727,491 is related to a planned drawdown of fund balance to cover current year
debt payments.

The CRA 2017 Project Fund had a total fund balance at fiscal year-end of $11,267,554. The
fund was created to account for the cost of certain community redevelopment capital
improvements in the Eastside Neighborhood Redevelopment Area, the Westside Neighborhood
Redevelopment Area and the Urban Core Redevelopment Area. Project funds came from the
issuance of the Eastside Redevelopment Revenue Bond, Series 2017, the Westside
Redevelopment Revenue Bond, Series 2017 (both issued on August 15, 2017) and the Urban
Core Redevelopment Revenue Bond, Series 2017 issued on November 15, 2017. The fund
balance will continue to decrease as project funds are spent.

The CRA 2019 Project Fund had a total fund balance at fiscal year-end of $18,000,264. The
fund was created to account for the cost of certain community redevelopment capital
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improvements in the Urban Core Redevelopment Area. Project funds came from the issuance of
the Urban Core Redevelopment Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bond, Series 2019 issued
on July 25, 2019. The fund balance will continue to decrease as project funds are spent.

Proprietary Funds. Proprietary fund statements provide the same information as in the
business-type activities column of the government-wide statements, but in greater detail, and on
a fund basis for enterprise funds and the internal service funds. All of the City’s enterprise funds
are classified as major funds.

Enterprise Funds.

The City of Pensacola does not budget for depreciation, bad debt expense, unfunded pension
obligations or other postemployment benefits. However, personal cost, operating expenses,
capital outlay, and principal and interest payments are budgeted.

The Utility Fund had total net position of $58,251,633 at fiscal year-end, an increase of
$7,690,540 (15.2%) over the prior fiscal year. Pensacola Energy operated at a profit of
$17,868,804 before depreciation expense of $2,370,999 and an $8,000,000 transfer to the
General Fund; an increase from last fiscal year by $1,416,747. Operating revenue increased by
$390,334 (0.8%) during fiscal year 2019 and operating expenses decreased by $1,026,413
(3.0%). The primary reason for the increase in operating revenue is attributed to a 2.4% rate
increase based on the CPI. The primary decrease in expense can be linked to decrease in salaries
and employee benefits due to a reallocation of personnel between operating accounts and capital
construction accounts. In fiscal year 2019, the cost of natural gas increased by $253,761.
Excluding the cost of gas, operating expenses decreased by $1,280,174.

The Sanitation Fund had total negative net position of $1,076,491 at fiscal year-end, a decrease
of $493,865 (31.5%) over the prior fiscal year. Sanitation Services operated at a profit of
$736,848 before depreciation expense of $311,681; a decrease from last fiscal year by $271,155.
Operating revenue increased by $319,280 (3.9%) during fiscal year 2019 and expenses increased
by $590,435 (8.3%). The primary reason for the increase in operating revenue over the prior
fiscal year is attributed to a 2.4% rate increase based on the CPI and a $1.00 per month increase
in the Sanitation Equipment Surcharge. The primary decrease in expense can be linked to
increased repairs and maintenance on vehicles.

The Port Fund had total net position of $16,262,652 at fiscal year-end, an increase of
$3,000,522 (22.6%) from the prior fiscal year primarily due to federal and state grants. The Port
operated at a profit of $570,632 before depreciation expense of $999,924; an increase from last
fiscal year by $937,170. Operating revenues increased $1,141,213 (90.6%) and expenses
increased by $204,043 (12.5%). The primary reason for the increase in operating revenue can be
linked to increased vessel activity at the Port. The increase in expense can be linked to an
increase in utilities as a direct result of the vessel activity.

The Airport Fund had total net position of $170,225,181 at fiscal year-end, an increase of

$5,008,305 (3.0%) over the prior fiscal year. The Airport operated at a profit of $9,840,459
before depreciation expense of $11,322,744; an increase from last fiscal year of $607,726. The
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Airport Fund’s operating revenues increased by $2,700,696 (11.6%) in fiscal year 2019. Airline
revenues increased by $73,366 and non-airline revenues increased by $2,627,330. The primary
reason for the increase in non-airline revenues is attributed to interest income, parking, rental car
revenues and customer facilities charges related to rental cars. The Airport Fund’s operating
expenses increased by $2,092,970 (14.9%). The majority of the increase in expense can be
linked to an increase in repairs and maintenance. The Airport has an operating agreement with
the airlines which provides for revenues sufficient to meet operating expenses, debt service
payments and fund a capital reserve account. However, it does not provide for any incentives
given to the airlines nor depreciation which is reported on the City’s financial statements as an
operating expense.

The chart below shows the operating income of each enterprise fund. The chart includes
depreciation, bad debt expense and other post-employment benefits.

Operating Income (Loss)

2019 2018
Utility Fund $ 15,497,805 $ 14,368,590
Sanitation Fund 425,167 721,202
Port Fund (429,292)  (1,490,944)
Airport Fund (1,482,285) (758,681)
Total $ 14,011,395 § 12,840,167

Internal Service Funds

The internal service funds are designed to recover the internal costs of general services provided
to other city departments. The increase in total net position for all internal service funds was
$1,574,378. The City’s Insurance Retention Fund increased by $699,576 and the Central
Services Fund increased by $874,802. Both increases were related to an additional charge out to
City departments in order to increase reserves. The increase in the Insurance Retention Fund
was to build reserves for cost associated with the City of Pensacola’s ransomware attack and the
increase in the Central Services Fund was to build reserves for large planned capital purchases.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

In accordance with Chapter 166.241, Florida Statues, the Mayor or his designee may authorize
budget amendments if the total appropriations of the fund are not changed. The Mayor has
established budgetary control within each fund at the line item. Amounts may be transferred
between departmental line items or between departments within a fund provided no transfer shall
be made contrary to Florida Statue. Amounts to be transferred require the approval of the
Mayor or his designee; however, amounts appropriated for capital outlay can only be transferred
from the capital outlay category with City Council approval. The budgetary changes as
described below were a necessary part for overall operations of the City’s activities reported in
the General Fund.
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The final budget as compared with the original budget for the General Fund estimated revenues
increased by $1,444,521 (3.16%) during fiscal year 2019. The majority of the increase was
made up of $603,504 in taxes, $163,479 in intergovernmental revenues, $137,786 in charges for
services and $307,441 in interest income.

The final appropriations in the General Fund as compared with the original budget increased by
$2,534,140 (5.25%) in fiscal year 2019. The primary reason for the increase relates to:

e An increase in appropriations for general government of $404,180 is primarily related to
carryforwards from the prior fiscal year budget to cover open encumbrances and projects.
Offsetting the increase was additional overhead cost recovery received by the general
fund.

e An increase in appropriations for public safety in the amount of $122,844 is primarily
related to the carryforward from the prior fiscal year budget to cover open encumbrances
and projects.

e An increase in appropriations for transportation in the amount of $836,338 is primarily
related to the carryforward from the prior fiscal year budget to cover open encumbrances
and projects.

e An increase in appropriations for culture and recreation in the amount of $370,796 is
related to the carryforward from the prior fiscal year budget to cover open encumbrances
and projects.

e An increase in appropriations for economic environment in the amount of $726,627 is
primarily related to the carryforward from the prior fiscal year budget for the City’s
housing initiatives program as well as outside agency funding.

e An increase in appropriations for physical environment in the amount of $73,355 is
related to the carryforward from the prior fiscal year budget for demolition special
assessments.

The final budget as compared with the original budget for the General Fund other financing
sources (uses) increased by $2,169,808 during fiscal year 2019. The increase is primarily related
to an increase in transfers in as a result of a one-time transfer from the Inspections Fund to the
General Fund totaling $2,039,865. In fiscal year 2019, Florida legislators passed Florida House
Bill 447 which limits local governments to carry forward no more than the average of its
operating budget for enforcing the Florida Building Code for the previous four (4) fiscal years.
Any excess funds would be used to rebate and reduce fees. In order to obtain an accurate
depiction of the Inspections Fund’s available carry forward amount, a transfer was made to the
General Fund to recoup prior year subsidies and uncharged allocated overhead during fiscal year
2019.
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Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets. As of year-end, the City had $381,403,188 net investment in capital assets.
Governmental activities accounted for $186,615,457 and business-type activities accounted for
$194,787,731. This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings, improvements,
machinery and equipment and infrastructure.

Major capital asset additions/completions during the current fiscal year include the following:

Governmental Activities

e Stormwater, street and sidewalk capital projects $5,686,927

e Fire station #3 construction $3,717,264

e Land purchases $1,689,443

e Athletic facility, resource center and park improvements $1,472,417
e Police vehicles $464,913

e Park and recreation vehicles $318,505

e Public work vehicles $262,472

Business-type Activities

e Pensacola Energy natural gas utility improvements $6,844,992

e Pensacola Energy vehicles $614,390

e Sanitation vehicles $23,284

e Sanitation garbage trucks $617,501

e Port warehouse #1 improvements $1,999,950

e Port ferry landing construction $3,318,627

e Airport apron area improvements $2,226,189

e Airport parking lot expansion $1,106,650

e Airport fire truck $644,570

e Airport land and building acquisitions for Airport expansion $102,315

e Technology Resources network equipment $219,006
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Governmental Activities
Capital Assets net of depreciation

Equipment
Infrastructure qwﬁ/o Land

8% 9%

Improvements Buildings
12% 34%

Business-type Activities
Capital Assets net of depreciation

Equipment
50, Land

15%

Improvements Buildings
40% 40%

Additional details about the City’s capital assets can be found in Section III, C, of the Notes of
this report. The City has two capital plans. The first is required by Florida’s growth
management legislation and is an element of the City’s comprehensive plan. The second is a
broader plan and covers all infrastructure needs of the City. This plan is two-part; the first is
transportation funded by the Local Option Gasoline Tax (LOGT) and stormwater funded with a
transfer from the General Fund totaling the same amount as the Stormwater Utility Fee
collections. The second is referred to as the Penny for Progress Plan or LOST IV Plan and is
funded by LOST collections. Additional details of the capital plans are available in the City’s

annual budget which is available on the City’s website.
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Long-term Debt. At the end of fiscal year 2019, the City had total non-self-supporting bonded
debt of $106,482,000. Governmental activities have notes payable in the amount of
$105,307,000 and bonds payable in the amount of $1,175,000. The City also has self-supporting
bonded debt of $65,699,000. Business-type activities have notes payable in the amount of
$65,699,000. The City has no general obligation debt.

The City does not borrow for operating needs. All of its outstanding long-term indebtedness is
for capital needs only. The direct debt per capita (population 54,422) as of September 30, 2019
is as follows:

Local Option Sales Tax Debt $ 23,048,000 Per capita $ 424
Maritime Community Park Debt 1,175,000 Per capita 22
Local Option Gas Tax Debt 11,434,000 Per capita 210
Eastside Redevelopment Area Debt 1,197,000 Per capita 22
Westside Redevelopment Area Debt 3,738,000 Per capita 69
Urban Core Redevelopment Area Debt 65,890,000 Per capita 1,211

Total $ 106,482,000 $ 1,957

The Local Option Sales Tax Debt is supported by local option sales tax collections and is
payable through October 2028.

The Maritime Community Park Debt is supported with Tax Increment Revenues derived from
the Urban Core Redevelopment Area and in the event that these revenues are insufficient to pay
debt service, the loan is furthered secured by a covenant to budget and appropriate from non-ad
valorem revenues of the City and is payable through 2020. On July 25, 2019, the City issued its
$58,140,000 Urban Core Redevelopment Refunding and Improvement Revenue Bond, Series
2019 (the “2019 Urban Core Bond”). The 2019 Urban Core Bond was issued to provide for an
advanced refunding of the outstanding principal balance of the Maritime Community Park Debt,
Series B, as well as finance certain community redevelopment capital improvements in the
Urban Core Redevelopment Area included in the Urban Core Community Redevelopment Plan
and the costs of issuance on the borrowing. The 2019 Urban Core Bond is reflected in the Urban
Core Redevelopment Area Debt.

The Local Option Gas Tax Debt is supported by local option gasoline tax collections. On July
23, 2015 the Board of County Commissioners extended the Six-Cent Local Option Gasoline Tax
(LOGT) for an additional 10 years and four months beginning September 1, 2016 through
December 31, 2026. In the event that LOGT is insufficient to pay debt service, the loan is
furthered secured by a covenant to budget and appropriate from the City’s non-ad valorem
revenues and is payable through 2026.

The Eastside Redevelopment Area Debt is supported by Tax Increment Revenues derived from

the Eastside Redevelopment Area and in the event that these revenues are insufficient to pay debt
service, the loan is furthered secured by the Local Business Tax and is payable through 2037.
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The Westside Redevelopment Area Debt is supported by Tax Increment Revenues derived from
the Westside Redevelopment Area and in the event that these revenues are insufficient to pay
debt service, the loan is furthered secured by the Local Business Tax and is payable through
2037.

The Urban Core Redevelopment Area Debt is supported by Tax Increment Revenues derived
from the Urban Core Redevelopment Area and in the event that these revenues are insufficient to
pay debt service, the loan is furthered secured by certain non-ad valorem revenues budgeted and
appropriated therefore pursuant to a Covenant to Budget and Appropriate and is payable through
2043.

All required principal and interest payments on outstanding debt were remitted timely and in full.
The reserve requirements and deposits into the debt service funds mandated by the bond
covenant remain funded at or above the prescribed levels at fiscal year-end.

On March 28, 2019 Fitch Ratings (“Fitch”) affirmed an implied general obligation rating for the
City of “AA+” and on October 16, 2009 Standard & Poor’s Ratings Services (“Standard &
Poor’s”) affirmed its “AA” on the City’s Issuer Credit Rating.

Also, on March 28, 2019 Fitch affirmed a long-term rating of “AA” on the City’s
Redevelopment Revenue Bonds, Series 2009A and Series 2009B (the “Series 2009
Redevelopment Bonds”) and on February 23, 2018 Standard & Poor’s upgraded its rating on the
Series 2009 Redevelopment Bonds to “AA” from "AA-".

On October 17, 2017 Standard & Poor’s affirmed a long-term rating of “BBB”, on October 10,
2017 Fitch affirmed a rating of “BBB-" and on May 30, 2017 Moody’s Investors Service, Inc.
(“Moody’s”) affirmed a long-term rating of “Baal” on the City’s Airport Revenue Bonds.
Standard & Poor’s and Fitch assigned a Positive outlook and Moody’s assigned Stable outlooks
in conjunction with the ratings on the City’s Airport Revenue Bonds.

The fluctuations of the financial market and downgrades or potential downgrades of bond
insurers’ ratings have had no material effect on principal and interest payments made by the City,
or the City’s underlying bond ratings. All required principal and interest payments have been
remitted timely and in full.

Additional detail about long-term debt can be found in the Notes to the Financial Statements;
Note III, Long-term debt.
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Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The City’s fiscal year 2020 budget totals $245,090,800. Of this, $58 million is for the General
Fund, $104 million is for enterprise funds, and the remaining $83 million is for various special
revenue, debt service, capital projects, and internal services funds. The fiscal year 2020
$57,723,500 General Fund budget is $4,030,100, or 7.51% greater than last year’s beginning
budget. The estimated 8.47% growth in property valuations will amount to an additional
$1,393,200 in gross Property Tax revenue. After the required transfers to the Tax Increment
Financing Districts, the net additional Property Tax Revenue is $976,600. The Half-Cent Sales
Tax is anticipated to increase $425,300 or 8.54%, which is based on amounts collected during
fiscal year 2019. Franchise Fees and Public Service Tax Revenues are projected to increase
1.16% or $194,600 in anticipation of a normal winter as well as the cost of energy. Municipal
Revenue sharing is projected to increase $27,100 or 1.17% from the fiscal year 2019 budgeted
level based on the trends experienced during fiscal year 2019 as well as estimates provided by
the State of Florida. Communication Services Tax are increasing $115,600 or 3.79% based on
amounts collected during fiscal year 2019. With the improved economy, interest income has
begun to show growth and is estimated to increase $115,000 over the fiscal year 2019 level. Both
the Beverage License tax and Local Business Tax are increasing $10,000 each based on amounts
collected during fiscal year 2019. In an effort to provide enhanced Community Policing, the
Downtown Improvement Board will provide funding of $60,000 to be combined with the
existing $100,000 funding in the Community Redevelopment Agency and $100,000 in the
General Fund. This will help offset the costs of two new Police Officer Positions. Offsetting
these increases is a decrease of $27,800 from the revenue received from the Escambia County
School Board for the School Resource Officer based on the most recent agreement. The State
Street Light and Traffic Signal Maintenance revenue will decrease $6,500 or 1.01% based on the
most recent agreement. Other various revenues resulted in a net increase of $15,600. The City
of Pensacola’s fiscal year 2020 budget in the General Fund does include a fund balance
drawdown of $1.7 million within the General Fund to fund General Fund expenditures. The fund
balance drawdown of $1.7 million complies with the Financial Planning and Administration
Policy.

The General Fund consists of governmental services such as general administration, public
safety, parks and recreation, and public works. Enterprise Funds are expected to be self-
supporting, on a cash-flow basis, from user fees for services.

Personnel costs account for $69,406,500 of the City’s fiscal year 2020 budget (28.32%). The
fiscal year 2020 budget includes various organizational improvements that includes the addition
of eleven positions bringing the total number of budgeted executive branch positions to 785.
Four positions were added to the executive branch positions. They include an Assistant City
Administrator for Community Development within the Office of the Mayor, a Clerk Public
Records Coordinator in the City Clerk’s Office, a Transportation Planner — Complete Streets in
the Planning Division and a Deputy Airport Director at the Pensacola International Airport.
Within the Human Resources Department, a Human Resources Associate has been added to
assist with the implementation of the previously mentioned revision to the pay plan. With the
anticipated opening of the Bayview Resource Center, two full-time positions have been added to
staff that center as well as funding for an Extra Personal Services maintenance employee. Two
Police Officers have been added for enhanced community policing in the CRA and Downtown
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Improvement District and will be funded by those two agencies. The Airport will have an
additional Accountant position to assist with the various accounting requirements including the
expansion of the maintenance repair & overhaul facility (Project Titan) and a Fire Battalion
Chief has been added to the ARFF Facility to oversee the ARFF operations and serve as Incident
Commander for airport emergencies.

Beginning with fiscal year 2007 funding for General Fund capital items was programmed for
funding in the Local Option Sales Tax Series III (also known as Penny for Progress) which
ended on December 31, 2018. The fiscal year 2020 budget provides Local Option Sales Tax
Series IV funding of $2,241,800 in capital equipment for General Fund departments, including
Fire, Police, Public Works and Parks & Recreation. Fiscal year 2020 revenues project a 16.48%
growth from the fiscal year 2019 beginning budget.

Property tax revenues are based upon historical trends, projected increase (decrease) in assessed
values and any change in the adopted millage rate. The fiscal year 2020 approved budget
maintained the same millage rate as fiscal year 2019 and estimating an 8.47% increase in
property valuation based on the Property Appraiser’s July Ist estimated valuation. The increase
in growth will result in estimated property tax revenue of $16.85 million, an additional
$1,393,200 in Property Tax Revenue for fiscal year 2020. The State of Florida mandated a
formula to determine the maximum millage rate that a governmental entity can levy by a
majority vote. Based on that calculation and the estimated property valuation, the maximum
millage rate that the City could impose is 7.7256, which equates to an additional $13.4 million in
potential Property Tax Revenue. However, the maximum millage rate that the City of Pensacola
can levy is 10 mils (including the Downtown Improvement District’s 2.0 mils) which requires a
unanimous vote of the City Council. The 2020 budget was prepared maintaining the same
millage rate adopted seven years ago with the adoption of the fiscal year 2012 budget. The
proposed millage rate of 4.2895 is below the calculated projected maximum millage rate allowed
of 7.7256 mils.

On June 09, 2010, the City Council approved Resolution No. 31-10 which established the Fund
Balance Policy of Governmental Funds as well as committed the Council Reserves Fund Balance
in the General Fund. On October 9, 2014, the City Council approved the same Council Reserve
Policy by Ordinance, amending chapter 3-1 of the Code of the City of Pensacola, Florida;
creating section 3-1-13. On March 9, 2017, City Council amended chapter 3-1-13 of the Code of
the City of Pensacola, Florida, increasing the minimum reserve from 15 percent to 20 percent.
The Fund Balance Policy states that a minimum reserve of 20 percent of beginning adopted
appropriations should be maintained in the General Fund as a Council Reserve. The minimum
reserve was initially adopted as part of the Financial Planning and Administration Policy on July
23, 1998. The existing General Fund reserve balance (shown on the face of the financial
statements as “Council Reserve”) increased from $13.5 million to $13.8 million in fiscal year
2019. The $13.8 million balance represents 23.89% of fiscal year 2020 budgeted General Fund
appropriations.  This marks the twelfth consecutive year the minimum reserve has been
accomplished since the initial adoption of the reserve policy.

The City’s financial policy states that non-recurring revenues should be used only to finance
non-recurring expenditures. City Council revised the Financial Planning and Administration
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Policy in fiscal year 2007 to stipulate that the General Fund’s maximum amount of appropriated
beginning fund balance should not be more than three percent of budgeted revenues.

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Pensacola’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any of
the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to the Office of the Chief Financial Officer, PO Box 12910, Pensacola, Florida 32521.
The City of Pensacola’s website address is www.cityofpensacola.com.
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Primary Government Component Unit
Downtown
Governmental Business-type Improvement
Activities Activities Total Board
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 13,406,871 $ 8,403,242 $ 21,810,113 $ 562,468
Other cash 22,265 22,265
Investments 43,271,648 27,119,783 70,391,431
Accrued interest 1,642,646 1,642,646
Receivables (net of allowances)
Accounts 2,946,750 7,701,591 10,648,341 34,804
Demolition assessments 18,394 18,394
Internal balances 229,102 (229,102) 0
Due from other governments 1,775,693 1,662,818 3,438,511
Inventory 858,165 13,282 871,447
Capital lease receivable 309,027 309,027
Prepaids and deposits 283,614 148,624 432,238 70,914
Restricted assets
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,006,862 5,908,530 10,915,392
Other cash 10,733 10,733
Investments 16,158,636 19,068,599 35,227,235
Due from other governments 2,332,739 2,332,739
Total current assets 87,964,118 70,106,394 158,070,512 668,186
Noncurrent assets
Internal balances 412,216 (412,216) 0
Intangible asset 43,608 43,608
Capital lease receivable 848,774 848,774
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5,976,039 3,129,092 9,105,131
Investments 19,282,814 10,098,520 29,381,334
Notes receivable 1,154,656 1,154,656
Capital assets
Non-depreciable 29,728,843 41,720,660 71,449,503
Depreciable (net) 229,323,079 218,024,642 447,347,721 465,005
Total noncurrent assets 285,877,647 273,453,080 559,330,727 465,005
Total assets 373,841,765 343,559,474 717,401,239 1,133,191
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on early retirement debt 228,754 697,821 926,575
Deferred pension 19,022,346 4,940,225 23,962,571
Deferred OPEB 2,078,055 813,870 2,891,925
Total deferred outflows of resources 21,329,155 6,451,916 27,781,071 0
(continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Primary Government Component Unit
Downtown
Governmental Business-type Improvement
Activities Activities Total Board
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable $ 1,092,283 $ 2,369,002 $ 3,461,285 $ 57,477
Contracts payable 1,231,594 1,846,788 3,078,382
Contracts payable - retainage 586,503 241,704 828,207
Due to other governments 119,542 119,542 8,678
Wages and benefits payable 1,463,485 1,463,485
Compensated absences payable 121,889 80,603 202,492 3,144
Deposits 436,166 406,273 842,439
Notes payable 0 3,459
Unearned revenue 1,148,764 127,761 1,276,525 5,000
Capital lease payable 1,637,729 1,637,729
Loans payable 20,000 20,000
Payable from restricted assets
Due to other governments 1,300,000 1,300,000
Notes payable 3,761,000 4,278,000 8,039,000
Revenue bonds payable 1,175,000 1,175,000
Accrued interest payable 909,119 935,074 1,844,193
Total current liabilities 15,003,074 10,285,205 25,288,279 77,758
Noncurrent liabilities
Due to other governments 9,100,000 3,200,000 12,300,000
Compensated absences payable 3,086,901 1,482,764 4,569,665
Claims and judgments payable 2,967,444 2,967,444
Notes payable 101,546,000 61,421,000 162,967,000 387
Capital lease payable 1,685,387 1,685,387
Loans payable 40,000 40,000
Net Pension liability 72,468,605 20,816,909 93,285,514
Total OPEB liability 17,239,884 6,735,751 23,975,635
Total noncurrent liabilities 208,134,221 93,656,424 301,790,645 387
Total liabilities 223,137,295 103,941,629 327,078,924 78,145
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred gain on early retirement 364,250 364,250
Deferred pension 11,552,968 1,705,523 13,258,491
Deferred OPEB 1,792,987 701,263 2,494,250
Total deferred outflows of resources 13,710,205 2,406,786 16,116,991 0
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 186,615,457 194,787,731 381,403,188 461,159
Restricted for
Capital projects 7,133,609 7,133,609
Debt senice 7,019,200 3,369,612 10,388,812
Community redevelopment 874,977 874,977
Federal housing program 3,220,515 3,220,515
Other purposes 3,765,485 3,765,485
Disaster recovery 2,674,472 2,674,472
Renewal and replacement 6,756,000 6,756,000
Operations and maintenance 3,102,000 3,102,000
Unrestricted (52,980,295) 35,647,632 (17,332,663) 593,887
Total net position $ 158,323,420 $ 243,662,975 $ 401,986,395 $ 1,055,046

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Program Revenues

Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and
Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
Function/Programs
Primary government
Governmental activities:
General government $ 12,101,937 §$ 286,817 $ 4,192,220
Public safety 36,484,101 2,553,611 149,631 115,239
Transportation 5,333,798 738,270 9,088
Culture and recreation 14,315,481 2,777,016 135,372 1,206,201
Economic environment 16,877,887 16,854,708 3,763
Physical environment 5,524,973 2,845,664 357,589 1,207,916
Human senvices 14,492,331 14,462,332
Unallocated depreciation 1,917,285
Interest on long-term debt 5,953,180
Total governmental activities 113,000,973 9,201,378 36,160,940 2,533,119
Business-type activities:
Utility 34,105,382 50,231,748
Sanitation 7,488,155 8,255,120
Port 2,713,331 2,400,834 2,785,256
Airport 28,606,833 25,921,379 7,387,154
Total business-type activities 72,913,701 86,809,081 0 10,172,410
Total primary government $ 185,914,674 $ 96,010,459 $ 36,160,940 $ 12,705,529
Component unit:
Downtown Improvement Board $ 1,514,457 $ 981,143 § 251,528 $
Total component units $ 1,514,457 $ 981,143 $ 251,528 $ -
(continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Function/Programs

CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Primary government
Governmental activities:
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Economic environment
Physical environment
Human senvices
Unallocated depreciation
Interest on long-term debt
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
Utility
Sanitation
Port
Airport
Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Component unit:
Downtown Improvement Board
Total component units

General revenues:
Property taxes
Public senvice taxes
Franchise fees
Communication senice tax
Local business tax
Local option gasoline tax
Local option sales tax

Unrestricted intergovernmental revenues

Unrestricted investment earnings
Gain on sale of capital asset
Miscellaneous

Transfers

Overhead transfers

$

Total general revenues, transfers, and other items

Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year

Net position September 30, 2019

Net (Expenses) Revenue and Changes in Net Position

Component Unit

Primary Government Downtown
Governmental Business-type Improvement
Activities Activities Total Board
(7,622,900) $ (7,622,900)
(33,665,620) (33,665,620)
(4,586,440) (4,586,440)
(10,196,892) (10,196,892)
(19,416) (19,416)
(1,113,804) (1,113,804)
(29,999) (29,999)
(1,917,285) (1,917,285)
(5,953,180) (5,953,180)
(65,105,536) (65,105,536)
$ 16,126,366 16,126,366
766,965 766,965
2,472,759 2,472,759
4,701,700 4,701,700
24,067,790 24,067,790
(65,105,536) 24,067,790 (41,037,746)
(281,786)
15,718,156 15,718,156 414,289
8,499,940 8,499,940
8,635,180 8,635,180
3,069,511 3,069,511
939,973 939,973
1,364,246 1,364,246
8,901,413 8,901,413
7,630,878 7,630,878
1,683,080 1,353,089 3,036,169
708,896 112,180 821,076
29,113 605,249 634,362 7,982
7,282,376 (7,282,376) 0
2,662,700 (2,662,700) 0
67,125,462 (7,874,558) 59,250,904 422,271
2,019,926 16,193,232 18,213,158 140,485
156,303,494 227,469,743 383,773,237 914,561
158,323,420 $ 243,662,975 $ 401,986,395 1,055,046

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Housing Community Urban Core Eastside Westside
General Assistance Redevelopment Redevelopment Tax Increment Tax Increment
Fund Payments Agency Trust Financing District Financing District
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,989,648 $ 665,137 $ 869,548 $ $ $
Other cash 22,265
Investments 16,103,088 2,146,597 2,806,292
Accrued interest 1,642,646
Accounts receivable (net of allowances) 1,446,172 391,167 1,384
Demolition assessments receivable 18,394
Due from other funds 512,666
Due from other governments 1,077,635
Prepaids and deposits 26,635 601 126
Inventories
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents 354,071 99,401 236,371 147,273 21,409
Other cash
Investments 1,142,693 320,795 762,839 475,296 69,089
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Notes receivable
Total assets $ 27,313,648 $ 3,645,963 $ 4,676,560 $ 0 % 622,569 $ 90,498
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 532,740 $ 4444 % 172,123 $ $ 1,640 $
Contracts payable 201,701 414 44,612
Contracts payable - retainage 4,624
Due to other funds 19,043 3,708 723 723
Due to other governments 10,380
Compensated absences payable 90,474
Wages and benefits payable 1,463,485
Unearned revenue 904,172
Deposits 34,732 1,000
Total liabilities 3,231,928 34,281 221,443 0 2,363 723
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue 89,773 391,167
Total deferred inflows of resources 89,773 391,167 0 0 0 0

(continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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FUND BALANCE (DEFICITS)
Non-spendable
Restricted
Saenger capital
Community development projects
Debt senice payments
Other restricted
Committed
Park purchases
Tree landscape
Council reserve
Other committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of

resources and fund balances (deficits) $

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Housing Community Urban Core Eastside Westside
General Assistance Redevelopment Redevelopment Tax Increment Tax Increment
Fund Payments Agency Trust Financing District Financing District
26,635 601 126
365,127
4,454,991 620,206 89,775
515,841 3,219,914
109,195
495,451
13,793,017
7,170,387
1,516,294
23,991,947 3,220,515 4,455,117 0 620,206 89,775
27,313,648 $ 3,645,963 4,676,560 $ 0 $ 622,569 $ 90,498
(continued)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Other cash
Investments
Accrued interest

Accounts receivable (net of allowances)
Special assessments receivable

Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Prepaids and deposits
Inventories
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other cash
Investments
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Notes receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Contracts payable - retainage
Due to other funds
Due to other governments

Compensated absences payable

Wages and benefits payable
Unearned revenue
Deposits

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenue

Total deferred inflows of resources

CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Nonmajor Total
Hospital Special CRA CRA 2017 CRA 2019 Governmental Governmental
Assessment Debt Service Project Fund Project Fund Funds Funds
$ $ 4,900,718 $ 11,425,051
22,265
15,816,086 36,872,063
1,642,646
442,582 2,281,305
18,394
512,666
698,058 1,775,693
15,646 43,008
3,571 3,571
684,783 2,755,588 4,258,099 1,375,834 9,932,829
10,733 10,733
2,209,999 8,893,110 13,742,165 4,440,226 32,056,212
851,872 851,872
2,332,739 2,332,739
1,154,656 1,154,656
0 2,894,782 § 11,648,698 18,000,264 $ 32,042,721  § 100,935,703
$ $ 202,818 $ 913,765
279,446 663,037 1,189,210
101,698 440,044 546,366
1,147,423 1,171,620
109,162 119,542
19,548 110,022
1,463,485
144,592 1,048,764
374,933 410,665
0 0 381,144 0 3,101,557 6,973,439
1,166,916 1,647,856
0 0 0 0 1,166,916 1,647,856
(continued)
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FUND BALANCE (DEFICITS)
Non-spendable
Restricted
Saenger capital
Community development projects
Debt senice payments
Other restricted
Committed
Park purchases
Tree landscape
Council reserve
Other committed
Assigned
Unassigned
Total fund balances

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources and fund balances (deficits) $

accumulated depreciation is $140,951,736.

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and therefore are deferred in the funds.

CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Nonmajor Total
Hospital Special CRA CRA 2017 CRA 2019 Governmental Governmental
Assessment Debt Service Project Fund Project Fund Funds Funds
19,217 46,579
365,127
11,267,554 18,000,264 34,432,790
2,894,782 1,560,364 4,455,146
20,166,150 23,901,905
109,195
495,451
13,793,017
5,571,152 5,571,152
872,612 8,042,999
(415,247) 1,101,047
0 2,894,782 11,267,554 18,000,264 27,774,248 92,314,408
0 $ 2,894,782 § 11,648,698 $ 18,000,264 $ 32,042,721
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources to the governmental funds. The cost of the assets is $397,872,278 and the
256,920,542
1,647,856
8,590,984

The assets and liabilities of the internal senice funds are included in governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Net other post employment benefits (OPEB) liability, as required by Governmental Accounting Standards Statement No. 75, are not due and payable
in the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Net pension liability (NPL), as required by Governmental Accounting Standards Statement No. 68, is not due and payable in the current period and

therefore is not reported in the governmental funds.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds.

Net position of governmental activities

Loans payable

Notes payable
Bonds payable

Deferred gain on refunding
Deferred loss on early retirement
Due to other governments
Compensated absences

Capital lease

Accrued interest payable

(60,000)
(105,307,000)
(1,175,000)
(364,250)
228,754
(10,400,000)
(2,864,520)
(3,323,116)
(909,119)

(15,564,292)

(61,411,827)

(124,174,251)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Franchise fees
Intergovernmental
Charges for senices
Fines and forfeits
Assessments
Interest income
Donations
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current -
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Economic environment
Physical environment
Human senices

Capital outlay

Debt service -
Principal retirement
Interest
Issuance Cost

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)

Payment to refunded bonds escrow agent

Issuance of refunded bonds
Bond proceeds
Sale of capital assets

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net Change in fund balances

Fund balances at beginning of year

Fund balances at end of year

$

Housing Community Urban Core Eastside Westside
General Assistance Redevelopment Redevelopment Tax Increment Tax Increment
Fund Payments Agency Trust Financing District Financing District
28,227,580 $ $ $
78,038
8,635,180
7,630,879 16,021,660 3,677,443 96,606 262,197
1,266,486 21,449
144,660
57,247
452,441 74,824 108,103 12,177 2,994
604,880 39,252
47,097,391 16,135,736 129,552 3,677,443 108,783 265,191
5,525,170 2,939,846 104,059 51,206
31,979,188
2,989,101
6,671,288
559,427 16,222,504
1,706
30,000
23,707
15,000
47,755,880 16,222,504 2,963,553 0 119,059 51,206
(658,489) (86,768) (2,834,001) 3,677,443 (10,276) 213,985
10,039,865 2,609,176 2,221,033 62,630 169,983
(5,958,327) (5,898,476) (86,711) (375,097)
689,470 1,200
4,771,008 1,200 2,609,176 (3,677,443) (24,081) (205,114)
4,112,519 (85,568) (224,825) 0 (34,357) 8,871
19,879,428 3,306,083 4,679,942 0 654,563 80,904
23,991,947 § 3,220,515 § 4,455,117 $ 0 $ 620,206 $ 89,775
(continued)
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Nonmajor Total
Hospital Special CRA CRA 2017 CRA 2019 Governmental Governmental
Revenues: Assessment Debt Services Project Fund Project Fund Funds Funds
Taxes $ $ $ $ 10,265,659 $ 38,493,239
Licenses and permits 1,673,778 1,751,816
Franchise fees 8,635,180
Intergovernmental 1,206,201 2,363,046 31,258,032
Charges for senices 5,475,810 6,763,745
Fines and forfeits 126,444 271,104
Assessments 14,462,331 14,519,578
Interest income 44,391 217,192 269,746 532,641 1,714,509
Donations 71,160 71,160
Other 3,274 647,406
Total revenues 14,462,331 1,250,592 217,192 269,746 20,511,812 104,125,769
Expenditures:
Current -
General government 695,437 9,315,718
Public safety 1,841,146 33,820,334
Transportation 40,988 3,030,089
Culture and recreation 2,584,443 9,255,731
Economic environment 39,810 16,821,741
Physical environment 4,189,129 4,190,835
Human senvices 14,462,331 14,492,331
Capital outlay 986,097 13,181,134 14,190,938
Debt service -
Principal retirement 1,453,000 4,879,419 6,332,419
Interest 3,344,536 880,813 4,240,349
Issuance Cost 918 158,327 763 160,008
Total expenditures 14,462,331 4,797,536 987,015 158,327 28,333,082 115,850,493
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 0 (3,546,944) (769,823) 111,419 (7,821,270) (11,724,724)
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 3,751,109 4,959,904 23,813,700
Transfers (out) (4,212,713) (16,531,324)
Payment to refunded bonds escrow agent (931,656) (40,251,155) (41,182,811)
Issuance of refunded bonds 40,251,155 40,251,155
Bond proceeds 17,888,845 17,888,845
Sale of capital assets 11,300 701,970
Total other financing sources (uses) 0 2,819,453 0 17,888,845 758,491 24,941,535
Net Change in fund balances 0 (727,491) (769,823) 18,000,264 (7,062,779) 13,216,811
Fund balances at beginning of year 0 3,622,273 12,037,377 0 34,837,027 79,097,597
Fund balances at end of year $ 0 2,894,782 $ 11,267,554 $ 18,000,264 $ 27,774,248 $ 92,314,408

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 13,216,811

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Expenditures for capital assets 14,190,938

Less current year depreciation (13,237,511) 953,427
Issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to governmental funds, but the issuance increases long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. (58,140,000)
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 43,666,000
Repayment of capital lease payable is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the statement of net position. 1,591,419

Repayment of long-term amounts due to other governments are expenditures in the governmental funds, but the repayment reduces the liabilityin the statement

of net position. 1,300,000
Some revenues reported in the statement of activities do not provide current financial resources, therefore, those revenues are not reported as revenues in

governmental funds. (10,432)
Compensated absences, reported in the statement of activities, does not require the use of current financial resources, therefore, itis not reported as an

expenditure in governmental funds. (205,394)
Accrued interest expense, reported in the statement of activities, does not require the use of current financial resources in governmental funds. 544,980

The change in annual other post employment benefits (OPEB) cost, as required by Governmental Accounting Standards Statement No. 75, does not require the use of
current financial resources, therefore; the change is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. (757,714)

The change in annual net pension liability (NPL) cost, as required by Governmental Accounting Standards Statement No. 68, does not require the use of current financial
resource; therefore, the change is not reported as an expenditure in governmental funds. (881,107)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain activities to individual funds. The net revenue of certain activities of internal service funds
is reported with governmental activities. 1,574,378

The proceeds from the sale of capital assets are reported as revenue in the governmental funds. However, the cost of capital assets disposed must be offset against
the sale proceeds resulting in a gain/(loss) on sale of capital assets in the statement of activities. Donations of capital assets do not provide current financial
resources to the governmental funds.
Donations of capital assets 9,370
Net book value of capital assets disposed (841,812) (832,442)

Change in net position of governmental activities $ 2,019,926

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Amounts Positive/(Negative)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 27,622,500 $ 28,226,004 $ 28,227,580 $ 1,576
Licenses and permits 77,000 78,038 78,038 0
Franchise fees 8,610,300 8,635,180 8,635,180 0
Intergovernmental 7,467,400 7,630,879 7,630,879 0
Charges for services 1,128,700 1,266,486 1,266,486 0
Fines and forfeits 117,500 146,211 144,660 (1,551)
Assessments 0 57,247 57,247 0
Interest income 145,000 452,441 452,441 0
Other 475,000 595,435 604,880 9,445
Total revenues 45,643,400 47,087,921 47,097,391 9,470
Expenditures:
Current -
General government 6,251,400 6,655,580 5,625,170 1,130,410
Public safety 32,163,800 32,286,644 31,979,188 307,456
Transportation 2,549,900 3,386,238 2,989,101 397,137
Culture and recreation 6,924,500 7,295,296 6,671,288 624,008
Economic environment 325,000 1,051,627 559,427 492,200
Physical environment 0 73,355 1,706 71,649
Human services 30,000 30,000 30,000 0
Capital outlay 0 0 0 0
Total expenditures 48,244,600 50,778,740 47,755,880 3,022,860
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,601,200) (3,690,819) (658,489) 3,032,330
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 8,000,000 10,039,865 10,039,865 0
Transfers (out) (5,448,800) (5,958,327) (5,958,327) 0
Sale of capital assets 50,000 689,470 689,470 0
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,601,200 4,771,008 4,771,008 0
Net change in fund balances $ 0 $ 1,080,189 4,112,519 $ 3,032,330
Fund balances at beginning of year 19,879,428
Fund balances at end of year $ 23,991,947

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HOUSING ASSISTANCE PAYMENTS FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Amounts Positive/(Negative)
Revenues :
Intergovernmental $ 17,788,600 $ 16,021,660 $ 16,021,660 $ 0
Interest income 33,000 85,203 74,824 (10,379)
Other 20,000 39,252 39,252 0
Total revenues 17,841,600 16,146,115 16,135,736 (10,379)
Expenditures :
Current -
Economic environment 17,833,600 16,313,442 16,222,504 90,938
Capital outlay 8,000 0 0 0
Total expenditures 17,841,600 16,313,442 16,222,504 90,938
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 0 (167,327) (86,768) 80,559
Other financing sources (uses):
Sale of capital assets 0 1,200 1,200 0
Total other financing sources (uses): 0 1,200 1,200 0
Net change in fund balances $ 0 $ (166,127) (85,568) $ 80,559
Fund balances at beginning of year 3,306,083
Fund balances at end of year $ 3,220,515

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
COMMUNITY REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Amounts Positive/(Negative)
Revenues:
Charges for services $ 12,800 $ 21,448 $ 21,449 $
Interest income 9,200 108,103 108,103 0
Total revenues 22,000 129,551 129,552 1
Expenditures:
Current -
General government 2,931,400 6,341,570 2,939,846 3,401,724
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Economic environment
Physical environment
Human services
Capital outlay 0 84,208 23,707 60,501
Total expenditures 2,931,400 6,425,778 2,963,553 3,462,225
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (2,909,400) (6,296,227) (2,834,001) 3,462,226
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 2,909,400 2,609,176 2,609,176 0
Total other financing sources (uses) 2,909,400 2,609,176 2,609,176 0
Net change in fund balances $ 0o $ (3,687,051) (224,825) $ 3,462,226
Fund balances at beginning of year 4,679,942
Fund balances at end of year $ 4,455117

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
URBAN CORE REDEVELOPMENT TRUST FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Amounts Positive/(Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 3,677,600 $ 3,677,443 $ 3,677,443 0
Total revenues 3,677,600 3,677,443 3,677,443 0
Expenditures:
Current -
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Economic environment
Physical environment
Human services
Capital outlay
Total expenditures 0 0 0 0
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 3,677,600 3,677,443 3,677,443 0
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 2,221,100 2,221,033 2,221,033 0
Transfers (out) (5,898,700) (5,898,476) (5,898,476) 0
Total other financing sources (uses) (3,677,600) (3,677,443) (3,677,443) 0
Net change in fund balances $ 0 $ 0 0 $ 0
Fund balances at beginning of year 0
Fund balances at end of year $ 0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
EASTSIDE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Amounts Positive/(Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 96,700 $ 96,606 $ 96,606 $ 0
Interest income 0 12,177 12,177 0
Total revenues 96,700 108,783 108,783 0
Expenditures:
Current -
General government 85,500 679,265 104,059 575,206
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Economic environment
Physical environment
Human services
Capital outlay
Debt service -
Principal retirement
Interest 15,000 60,000 15,000 45,000
Total expenditures 100,500 739,265 119,059 620,206
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (3,800) (630,482) (10,276) 620,206
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 62,700 62,630 62,630 0
Transfers (out) (89,500) (86,711) (86,711) 0
Total other financing sources (uses) (26,800) (24,081) (24,081) 0
Net change in fund balances $ (30,600) $ (654,563) (34,357) $ 620,206
Fund balances at beginning of year 654,563
Fund balances at end of year $ 620,206

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
WESTSIDE TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -
Original Final Actual Amounts Positive/(Negative)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental $ 262,200 $ 262,197 $ 262,197 $ 0
Interest income 0 2,994 2,994 0
Total revenues 262,200 265,191 265,191 0
Expenditures:
Current -
General government 56,700 140,981 51,206 89,775
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Economic environment
Physical environment
Human services
Capital outlay
Total expenditures 56,700 140,981 51,206 89,775
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 205,500 124,210 213,985 89,775
Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in 170,000 169,983 169,983 0
Transfers (out) (375,500) (375,097) (375,097) 0
Total other financing sources (uses) (205,500) (205,114) (205,114) 0
Net change in fund balances $ 0 $ (80,904) 8,871 $ 89,775
Fund balances at beginning of year 80,904
Fund balances at end of year $ 89,775

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE — BUDGET AND ACTUAL
HOSPITAL SPECIAL ASSESSMENT FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Budgeted Amounts Variance with
Final Budget -

Original Final Actual Amounts Positive/(Negative)

Revenues:
Assessments $ 0o $ 14,462,331 $ 14,462,331 $ 0

Total revenues 0 14,462,331 14,462,331 0

Expenditures:
Current -
General government
Public safety
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Economic environment
Physical environment
Human services 0 14,462,331 14,462,331 0
Capital outlay
Total expenditures 0 14,462,331 14,462,331 0

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 0 0 0 0

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers (out)
Sale of capital assets
Total other financing sources (uses) 0 0 0 0

Net change in fund balances $ 0 3 0 0 $ 0

Fund balances at beginning of year 0

Fund balances at end of year $ 0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Accounts receivable (net)
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
Prepaid expenses
Inventory
Capital lease receivable
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets
Intangible asset
Prepaid expenses
Advances to other funds
Capital lease receivable
Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Capital assets
Non-depreciable
Depreciable (net)
Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred loss on early retirement

Deferred pension
Deferred OPEB

Total deferred outflows of resources

CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities-
Total Internal
Utility Sanitation Port Airport Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
4,758,821 527,420 $ 3,117,001 8,403,242 $ 1,981,820
15,358,140 1,702,143 10,059,500 27,119,783 6,399,585
3,983,338 767,352 417,881 2,533,020 7,701,591 665,445
137,020 161,797 75,846 374,663 132,176
742,525 920,293 1,662,818
77,086 923 15,094 55,521 148,624 40,606
13,282 13,282 854,594
309,027 309,027
451,530 43,311 89,176 5,324,513 5,908,530
1,457,223 139,779 287,797 17,183,800 19,068,599
26,545,467 3,180,928 1,714,270 39,269,494 70,710,159 10,074,226
43,608 43,608
0 200,000
282,620 282,620 412,216
848,774 848,774
3,129,092 3,129,092 1,050,072
10,098,520 10,098,520 3,385,238
557,765 41,093 4,855,984 36,265,818 41,720,660 424,494
60,091,622 2,341,781 11,790,370 143,800,869 218,024,642 1,706,886
61,824,389 2,382,874 16,646,354 193,294,299 274,147,916 7,178,906
88,369,856 5,563,802 18,360,624 232,563,793 344,858,075 17,253,132
697,821 697,821
2,415,280 1,224,004 228,236 1,072,705 4,940,225 1,204,117
435,507 158,718 35,043 184,602 813,870 166,100
2,850,787 1,382,722 263,279 1,955,128 6,451,916 1,370,217
(continued)
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LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Contracts payable - retainage
Due to other funds
Compensated absences payable
Unearned revenue
Deposits
Payable from restricted assets
Notes payable
Accrued interest payable
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences payable
Advances from other funds
Due to other governments
Claims and judgments payable
Notes payable
Net pension liability
Total OPEB liability

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred pension
Deferred OPEB

Total deferred outflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted
Debt senice
Renewal and replacement
Operations and maintenance
Unrestricted

Total net (deficit) position

CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities-
Total Internal
Utility Sanitation Port Airport Enterprise Service
Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
1,597,616 142,665 48,567 580,154 2,369,002 178,518
246,335 12,000 409,354 1,179,099 1,846,788 42,384
237,212 4,492 241,704 40,137
234,072 238,461 26,001 105,231 603,765 95,992
1,041 23,125 56,437 80,603 11,867
127,761 127,761 100,000
375,972 30,301 406,273 25,501
1,759,000 2,519,000 4,278,000
149,753 785,321 935,074
4,115,578 416,251 1,097,106 5,260,035 10,888,970 494,399
772,246 309,150 69,993 331,375 1,482,764 222,381
350,478 307,324 37,034 694,836
3,200,000 3,200,000
0 2,967,444
13,346,000 48,075,000 61,421,000
9,951,087 5,093,577 840,634 4,931,611 20,816,909 4,539,685
3,622,717 1,305,995 279,459 1,627,580 6,735,751 1,412,600
27,942,528 7,016,046 1,190,086 58,202,600 94,351,260 9,142,110
32,058,106 7,432,297 2,287,192 63,462,635 105,240,230 9,636,509
542,149 453,095 48,107 662,172 1,705,523 251,832
368,755 137,623 25,952 168,933 701,263 144,024
910,904 590,718 74,059 831,105 2,406,786 395,856
45,587,995 2,382,874 16,646,354 130,170,508 194,787,731 2,131,380
3,369,612 3,369,612
6,756,000 6,756,000
3,102,000 3,102,000
12,663,638 (3,459,365) (383,702) 26,827,061 35,647,632 6,459,604
$ 58,251,633 $ (1,076,491) $ 16,262,652 $ 170,225,181 $ 243,662,975 8,590,984

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities-
Utility Sanitation Port Airport Internal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Service Funds
Operating revenues:
Charges for senices $ 50,231,748 $ 8,255,120 $ 2,400,834 $ 25,921,379 $ 86,809,081 $ 5,689,453
Insurance - 15,272,534
Fines and forfeits 125,024 125,024
Other 398,447 47,305 5 34,468 480,225 209,650
Total operating revenues 50,630,195 8,427,449 2,400,839 25,955,847 87,414,330 21,171,637
Operating expenses:
Gas purchases 17,794,122 17,794,122
Salaries and employee benefits 5,671,391 3,471,253 822,179 4,638,059 14,602,882 3,524,319
Materials and supplies 1,601,640 465,680 14,945 279,879 2,362,144 93,440
Repairs and maintenance 415,143 1,488,862 52,222 2,912,722 4,868,949 205,195
Contractual senices 4,387,012 299,553 164,413 5,353,064 10,204,042 872,926
Office and utilities 1,543,571 476,855 659,648 2,258,564 4,938,638 393,977
Land fill fees 12 964,098 964,110
Overhead allocation 1,348,500 524,300 116,800 673,100 2,662,700 14,423,395
Premiums and claims expense
Total operating expenses before depreciation 32,761,391 7,690,601 1,830,207 16,115,388 58,397,587 19,513,252
Operating income (loss) before depreciation 17,868,804 736,848 570,632 9,840,459 29,016,743 1,658,385
Depreciation 2,370,999 311,681 999,924 11,322,744 15,005,348 333,153
Operating income (loss) 15,497,805 425,167 (429,292) (1,482,285) 14,011,395 1,325,232
Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Investment interest 445,987 47,561 859,541 1,353,089 242,220
Interest expense (299,505) (10,173) (1,840,305) (2,149,983)
Amortization of bond expense (3,291) (3,291)
Issuance Cost (1,496) (1,496)
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets 49,544 31,310 2,780 9,850 93,484 6,926

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 192,735 68,698 2,780 (972,410) (708,197) 249,146

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers 15,690,540 493,865 (426,512) (2,454,695) 13,303,198 1,574,378
Contributions and transfers:
Contributions

Federal and state grants 2,186,531 2,988,717 5,175,248

Passenger facility charge 4,309,645 4,309,645

Passenger facility charge - Interest 12,946 12,946

Contributed capital from other funds 598,725 598,725

Donations 75,846 75,846
Transfers in (out) (8,000,000) 641,778 75,846 (7,282,376)

Total contributions and transfers (8,000,000) - 3,427,034 7,463,000 2,890,034 -
Change in net position 7,690,540 493,865 3,000,522 5,008,305 16,193,232 1,574,378
Net position at beginning of year 50,561,093 (1,570,356) 13,262,130 165,216,876 227,469,743 7,016,606
Net position at end of year $ 58,251,633 $ (1,076,491) $ 16,262,652 §$ 170,225,181 $ 243,662,975 $ 8,590,984

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers
Cash received from other funds
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and senices
Cash payments to employees for senices
Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Advance from (to) other funds
Net transfers
Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital
financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related
financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets
Acquisition of capital assets with grant monies
Proceeds from sale of assets
Contributions from other governments
Contributions from customers
Acquisition of capital assets with contributions
Principal paid on capital debt
Interest paid on capital debt
Proceeds from capital lease
Other debt senice
Net cash provided by (used for) capital
and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Sale (purchase) of investments
Interest on investments
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities-
Utility Sanitation Port Airport Internal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Service Funds
$ 50,853,719 $ 8,279,349 $ 2,262,876 $ 25,708,731  § 87,104,675 $ 17,307,057
0 3,991,441
(27,255,899) (4,184,061) (1,041,609) (11,263,131) (43,744,700) (15,997,142)
(5,149,347) (3,312,802) (1,177,540) (4,247,942) (13,887,631) (3,399,167)
18,448,473 782,486 43,727 10,197,658 29,472,344 1,902,189
15,419 (174,641) 290 (158,932) 158,932
(8,000,000) (8,000,000)
(7,984,581) (174,641) 0 290 (8,158,932) 158,932
(7,983,630) (648,364) (490,244) (1,608,322) (10,730,560) (585,910)
(2,039,852) (2,832,657) (4,872,509)
68,240 31,310 2,780 9,850 112,180 6,926
2,483,590 6,765,198 9,248,788
4,322,591 4,322,591
(11,325) (11,325)
(1,725,000) (9,393,600) (11,118,600)
(316,806) (10,173) (1,557,069) (1,884,048)
302,641 302,641
(1,496) (1,496)
(9,654,555) (627,227) (43,726) (4,306,830) (14,632,338) (578,984)
(2,019,220) (143,301) (24,512) (7,396,456) (9,583,489) (1,882,991)
445,987 47,561 7,380 985,112 1,486,040 242,220
(1,573,233) (95,740) (17,132) (6,411,344) (8,097,449) (1,640,771)
(763,896) (115,122) (17,131) (520,226) (1,416,375) (158,634)
5,974,247 685,853 106,307 12,090,832 18,857,239 3,190,526
$ 5,210,351 $ 570,731 $ 89,176 $ 11,570,606 $ 17,440,864 $ 3,031,892
(continued)
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating
income (loss) to net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities:

Depreciation

Change in assets and liabilities:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in inventory
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds
(Increase) decrease in due from other governments
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expense
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (decrease) in contracts payable
Increase (decrease) in due to other funds
Increase (decrease) in deposits
Increase (decrease) in claims and judgments
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation
Increase (decrease) in net pension liability

Net cash provided by (used for)
operating activities:

Noncash investing, capital, and financing activities:
Amortization of bond expense

Contribution of capital assets from other funds
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Activities-
Utility Sanitation Port Airport Internal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Service Funds
15,497,805 $ 425,167 (429,292) (1,482,285) $ 14,011,395 $ 1,325,232
2,370,999 311,681 999,924 11,322,744 15,005,348 333,153
130,614 (72,673) (134,757) (239,703) (316,519) 137,333
2,468 2,468 139,886
207,098 207,098 (124,250)
0 11,345
(24,485) (120) (2,726) 25,093 (2,238) 196,040
(141,414) 24,133 14,643 115,345 12,707 123,462
90,645 11,274 (45,498) 288,875 345,296 (35,078)
8,432 39,674 (377,875) 8,610 (321,159) 40,159
343 343 9,941
0 (467,567)
127,761 127,761 100,000
65,147 41,945 12,170 13,210 132,472 14,643
(1,485,607) (274,313) (39,365) 79,347 (1,719,938) 66,208
1,599,010 275,718 46,503 66,079 1,987,310 31,682
18,448,473 $ 782,486 43,727 10,197,658 $ 29,472,344 $ 1,902,189
Utility Sanitation Port Airport Internal
Fund Fund Fund Fund Total Service Funds
3291 § 161,602 $ 164,893 $
598,725 598,725
(18,696) (18,696)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA

COMBINED STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

FIDUCIARY FUNDS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

ASSETS
Other cash

Receivables:
Employer
Employee

Total receivables

Investments:
Short term investments
Debt Securities & Bond Mutual Funds
Convertible Corporate Bonds
Stock Mutual Funds
Mortgage Backed Securities
Commingled Trust Fund
Domestic Stocks
Preferred Stocks
Foreign Stocks

Total investments

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Restricted for pension benefits

Total Pension
Trust Funds

264,873

332
23,701

24,033

7,711,928
72,828,615
21,535,532
35,240,181
48,409,249

6,853,371

146,591,193

2,302,057

26,274,777

367,746,903

368,035,809

279,155

279,155

367,756,654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
COMBINED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Total Pension

Trust Funds
Additions:
Contributions - city $ 11,786,321
Contributions - employee 1,011,476
Commission recapture 11,653
Insurance proceeds - State of Florida 1,119,785
Total contributions 13,929,235
Investment income
Net appreciation
in fair value of investments 3,149,312
Interest and dividends 8,057,444
11,206,756
Less investment expense 1,636,439
Net investment income 9,570,317
Total additions 23,499,552
Deductions:
Pensions paid - employees 23,623,425
Pensions paid - widows 3,580,031
Refunds to employees 163,500
Deferred retirement option plan 2,418,663
Health insurance assistance 110,936
Administrative expenses 329,842
Total deductions 30,226,397
Change in net position (6,726,845)
Net position held in trust for pension benefits:
Beginning of year 374,483,499
End of year $ 367,756,654

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE I. - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Pensacola (the “City””) have been prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for
governmental accounting and financial reporting. Statements and Interpretations of the GASB
have been applied in the preparation of these financial statements.

A. Reporting Entity

The City operates under a Mayor-Council structure commonly referred to as a “Strong Mayor”
form of government. With the Mayor-Council structure, the Council is the governing body of
the City with all legislative powers of the City vested therein, which consisted of seven (7)
Council Members, one (1) elected from each of the seven (7) election districts of the City. The
Mayor is not a member of Council and does not have voting power. The Mayor is elected at
large, has a 4 year term in office, will exercise the executive powers of the City and shall not be
a member of Council. The Mayor’s term allows for a maximum of three consecutive four year
terms of office. With the Mayor-Council structure, the Mayor replaces the City Manager as the
executive head of the City and shall appoint a City Administrator to assist in managing daily
operations.

In evaluating the City as a reporting entity, management has addressed all potential component
units for which the City may or may not be financially accountable and, as such, be includable
within the City’s financial statements. The City (the primary government) is financially
accountable if it appoints a voting majority of the organization’s governing board and 1) it is
able to impose its will on the organization or 2) there is a potential for the organization to impose
a specific financial benefit or burden to the City. Additionally, the primary government is
required to consider other organizations for which exclusion of the nature and significance of
their relationship with the City would cause the reporting entity’s financial statements to be
misleading or incomplete.

The accompanying financial statements represent the City and its component units and entities
for which the government is considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units,
although legally separate entities, are, in substance, part of the City’s operation. The discretely
presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial
statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the City.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE L. - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Blended Component Unit

Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) - On September 25, 1980, the Pensacola City
Council declared itself the CRA pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 163, Part III, Florida
Statutes. This action, adopted by Resolution Number 55-80, also outlined the rights, powers,
duties, privileges and immunities invested in the seven-member City Council, acting as the CRA.
The City Council selects a chair and a vice-chair from the seven-members of the CRA and
approves the annual operating budget. The CRA is considered a blended component unit since
the CRA and City has same governing body and management of the primary government has
operational responsibility for CRA. The CRA is reported as a special revenue fund of the City.
Florida Statute Section 163.387(8) requires an independent audit of the fund each fiscal year, and
submission of a report of such audit. The City has presented the CRA as a major fund of the City
to satisfy this requirement, simply due to the fact that the scope of an audit for a major fund is
broader than that of a nonmajor fund.

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The component unit column in the combined financial statements include the financial data of
the City’s discretely presented component unit. It is reported in a separate column to emphasize
that it is legally separate from the City. The accounting policies of this discretely presented
component unit is the same as those detailed for the City. The City’s only discretely presented
component unit is the Downtown Improvement Board.

Downtown Improvement Board (DIB) - The DIB was created in April 1972 by Chapter 72-
655, Laws of Florida. The DIB is considered a component unit since the Mayor of the City
appoints and the Council approves the five-member board. In addition, the City Council
approves the budget of the Board, including the proposed millage rate. Complete financial
statements of the DIB can be obtained from their administrative office as follows: Downtown
Improvement Board, Post Office Box 653, Pensacola, Florida 32593.

Joint Ventures Excluded from the Reporting Entity

The following joint ventures do not meet the criteria for inclusion in the City's financial
statements since no financial benefit or burden exists, nor can the City impose its will on the
entities.

Escambia - Pensacola Human Relations Commission (HRC) - Created by an interlocal
agreement between the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners and the Pensacola
City Council in 1974, pursuant to Florida Statutes, for the purpose of promoting fair treatment
and equal opportunity to all citizens of the community. The Commission is composed of nine
members: four selected by the Escambia County Board of County Commissioners, four selected
by the City Council, and one selected by the other eight members. There is no current or long-
term debt nor does the City control the financial operations of the Commission. On March 7,
2019 the Escambia Board of County Commissioners passed an Ordinance to cease operations
and reestablish the Human Relations Commission with a new board. There are no financial
statements available for the period ending September 30, 2019.

75



CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE L. - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Pensacola - Escambia County Promotion and Development Commission (PEDC) - Created
in 1967 by Chapter 67-1365, Laws of Florida, amended in 1989 by House Bill 984, for the
purpose of promoting and developing the industrial, commercial and tourist potential of the
County, increasing employment opportunities, improving the economic environment, and
expanding the tax base. The nine-member commission consists of representatives from the
Escambia County Board of County Commissioners, the Pensacola City Council, the Pensacola
Area Chamber of Commerce, and the Town of Century and Tourist Advisory Council.
Escambia County and the City of Pensacola each contribute to the operation and maintenance of
the PEDC, but neither has control over the financial operations of the PEDC nor can it impose its
will.

Complete financial statements of PEDC can be obtained from their administrative office as
follows: Pensacola - Escambia County Promotion and Development Commission, 117 West
Garden Street, Pensacola, Florida, 32502.

Summary financial statements including fiduciary funds of these entities are as follows:

Statement of Net Position
September 30, 2019
PEDC
(Audited)

Assets $ 7,623,730
Liabilities 3,171,223
Net Position:

Restricted 61,198
Unrestricted 4,391,309
Total Net Position 4,452,507
Total Liabilities and Net Position $ 7,623,730

Statement of Revenues, Expenses
and Changes in Net Position
for the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2019
PEDC
(Audited)
Revenue $ 2,617,430
Expenses 2,632,780
Excess of revenue over (under) expenses (15,350)
Net position Beginning of Year 4,467,857
Net position at End of Year $ 4,452,507
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE 1. - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement
of activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government
and its component units. The City’s fiduciary funds are not presented in the government-wide
financial statements since by definition, the assets cannot be used to address activities or
obligations of the City (i.e., the assets are being held for the benefit of pension participants). The
purpose of the government-wide financial statements is to provide a consolidated financial
picture of all City activities. The internal service funds provide services to departments
throughout the City; therefore, their direct expenses are eliminated functionally on the
government-wide financial statements with the exception of internal payments that qualify as
interfund services provided and used. Governmental activities, supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely on
fees and charges to customers for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from the discretely presented component unit for which the primary government is
financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function are offset by program revenues. The purpose of categorizing direct expenses according
to function and revenues according to program is to provide an analysis of activities that are
revenue sufficient and those that use the support of general revenues. Direct expenses are those
expenses that are clearly identifiable with a specific function. Program revenues include 1)
charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items
not included among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Individual fund financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements. All other funds (nonmajor) are
combined according to their category, governmental or business-type, and are reported in a
single column. Combining statements for nonmajor funds are found in the Combining Financial
Statements section.

C. Basis of Accounting, Measurement Focus and Financial Presentation
The basis of accounting refers to when revenues, expenditures/expenses are recognized in the

accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of accounting relates to the timing of the
measurements made, regardless of the measurement focus applied.
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CITY OF PENSACOLA, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOTE L. - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary
fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when
a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are
recognized as revenues as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been
met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, revenues are considered to be available if they are collected
within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when
a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well
as expenditures related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only
when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise fees, public service taxes, communication service tax, local business
tax, local option gasoline tax, local option sales tax, lease revenues and interest associated with
the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and therefore have been
recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be
measurable and available only when cash is received.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - used to account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund. All general property taxes, fines, property rentals and -certain
intergovernmental revenues are recorded in this fund. Typical expenditures are for
administration, planning, parks and recreation, public works and public safety.

Housing Assistance Payments - a special revenue fund that accounts for the proceeds awarded
from federal and state agencies that are legally restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.

Community Redevelopment Agency - to account for the tax increment development receipts and
the expenditures thereof.

Urban Core Redevelopment Trust - to account for the tax increment development receipts and
the expenditures thereof.

Eastside Tax Increment Financing District - to account for the tax increment revenues associated
with programs and projects identified in Eastside Community Redevelopment Area.
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NOTE L. - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Westside Tax Increment Financing District — to account for the tax increment revenues
associated with programs and projects identified in Westside Community Redevelopment Area.

Hospital Special Assessment — to account for the receipts collected from local hospitals and
subsequently submitted to the State for health care provisions.

CRA Debt Service Fund - to provide monies for payment of the Redevelopment Revenue
Bond(s) financed with tax increment financing revenues derived from the Urban Core, Eastside
and Westside Tax Increment Financing Districts.

CRA 2017 Project Fund — a capital project fund that accounts for various community
development projects within the Pensacola Inner City Community Redevelopment Area.
Financing is provided by amounts received from the Eastside Redevelopment Revenue Bond,
Series 2017, the Westside Redevelopment Revenue Bond, Series 2017 and the Urban Core
Redevelopment Revenue Bond, Series 2017.

CRA 2019 Project Fund — a capital project fund that accounts for various community
development projects within the Urban Core Redevelopment Area. Financing is provided by
amounts received from the Urban Core Redevelopment Revenue Bond, Series 2019.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

Utility Fund — accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned natural gas
service.

Sanitation Fund — accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned garbage
and trash services.

Port Fund — accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned port facility.
Airport Fund — accounts for the assets, operation and maintenance of the City-owned airport.
Additionally, the government reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds (ISF) account for services provided to various City departments on a cost
reimbursement basis. The services provided include a central warehouse inventory, fleet
maintenance, engineering, management information services and a risk management (insurance)
program. ISFs are reported as a governmental activity within the government-wide financial
statements. Individual fund statements are provided in the Combining Financial Statements
section.
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NOTE L. - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fiduciary Funds are trust funds that account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity for
individuals, other governmental units and/or other funds and include the City’s General,
Firemen’s and Police Officers’ pension funds. Fiduciary funds are not included in government-
wide financial statements, however, a statement of net position and a statement of changes in net
position are included as part of the basic financial statements with individual fund statements
presented in the Combining Financial Statements section.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers for goods, services, or
privileges provided, and fines and forfeitures, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3)
capital grants and contributions, including special assessments. Those revenues not clearly
defined as program revenues are categorized as general revenue. General revenues include
resources such as taxes, franchise fees, interest and sale of assets. As a general rule, the effect of
interfund activity is eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the enterprise and internal service funds are charges to customers
for sales and services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include
the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation 